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PART |
tem 1. BUSINESS

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K we refer to Néark Mortgage Trust, Inc., together with its condaled subsidiaries, as “we,”

“us,” “Company,” or “our,” unless we specifically tate otherwise or the context indicates otherwisfe. refer to our whollypwned taxabl
REIT subsidiaries a“TRSs” and our wholly-owned qualified REIT subsitiig as “QRSs.”In addition, the following defines certain of
commonly used terms in this report: “RMBS” refeosresidential adjustable-rate, hybrid adjustableeafixedrate, interest only and inver
interest only (collectively “10s”), and principal my (“POs”) mortgage-backed securities; “Agency REBrefers to RMBS representi
interests in or obligations backed by pools of mage loans issued or guaranteed by a federally telad corporation (“GSE”),such as th
Federal National Mortgage Associatio’Fannie Mae”) or the Federal Home Loan Mortgage @aration (“Freddie Mac”), or an agency ¢
the U.S. government, such as the Government Natiwodgage Association (“Ginnie Mae”); “non-AgendgMBS" refers to RMBS backed
prime jumbo and Alternative-paper (“Alt-A”) mortgage loans; “ARMs” refers to djustable-rate residential mortgage loangrime ARNM
loans” refers to prime credit quality residentialRM loans (“prime ARM loans”) held in securitizatiomusts; and “CMBS” refers tc
commercial mortgage-backed securities comprisecdashmercial mortgage pagkrough securities, as well as 10 or PO securitibsl
represent the right to a specific component ofddeh flow from a pool of commercial mortgage loans.

General

We are a real estate investment trust, or REIThénbusiness of acquiring, investing in, financamgl managing primarily mortgage-
related and, to a lesser extent, financial as§ais.objective is to manage a portfolio of investtsethat will deliver stable distributions to «
stockholders over diverse economic conditions. i¥enid to achieve this objective through a combamatif net interest margin and net real
capital gains from our investment portfolio. Ourbalio includes investments sourced from distrelssgrkets over the previous two years
create the potential for capital gains as well asentraditional types of mortgagelated investments, such as Agency ARMs and Agéds
that generate interest income.

We were formed in 2003 and commenced operatiors\astically integrated mortgage origination andtfodio investment manag
in 2004 upon the completion of our initial publiffesing. Facing increasingly difficult operating raditions, we elected to exit the mortg
origination business in 2007 to preserve our chpit@ focus on our existing mortgage securitiedfplio. In January 2008, we engagec
affiliate of IMP Group, Inc., Harvest Capital Ségies LLC (“HCS"),to serve as our investment advisor for the purpddelping us increa:
our capital base and source certain types of altie investments or nontraditional mortgage relateestments that could provide signific
net realized capital gains. Concurrent with oumneinto this advisory relationship, we sold $20 lrait of preferred stock to JMP Group |
and certain affiliates, thereby providing a sigrafit boost to our capital base. Shortly thereaftercompleted a $60 million private placen
of our common stock.

Beginning in 2009 and continuing into 2010, we teel in several alternative assets, including dateshlized loan obligatic
(“CLO"), non-agency RMBS, individual loans and distressed regidiesingle family loans. The CLO investment, whiwas purchased 1
approximately $0.20 on the dollar for a total inwesnt of $9.0 million, has, from inception of omvestment in these securities to Decer
31, 2011, contributed over $4.7 million in realizgains to us, $12.5 million in unrealized book eahappreciation and has made a signifi
contribution to our net interest margin. The regency RMBS investment was sourced in mid 2009raastly sold in 2010 resulting in 1
realized capital gains of $4.8 million and retumiapproximately 29.8% on invested capital. In 2048, invested $19.4 million in a limit
partnership that acquired and managed a pool tedied residential single family loans having @gregate principal balance of $28.4 milli
of which we have disposed of $17.8 million (as @cPmber 31, 2011) for a cumulative net realizedtabgain of $1.3 million as of Decemt
31, 2011. We expect to dispose of the remainingigroof this investment in 2012. These investmdrage contributed significantly to t
improvement in our book value, which has incredsenh $4.21 at December 31, 2008 to $6.12 at Dece®bge2011, as well as an increa
annual cash dividend paid to our stockholders.

Since 2009, we have endeavored to build a divetsifivestment portfolio that includes elementsntdiiest rate and credit risk, as
believe a portfolio diversified among interest ratel credit risks is best suited to delivering letatash flows over various economic cycle:
2011, we refined our investment strategy from ay@u$ed on a broad range of alternative assets sahby HCS to an investment strat
focused on residential and muléimily loans and securities. In connection withstfdcus, we entered into separate investment mamat
agreements with The Midway Group, L.P. (“MidwayhdaRiverBanc, LLC (“RiverBanc”}o provide investment management services
respect to certain of our investment strategieduding our investments in Agency RMBS comprised@d$, which we sometimes refer tc
Agency I0s, and CMBS backed by commercial mortgagaes on multi-family properties, which we referas multifamily CMBS with ou
investment focus having moved away from the altdracassets sourced by HCS and an improved cagtitatture, our Board of Directc
determined in December 2011 to terminate the adyisgreement with HCS resulting in a one-time charfjapproximately $2.2 million.

We believe we are well positioned heading into 20dith seasoned investment managers, a focusederdgkil strategy and .
investment pipeline that we expect will producegdarm stable returns over diverse economic conditiQur targeted assets currently incli



« Agency RMBS consisting of adjustable-rate and hy/ladjustableate RMBS, which we sometimes refer to as AgencyvAl
and Agency 10s; and

o multi-family CMBS.

Subject to maintaining our qualification as a RENE also may opportunistically acquire and manag@us other types of mortgage-
related and financial assets that we believe vathpensate us appropriately for the risks associatttdthem, including, without limitatio
non-Agency RMBS (which may include 10s and POs]lateralized mortgage obligations (“CMOs'esidential mortgage loans and cet
commercial real estate-related debt investments.

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT and have leanand intend to continue to comply, with theyisions of the Intern
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Internaée Code”)with respect thereto. Accordingly, we do not exgedbe subject to fede
income tax on our REIT taxable income that we autyedistribute to our stockholders if certain @ssacome and ownership tests
recordkeeping requirements are fulfilled. Even & wmaintain our qualification as a REIT, we expecbé subject to some federal, state
local taxes on our income generated in our TRSs.

The financial information requirements required emnthis Item 1 may be found in our consolidatea@ficial statements beginning
page F-1 of this Annual Report.




Recent Developments
Investments in Multi-Family Loan Securitization Ag$s

We purchased the majority of the privately pladest foss security from the Freddie Mac Multifamilpan Securitization Series 2011-
K015 (the “K-015 Series”) in November 2011. In adui, we invested in an 10 strip off of the ®:5 Series. At December 31, 2011, our"
investment in these K-015 Seriemssets was approximately $15.1 million. We usedréign of the net proceeds from our underwrittebljm
offering in December 2011 to repay the short-teimarfcing used by us to initially fund a portiontbe investment in the K15 Series. W
funded the balance of the purchase price from wgrliapital. The K-015 Series is backed by approtéiyed1 multifamily properties wit
mortgages totaling $1.2 billion.

On December 30, 2011, we acquired 100% of the f@liygplaced first loss security from the Freddie dvislultifamily Loar
Securitization Series 2011-K03 (the “K-03 Serieig"the secondary market. We funded 50% of thesdi+farhily CMBS assets on Januar)
2012 and the balance on February 1, 2012. Our itotaktment to date in the K-03 Seri@ssets is approximately $21.7 million, which
funded through a combination of working capital asttrt-term financing. The K-03 Series is backedapproximately 62 multiamily
properties with mortgages totaling $1.1 billion. &§ March 5, 2012, our total investment in the rafdmily CMBS sector eque
approximately $41.2 million, all of which was soedcfor us by RiverBanc.

Termination of Advisory Agreement

On December 30, 2011, we entered into a Noticeeofriihation and Letter Agreement, or Termination égnent, with HCS pursu
to which we terminated the Amended and Restatedsdy Agreement (the “HCS Advisory Agreemenit8tween HCS and us effective a
December 31, 2011. Pursuant to the Termination é&x\gemt, we agreed to pay HCS a termination fee emguapproximately $2.2 millio
which we recorded as an expense in our statememperfations for the year ended December 31, 20Kl eXpect that the termination of
HCS Advisory Agreement will eliminate approximatehl.0 million of general and administrative expenge our 2012 fiscal year a
thereafter. Pursuant to the terms of the HCS Adyiggreement, we will continue to pay incentive qmnsation to HCS with respect to
assets of our company that were managed by HCSegrbber 31, 2011 (the “Incentive Tail Assetsfitil such time as the Incentive 1
Assets are disposed of by us or mature. Priorroitgtion, at December 31, 2011, HCS managed appedgly $34.0 million of assets un
the terms of the HCS Advisory Agreement.

Amendment to Midway Management Agreement

On March 9, 2012, we entered into a First Amendm{ém “Midway Amendment”)to Investment Management Agreement
amended, the “Midway Management Agreementith Midway pursuant to which we amended the marnmevhich the incentive fee paya
to Midway under the Midway Management Agreementldba calculated and provide for the payment ofiggoompensation to Midwa
Specifically, the Midway Amendment (i) raises th@gh water markto 11%, (ii) reduces the incentive fee to 35% af ttollar amount
which adjusted net income (as defined in the MidiWmnagement Agreement) exceeds the hurdle raderg@uces the hurdle rate to an an
12.5% rate of return on invested capital, (iv) pdeg that the incentive fee will be calculated oroling 12-month basis, (v) amends
definition of adjusted net income (to the definitiset forth under—Our External ManagetsThe Mid way Management Agreement” ¥j)(
provides that, upon mutual agreement of the pardeportion of each incentive fee payable to Midwmder the Midway Managem
Agreement may be paid in shares of our common simo#t (vii) provides for the grant, on or about tse of the Midway Amendment,
213,980 shares of restricted stock to Midway théitwest annually in onehird increments beginning on December 31, 2012sdant to th
Midway Amendment, which is retroactively effectims of January 1, 2012, the initial term of the MigwManagement Agreement will n
expire on December 31, 2013.

For a description of the material terms of the MigWManagement Agreement (as amended), se@ur External ManagersThe Mid
way Management Agreement” below.

Our Investment Strategy

We intend to continue our strategy of building aidential portfolio that includes elements of batterest rate and credit risk
focusing our investments on leveraged Agency RMBISch we expect will include both Agency ARMs andekcy |10s, while also expand
our investments in “credit residential” assets,ahhive define as multi-family CMBS and other comndreal estateelated debt investmen
At the same time we pursue these targeted assetsjlixontinue to actively manage our existingedssPrior to deploying capital to any of
targeted asset classes, our management team wilidew, among other things, the amount and natuaaticipated cash flows from the as
our ability to finance or borrow against the astiet, related capital requirements, liquidity, tlusts of financing, hedging, and managing
asset, relative value, expected future interestvalatility and future expected changes to creplieads.



Our investment strategy does not, subject to oaticeed compliance with applicable REIT tax reqoiests and the maintenance
our exemption from the Investment Company Act, fithe amount of our capital that may be investedrig of these investments or in .
particular class or type of assets. Thus, our &utovestments may include asset types differemn fitoe targeted or other assets described i
report. The investment and capital allocation dens of our company and our external managers deparprevailing market conditions ¢
may change over time in response to opportunitislable in different economic and capital markavieonments. As a result, we can
predict the percentage of our capital that wilitbeested in any particular investment at any gitrere.

For more information regarding our portfolio as @écember 31, 2011, see “Managememndiscussion and Analysis of Finan
Condition and Results of Operations” below.




Investments in Agency RMBS

We intend to achieve more stable cash flows oncollective investments in Agency RMBS across vasiaarket cycles, includin
various interest rate, yield curve and prepaymgnotes, primarily through investments in both AgerfiRMs and Agency 10s. Our Ager
ARMSs consist of whole pool passrough certificates, the principal and interestwbiich are guaranteed by Fannie Mae or Freddie Magt
are backed by ARMs or hybrid ARMs. Our current fmid of Agency ARMs has interest reset periodsagafly less than two years and
average seasoning of approximately four years. @ie\e this amount of seasoning better protectsé#uarities from delinquency buyouts
Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac and provides better dvarepayment behavior profiles.

Agency IOs are securities that represent the tmhtceive the interest portion of the cash floenfra pool of mortgage loans issue
guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie.Mgency |Os allow us to make a direct investmertbérrower prepayment trends in
current market environment. However, Agency 10® afdroduce increased risk as these securities havenderlying principal cash flov
which will cause them to underperform in high pngpant environments as future interest payments bélireduced as a direct resul
prepayments. Our investments in Agency |0Os ande@lhedging and borrowing activities are managetigway, which serves as one of
external managers pursuant to the Midway Managemgneement. We sometimes refer to these investmants related hedging a
borrowing activities as our Agency IO strategy. kdormation regarding Midwag' management of certain of our assets and the Midwa
nagement Agreement, see-Our External ManagersThe Midway Group, L.P.” below.

It should be noted that the guarantee providechbyGSEs on Agency RMBS issued by them does notgiras from prepayment ri:
Moreover all of our Agency RMBS are at risk to new modified governmergponsored homeowner stimulus programs that mayce
unpredictable and excessively high prepayment spesslilting in accelerated premium amortization amtticed net interest margin, bott
which could materially adversely affect our busgdsancial condition and results of operations.

Investments in Multi-Family CMBS and Other Creditégidential Assets

Our investments in credit residential assets hessied on CMBS comprised of the first loss secuitynulti-family CMBS series th.
are issued by Freddie Mac, primarily in the formP@s. Our investments in the privately placed fivss securities from two separate multi-
family CMBS securitizations by Freddie Mac, as dibsd above under—Recent Developments ,” is an example of the nfatily CMBS
investments we intend to pursue in 2012 and beyBadh first loss piece represents approximatel9o7dd the overall securitization whi
totals approximately $1.0 -$1.2 billion in multinfély residential loans consisting of between 7009 individual properties diversified acros
wide geographic footprint. All loans have been unditen to Freddie Mac underwriting guidelines astedndards, however our securities
not guaranteed by Freddie Mac.

We also may invest in other commercial real estalated debt investments, such as mezzanine loahpraferred equity investme
in commercial properties. In the event we do puiauestments of this type in the future, we antigpfocusing on middle market opportuni
with investment increments as low as $2 millionused by properties valued at $10 million or grea®e also may participate in structu
investments such as the acquisition of seasonetistbessed commercial loan portfolios. Our mtdtnily CMBS and other commercial r
estate-related delatssets are managed by our other external investmanager, RiverBanc. For more information regardiigerBanc, se
“—Our External ManagersRiverBanc” below.

Our current portfolio also includes prime ARM loamedd in securitization trusts, which are loang fivémarily were originated by o
discontinued mortgage lending business, and tossefeextent purchased from third parties, that e@uritized in 2005. These loans
substantially prime full documentation interestyohlybrid ARMs on residential properties and arefiadit lien mortgages. We maintain
ownership trust certificates, or equity, of theseusitizations, which includes rights to excesgliest, if any, and also take an active ro
managing delinquencies and default risk relatetiédoans.




Our Financing Strategy

We strive to maintain and achieve a balanced awersk funding mix to finance our assets and opmratiTo achieve this, we r
primarily on a combination of shortrm borrowings or repurchase agreements, coll&edadebt obligations and long term subordinatebt
The Company's policy for leverage is based on ype of asset, underlying collateral and overall ketconditions. Currently, the Comps
targets an 8 to 1 maximum leverage ratio for AgeABRMs, a 2 to 1 maximum leverage ratio for Agen®gland a maximum ratio of 3to 1
all other securities. We monitor all at risk or giterm borrowings to ensure that we have adedictility to satisfy margin calls and have
ability to respond to other market disruptions.

We primarily rely on repurchase agreements to fomdAgency RMBS portfolio. Repurchase agreementsige us with shorternr
borrowings (typically 30 days) that bear interestes that are linked to the London Interbank OffeRate (“LIBOR”),a short term mark
interest rate used to determine short term loaasraPursuant to these repurchase agreements,nguecifil institution that serves a
counterparty will generally agree to provide ushwiihancing based on the market value of the sgesrthat we pledge as collateral, le
“haircut.” Our repurchase agreements may require us to degaiititional collateral pursuant to a margin cathié market value of our pledc
collateral declines as a result of market condgion due to principal repayments on the mortgagelenying our pledged securities. Inte
rates and haircuts will depend on the underlyinigateral pledged. In the case of Agency ARMs, wacipate targeting a leverage ratio in
range of 6:1 to 8:1, while in the case of Agencg,|@e expect to arget a significantly lower leverage ratio of 2ptovided, however, that
each case, there may be occasional deomt-increases or decreases in the amount of lggarsed due to significant market events, an
may change our leverage strategy at any tiffee.calculate our leverage ratio, we divide our tanding indebtedness under repurc
agreements collateralized by our investment seesritivided by stockholders’ equity.

With respect to our investments in multi-family CIBEnd other commercial mortgage deddated investments, we intend to fina
our investment in these assets through workingtalpnd, subject to market conditions, both shemtat and longerm borrowings, such
repurchase agreement borrowings with terms of @z gr less or longer term structured debt finapcpreferred equity or any combinat
thereof.

At December 31, 2011, we finance our prime ARM mdreld in securitization trusts with approximatéig00.0 million o
collateralized debt obligations (“CDOsthat were issued in securitization transactionscampleted in 2005. Finally, due in most case
market conditions or the characteristics of theaulythg collateral, we have primarily financed thassets on our balance sheet that fall ot
of our targeted assets and excluding the prime A&dvs held in securitization trusts, with availabdesh from our balance sheet.

For more information regarding our outstanding baings and debt instruments at December 31, 20&&, “Managemend’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations” below.




Our Hedging Strategy

We intend to use hedging instruments in conjunctigth our investment portfolio to reduce or mitigatsks associated with chan
in interest rates, mortgage spreads, yield curepef and market volatility. These hedging instrusiemay include interest rate swaps, inte
rate futures and options on interest rate futuresmtgage derivatives such as forwaettling purchases and sales of Agency RMBS whe
underlying pools of mortgage loans are “To-Be-Anmzed,” or TBAs, and U.S. Treasuries.

We use interest rate swaps and Edoflar futures to hedge interest rate repricingmaches between certain of our investments
the related borrowings. For example, the interespon reset period or our Agency RMBS is typicgligater than the repricing period for
related liabilities, which is usually 30 days. Weitally would use interest rate swaps or Edoblar futures to extend the liability repricingte
to more closely approximate the related asset.

We commonly use TBA transactions to hedge interatst and basis risks associated with our Agency Rdssuant to our TB
transactions, we agree to purchase or sell, faréudielivery, Agency RMBS with interest terms argltain types of underlying collateral,
the particular Agency RMBS to be delivered or reedj as applicable, is not identified until shortlgfore the TBA settlement date.
typically do not take delivery of TBAs but, rathsgttle with our trading counterparties on a nsiday utilizing TBA transactions, we exp
to reduce changes in portfolio values due to chaingéterest rates. Although TBAs are liquid amdé quoted market prices and represer
most actively traded class of RMBS, the use of TB&poses us to increased market value risk. Wedilpiconduct TBA and other hedg
transactions through one of our TRSs.

In connection with our hedging strategy, we, togethith our external managers, utilize a model dagk analysis system to assis
projecting portfolio performances over a varietydifferent interest rates and market scenariosh&s; shifts in interest rates, change
prepayments and other factors impacting the valnatof our assets and liabilities. However, givenuncertainties related to prepayment r
it is not possible to perfectly lodk-a spread between the earnings asset yield ancklhated cost of borrowings. Moreover, the castvdl an
market values of certain types of structured AgeR&¥BS, such as the 10s we invest in, are more teadio prepayment risks than ot
Agency RMBS. Nonetheless, through active manageameththe use of evaluative stress scenarios, vievieahat we can mitigate a signific
amount of both value and earnings volatility.




Our External Managers
The Midway Group, L.P.

A portion of our Agency RMBS portfolio is externallnanaged and advised by Midway pursuant to thewdjd Manageme
Agreement. Midway was founded in 2000 by Mr. Rol&herak, a mortgage industry veteran with more #fagears experience, to servi
investment manager to the Midway Market Neutral whC, a private investment fund. Midway has a tgedhan 10year history ¢
managing a hedged portfolio of mortgage-relatedses.

Midway is responsible for administering the busgexctivities and day-tday operations of our investments in Agency
which represent the right to receive the interestipn of the cash flow from a pool of mortgagerisaissued or guaranteed by Fannie |
Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae, and certain derivative@ruments. These responsibilities include arrangimd coordinating the purchase and
of various investment assets and the financing leahing associated with such assets, with direetsight from our management te.
Midway also may invest from time to time in, amaother things, Agency RMBS consisting of paisssugh certificates, CMOs, and POs
non-agency RMBS (which may include 10s and POs). As ghits investment process, we expect that Midwdlanalyze significant amour
of data regarding the historical performance oftgege-related securities transactions and collateex various market cycles.

Midway has established portfolio management ressufor the investment assets described above amdtablished infrastructt
supporting those resources. We expect that we heitlefit from Midway’s highly analytical investmeptocesses, brodohsed deal flov
extensive relationships in the financial commuiity operational expertise. Moreover, during itsertban ten year history of investing in-
space, we believe Midway has developed strongioektiips with a wide range of dealers and othetketgparticipants that provide Midw
access to a broad range of trading opportunitidsnaarket information.

As of December 31, 2011, we had allocated approeiip$39.5 million of capital to investments manddgy Midway.
The Midway Management Agreement

We entered into an investment management agreewigmtMidway on February 11, 2011, as amended onchl&, 2012. Th
Midway Management Agreement has a current termekpires on December 31, 2013, and will be autarallyi renewed for successive one-
year terms thereafter unless a termination noscgelivered by either party to the other partyeaist six months prior to the end of the -
current term. Pursuant to the Midway ManagemeneAgrent, Midway implements our Agency 10 investnsrdtegy and related hedging
borrowing activities and has complete discretiod anthority to manage these assets and relatedngedgd borrowing activities, subject
compliance with the written investment guidelinesliuded in the Midway Management Agreement andother terms and conditions of
Midway Management Agreement, including our autlyorit direct Midway to modify its investment strayefpr purposes of maintaining ¢
gualification as a REIT and exemption from the btweent Company Act. During the initial term of thkdway Management Agreeme
Midway has agreed not to establish a separate atedth any other publiclyisted residential or commercial mortgage REIT. Wy will
provide performance reports to us on a monthlysbagth respect to the performance of the asseteruheéir management.
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The following table summarizes the fees that we fpaylidway pursuant to the Midway Management AgreemWe will reimburs
Midway for all transaction costs and expenses imolin connection with the management and admatietr of the assets and liabilit
managed on our behalf by Midway.

Type

Description

Base management fee

Incentive fee

Equity Compensation

We pay a base management fee monthly in arreaascimash amount equal to the product of (i) 1.50%
annum of our invested capital in the assets managedlidway as of the last business day of the mnex
month, multiplied by (ii) 1/12th.

In addition to the base management fee, Midway baéllentitled to a quarterly incentive fee (“Midway
Incentive Fee"Yhat is calculated quarterly and paid in cash reas. The Midway Incentive Fee is subject
high water mark equal to an 11% return on our itectsapital in assets managed by Midway (tHgh Wate
Mark”), and shall be payable in an amount equal to thessxdfeany, of (i) 35% of the dollar amount by wh
adjusted net income (as defined below) attributéblthe assets managed by Midway, on a rollingnbwt
basis and before accounting for the Midway Incenfiee, exceeds an annual 12.5% rate of returnvestie
capital (the “Hurdle Rate™ver (ii) the sum of the Midway Incentive Fees paidiccrued for each of the th
immediately preceding fiscal quarters (or, in tlae of the first three quarters of 2012 only, the ©f the
Midway Incentive Fees for the one or two immediaf@leceding quarters commencing January 1, 201&
return rate for each rolling 12-month period (ti@&alculation Period”shall be determined by dividing (i) 1
adjusted net income for the Calculation Period ihytlie weighted average of our invested capitahéset
managed by Midway during the Calculation Periodyvided, however, that with respect to the firstet
guarterly periods commencing on January 1, 201jstetl net income will be calculated on the baisact
of the previously completed quarters on an annedltasis.

From time to time in the future and upon mutualeagnent of the parties to the Midway Manager
Agreement, a portion of each Midway Incentive Faggble to Midway may be paid in shares of our com
stock. The specific terms and conditions for asp@nce of our common stock as payment of a podiamn)
Midway Incentive Fee will be determined and appoblag the parties prior to any such issuance.

Adjusted net income is defined as net income (lassfulated in accordance with generally acce
accounting principles in the United States (“GAAHRMcluding any unrealized gains and losses, afteing
effect to certain expenses. All securities mandgeds by Midway will be valued in accordance WGAAP.

Unlike the Hurdle Rate, which is calculated on Bing 12 month basis, the High Water Mark is castald ol
a calendar 12 month basis, and will reset everyn2dths. The High Water Mark will be a static doffigure
that Midway will be required to recoup, to the extthere is a deficit in the prior High Water Mar&lculatior
period before it is eligible again to receive a May Incentive Fee.

In addition to the base management and incentigs frovided for in the Midway Management Agreen
we agreed to issue 213,980 shares of restricteck ¢to Midway on or about the date of the Mid
Amendment. The restricted shares vest annuallyngtlnird increments beginning on December 31, 201
the event Midway terminates the Midway ManagemegteAment for any reason prior to the end o
restricted period, Midway will forfeit those restiéd shares that have not vested at the time dethanation
All of the restricted shares will vest if we terrate the agreement for any reason. The restrictateshav
voting rights and are entitled to receive dividends

Although the assets and invested capital managddibway are held in an account that is wholly owrsdour company, we m
only redeem invested capital in an amount equ#thédesser of 10% of our invested capital manageidway or $10 million as of the Ie
calendar day of the month upon not less than 75 daigten notice, subject to our authority to dirbtidway to modify its investment strate
for purposes of maintaining our qualification aREIT and exemption from the Investment Company Retrsuant to the terms of the Midv
Management Agreement, we are only permitted to noaleesuch redemption request in any 75-day period.
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RiverBanc LLC

In April 2011, we formed a relationship with Rivexc, a privately owned investment management agdiapy finance compal
founded by Kevin Donlon, for the purpose of inviegtin multi-family CMBS, such as Freddie Mac Mutifily Loan Securitization K-Series’
assets, and, to a lesser extent, other commeeaibéstateelated debt investments, such as mezzanine loahpraferred equity investments
commercial properties. Pursuant to an investmenhag@ment agreement between RiverBanc and us (®ieerBanc Manageme
Agreement”), RiverBanc will source, structure ana@n@ge our investments in these asset classes.

RiverBanc Management Agreement

The RiverBanc Management Agreement has a termvthiaéxpire on April 5, 2013, subject to automationual onerear renewa
thereafter. Pursuant to the terms of the RiverBdanagement Agreement, RiverBanc will receive a tigritase management fee in arrea
a cash amount equal to the product of (i) 1.50%agmerum of our invested capital in one of our whallyned subsidiaries, RB Commer:
Mortgage LLC (“RBCM?”), as of the last business ddythe previous month, multiplied by (ii) 1/22 In addition, RiverBanc will be entitled
an incentive fee that is calculated quarterly aadl [in cash in arrears. The incentive fee is bagexh the average invested capital in RE
during the fiscal quarter, subject to a high wabark equal to a 9% return on invested capital, gtrall be payable in an amount equal to
of the dollar amount by which adjusted net incom® defined in the RiverBanc Management Agreemetithatable to the invested capita
RBCM, on a calendar 1&wonth basis and before accounting for any incerféies payable to RiverBanc, exceeds an annual a88@f retur
on invested capital. We may terminate the RiverBdaonagement Agreement or elect not to renew theesgent, subject to certain conditi
and subject, in certain cases, to paying a termoimgte equal to the product of (A) 24 and (B) thenthly base management earne:
RiverBanc during the month immediately precedirgrionth in which the termination occurs.

As part of this transaction, subject to our fundofgnvestments at various thresholds, we are l@bgithrough one of our TRSs,
receive an ownership interest in RiverBanc of ufl705%. As of March 1, 2012, we owned an approx@ga?.5% ownership interest
RiverBanc.

Termination of HCS Advisory Agreement

As described above under~Recent DevelopmentsTermination of Advisory Agreement,” ddecember 30, 2011, we entered in
Termination Agreement, with HCS pursuant to whighterminated the HCS Advisory Agreement effectis@BDecember 31, 2011. HCS |
served as an external advisor to us and certagsuotubsidiaries since January 2008 when we cosetlyrentered into an original advis
agreement with HCS (the “Prior Advisory Agreemergi)d sold $20 million of our Series A Preferred &tt@ JMP Group Inc. and certain
its affiliates in a private placement. We redeenied$20 million of our Series A Preferred StocKulhh on December 31, 2010.

Pursuant to the terms of the HCS Advisory Agreememt will continue to pay incentive compensationHGS with respect to
Incentive Tail Assets at December 31, 2011 untihstime as the Incentive Tail Assets are dispoddayadhe Company or mature. Prior
termination, at December 31, 2011, HCS managedoappately $34.0 million of assets under the termhshe HCS Advisory Agreemel
which consists mainly of CLOs. Incentive comperwain the Incentive Tail Assets is payable in aam equal to 25% of the GAAP |
income of certain of our subsidiaries that is htttable to the Incentive Tail Assets that exceetlardle rate equal to the greater of (a) 8.
and (b) 2.00% plus the ten year treasury ratedoh $iscal year. The incentive fee is payable ish¢cguarterly in arrears.

Pursuant to the terms of the Termination Agreemeé@!S has agreed to provide us with transitionakotimg services for a period
time upon request. The transitional consulting ises/will terminate effective upon the earlier §fthe day immediately prior to our ann
stockholders’ meeting in May or June 2012 (the 2@&hnual Meeting”)or (ii) a majority vote of our independent diregdo terminate sur
transitional consulting services. As part of trengitional consulting services to be provided bySi@ames J. Fowler, an employee of HCS
the current Chairman of our Board of Directors, hgeeed to continue to serve as a director andCbairman until the earlier of (a) the 2!
NYMT Annual Meeting, (b) his successor is duly dfiedl and appointed by our Board of Directors orlfe determines that his resignatio
legally or for regulatory reasons advisable or appate under the circumstances. We commencedralsia a director to fill the opening tt
will be created upon Mr. Fowler’s departure durihg first quarter of 2012, but have yet to appaisticcessor.

HCS is a whollyewned subsidiary of JMP Group Inc. As of Decembgr 3011, JMP Group Inc. and certain of its affék
collectively owned approximately 10.3% of our oateling shares of common stock.
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Conflicts of Interest with Our External Managers; guitable Allocation of Opportunities

Each of Midway and RiverBanc manages, and is erpetrd continue to manage, other client accounth siihilar or overlappin
investment strategies. In connection with the sewiprovided to those accounts, these managerbenagmpensated more favorably thar
the services provided under our external managemgrgements, and such discrepancies in compensatignaffect the level of servi
provided to us by our external managers. Moreoe&ch of our external managers may have an ecoriataerest in the accounts they man
or the investments they propose. In addition, weeha the recent past engaged in certaiine@stment opportunities with an external man
or one of its affiliates and we may participatditure coinvestment opportunities with our external managertheir affiliates. In these cas
it is possible that our interests and the interetsur external managers will not always be al@yaad this could result in decisions that are
in the best interests of our company.

Each of Midway and RiverBanc has agreed that, whaking investment allocation decisions betweenngsit other client accoun
it will, in the case of RiverBanc, allocate invesimis in a fair and equitable manner and, in the césMidway, seek to allocate investm
opportunities on an equitable basis and in a maifedieves is in the best interests of its retévaccounts. Since certain of our targeted a
are typically available only in specified quantitiand since certain of these targeted assets lsdl Ize targeted assets for other accc
managed by or associated with our external managarsexternal managers may not be able to buy wshrof certain assets as require
satisfy the needs of all of its clientst associated accounts. In these cases, we umtkrtat the allocation procedures and policies w
external managers would typically allocate sucletssto multiple accounts in proportion to, amonigeotthings, the objectives, strategy, s
of development or needs of each account. Moredher,nvestment allocation policies of Midway mayrmé departure from proportior
allocation when the total allocation would resultain inefficiently small amount of the security figeipurchased for an account. Althougt
believe that each of our external managers wilkgeallocate investment opportunities in a manmkeich it believes to be in the best inter
of all accounts involved and will seek to allocaim,an equitable basis, investment opportunitidigved to be appropriate for us and the ¢
accounts it manages or is associated with, therdoeano assurance that a particular investmentropgty will be allocated in any particu
manner.

Midway is authorized to follow broad investment dglines in determining which assets it will invést Although our Board ¢
Directors will ultimately determine when and how chucapital to allocate to assets managed by Midway,generally will not appro
transactions in advance of their execution. Assaltebecause Midway has great latitude to detegntlie types of assets it may decide
proper investments for us, there can be no assartnat we would otherwise approve of these investmadividually or that they will t
successful. RiverBanc, meanwhile has complete elisecr and authority to manage assets on our befudifect to investment guidelir
approved by the Board of Directors. However, ouailoof Directors may elect to change the investngeiidelines or waive them for varic
investments. In addition to conducting periodiciegxs, we will rely primarily on information provideto us by our external manag
Complicating matters further, our external managesy use complex investment strategies and traonsactwhich may be difficult «
impossible to unwind.

Pursuant to the terms of the Midway Management é&ment, we may only redeem invested capital in aowsnequal to the lesser
10% of the invested capital in assets managed ki or $10 million as of the last calendar dayhef month upon not less than 75 ¢
written notice, subject to our authority to dirddidway to modify its investment strategy for purpesof maintaining our qualification a
REIT and exemption from the Investment Company Aot we are only permitted to make one such redemptquest in any 78ay perioc
In the event of a significant market event or shaok may be unable to effect a redemption of iredsapital in greater amounts or at a grt
rate unless we obtain the consent of Midway. Bezauseduction of invested capital would reducebthge management fee under the Mid
Management Agreement, Midway may be less inclivecbhsent to such redemptions.

None of our external managers is obligated to dediany specific personnel exclusively to us, merthey or their personnel obliga
to dedicate any specific portion of their time h@ tmanagement of our business. As a result, weotgmovide any assurances regarding
amount of time our external managers will dedi¢atthe management of our business. Moreover, ebehraexternal managers has signific
responsibilities for other investment vehicles anedy not always be able to devote sufficient timethte management of our busin
Consequently, we may not receive the level of supgad assistance that we otherwise might recéigadh services were provided intern
by us.
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Certain Federal Income Tax Considerations and Our &tus as a REIT

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT under Sec886860 of the Internal Revenue Code for federal incdme purpose
commencing with our taxable year ended Decembe2@14, and we believe that our current and propaseithod of operation will enable
to continue to qualify as a REIT for our taxablaryending December 31, 2012 and thereafter. Acaglglithe net interest income we earr
our assets is generally not subject to federalnmedax as long as we distribute at least 90% ofRHEIT taxable income in the form o
dividend to our stockholders each year and complly warious other requirements. Taxable income gdrd by TRSs are subject to reg
corporate income tax.

The benefit of REIT tax status is a tax treatmbat tivoids “double taxationgr taxation at both the corporate and stockholeeels
that generally applies to distributions by a cogtion to its stockholders. Failure to qualify aREIT would subject us to federal income
(including any applicable minimum tax) on our talealmcome at regular corporate rates and distidmstito its stockholders in any such \
would not be deductible by us.
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Summary Requirements for Qualificatio
Organizational Requirements
A REIT is a corporation, trust, or association timetets each of the following requirements:

1) It is managed by one or more trustees or directo
2) Its beneficial ownership is evidenced by trarediée shares, or by transferable certificates okfeial interest.
3) It would be taxable as a domestic corporatian for the REIT provisions of the federal income kaws.
4) It is neither a financial institution nor an imance company subject to special provisions oféderal income tax laws.
5) At least 100 persons are beneficial ownerssaflitares or ownership certificates.

6) Not more than 50% in value of its outstandingrel or ownership certificates is owned, directlyndirectly, by five o
fewer individuals, which the federal income tax aglefine to include certain entities, during thet lzalf of any taxable year.

7) It elects to be a REIT, or has made such eledto a previous taxable year, and satisfies dévant filing and othe
administrative requirements established by thetlR$ must be met to elect and maintain REIT status.

8) It meets certain other qualification tests, diéed below, regarding the nature of its income asskts.

We must meet requirements 1 through 4 during otirestexable year and must meet requirement 5 duainleast 335 days o
taxable year of 12 months, or during a proportienmrt of a taxable year of less than 12 months.

Qualified REIT Subsidiaries A corporation that is a QRS is not treated a®mparation separate from its parent REIT. All as
liabilities, and items of income, deduction, anddit of a “qualified REIT subsidiaryare treated as assets, liabilities, and items adrire
deduction, and credit of the REIT. A “qualified RE$ubsidiary”is a corporation, all of the capital stock of whistowned by the REIT. Tht
in applying the requirements described herein, “goglified REIT subsidiary’'that we own will be ignored, and all assets, litibs, and item
of income, deduction, and credit of such subsidigitybe treated as our assets, liabilities, aed$ of income, deduction, and credit.

Taxable REIT SubsidiariesA REIT is permitted to own up to 100% of the &af one or more TRSs. A TRS is a fully taxe
corporation that may earn income that would nogjbalifying income if earned directly by the par&EIT. Overall, no more than 25%f the
value of a REIT’s assets may consist of stock oustes of one or more TRSs.

A TRS will pay income tax at regular corporate sab@ any income that it earns. In addition, the TR8s limit the deductibility ¢
interest paid or accrued by a TRS to its parentTRElassure that the TRS is subject to an appreplével of corporate taxation. We h
elected for each of Hypotheca Capital, LLC and Néwk Mortgage Funding, LLC to be treated as TRSsr DRSs are subject to corpol
income tax on their taxable income.

Qualified REIT AssetsOn the last day of each calendar quarter, at % of the value of our assets (which includes assets he

through a QRS must consist of qualified REIT assetgrimarily real estate, mortgage loans securedeay estate, and certain mortgage-

backed securities (“Qualified REIT Assetsjpvernment securities, cash, and cash items. Wevkedhat substantially all of our assets are
will continue to be Qualified REIT Assets. On tlstlday of each calendar quarter, of the assetselatled in the foregoing 75% asset test
value of securities that we hold issued by anyieseer may not exceed 5% in value of our totaltassed we may not own more than 109
the voting power or value of any one issgasutstanding securities (with an exception fousées of a QRS or of a TRS). In addition,
aggregate value of our securities in TRSs cannodexk 25% of our total assets. We monitor the pwseslaad holding of our assets for purp
of the above asset tests and seek to manage dfolijpaio comply at all times with such tests.

We may from time to time hold, through one or mdRSs, assets that, if we held them directly, c@éderate income that wol
have an adverse effect on our qualification as BTRE on certain classes of our stockholders.
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Gross Income Tests
We must meet the following separate income-bassd &ach year:

1. The 75% Test. At least 75% of our gross incdonehe taxable year must be derived from QualifiialT Assets. Suc
income includes interest (other than interest basedhole or in part on the income or profits ofygrmerson) on obligations secu
by mortgages on real property, rents from real eryp gain from the sale of Qualified REIT Asseasnd qualified tempora
investment income or interests in real propertye Thvestments that we have made and intend toreantio make will give ris
primarily to mortgage interest qualifying under #&2 income test.

2. The 95% Test. At least 95% of our gross incdonghe taxable year must be derived from the ssitbat are qualifyir
for purposes of the 75% test, and from dividendterest or gains from the sale or disposition otlstor other assets that are
dealer property.

Distributions

We must distribute to our stockholders on a pre katsis each year an amount equal to at leasd%t) & our taxable income beft
deduction of dividends paid and excluding net ejain, plus (ii) 90% of the excess of the nebme from foreclosure property over the
imposed on such income by the Internal Revenue Qedeg (iii) any “excess non-cash incomé@/é have made and intend to continue to r
distributions to our stockholders in sufficient amts to meet the distribution requirement for RgLU&lification.

Competition

Our success depends, in large part, on our abditgcquire assets at favorable spreads over owowimg costs. When we invest
mortgagebacked securities, mortgage loans and other inwedtiassets, we compete with a variety of instihgldnvestors, including oth
REITs, insurance companies, mutual funds, hedgdsfupension funds, investment banking firms, baarkd other financial institutions tt
invest in the same types of assets. Many of thesestors have greater financial resources and atodswer costs of capital than we do

Corporate Offices and Personnel

We were formed as a Maryland corporation in 2003r €rporate headquarters are located at 52 VaiidArenue, Suite 403, Ne
York, New York, 10017 and our telephone numbeRi2j 792-0107. As of December 31, 2011, we emplalyezk full-time employees.

Access to our Periodic SEC Reports and Other Corpate Information

Our internet website address is www.nymtrust.core. Make available free of charge, through our irtewebsite, our annual rep
on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-@yent reports on Form B-and any amendments thereto that we file or flrpisrsuant t
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934 as soon as reasonably practicable wfeglectronically file such material with,
furnish it to, the SEC. Our Corporate Governancdd@ines and Code of Business Conduct and Ethiak the charters of our Auc
Compensation and Nominating and Corporate Govem&ummittees are also available on our website aardavailable in print to a
stockholder upon request in writing to New York Myage Trust, Inc., c/o Secretary, 52 Vanderbilt Awe Suite 403, New York, New Yo
10017. Information on our website is neither pamar incorporated into this Annual Report on FdtfiK.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT S

When used in this Annual Report on Form K,0in future filings with the SEC or in press retea or other written or o
communications, statements which are not histotiicatature, including those containing words sush“lzelieve,” “expect,” “anticipate,”
“estimate,” “plan,” “continue,” “intend,” “should,*would,” “could,” “goal,” “objective,” “will,” “may” or similar expressions, are intende
identify “forward-looking statementsiithin the meaning of Section 27A of the Securithes of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E ¢
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, ansljéh, may involve known and unknown risks, uradeties and assumptions.

Forwardiooking statements are based on our beliefs, assamspand expectations of our future performanaking into account ¢
information currently available to us. These baliissumptions and expectations are subject te &@sk uncertainties and can change
result of many possible events or factors, nobflvhich are known to us. If a change occurs, ausitess, financial condition, liquidity a
results of operations may vary materially from #hexpressed in our forwatdeking statements. The following factors are exE®mwf thos
that could cause actual results to vary from owvéoddooking statements: changes in interest rates la@dniarket value of our securities;
impact of the downgrade of the lotgrm credit ratings of the U.S., Fannie Mae, Freddac, and Ginnie Mae; market volatility; changeshie
prepayment rates on the mortgage loans underlyimgnsvestment securities; increased rates of defad/or decreased recovery rates or
assets; our ability to borrow to finance our assekmnges in government regulations affecting ousiress; our ability to maintain «
qualification as a REIT for federal tax purposas; ability to maintain our exemption from registoat under the Investment Company Act;
risks associated with investing in real estate taségcluding changes in business conditions aedgneral economy. These and other 1
uncertainties and factors, including the risk fagtdescribed in Item 1A of this Annual Report onrRd 0K, could cause our actual result:
differ materially from those projected in any fomgdooking statements we make. All forwadabking statements speak only as of the da
which they are made. New risks and uncertaintiese @ver time and it is not possible to predicisthevents or how they may affect us. Ex
as required by law, we are not obligated to, andhaintend to, update or revise any forwérdking statements, whether as a result of
information, future events or otherwise.

17




Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Set forth below are the risks that we believe aratamial to stockholders. You should carefully cadsr the following risk factors and tr
various other factors identified in or incorporatebly reference into any other documents filed bywish the SEC in evaluating our compal
and our business. The risks discussed herein cadvexsely affect our business, liquidity, operatirrgsults, prospects, and financ
condition. This could cause the market price ofrosecurities to decline. The risk factors describbelow are not the only risks that m
affect us. Additional risks and uncertainties ngresently known to us also may adversely affect business, liquidity, operating resul
prospects, and financial conditior

Risks Related to Our Business and Our Company

Interest rate mismatches between the inte-earning assets held in our investment portfolio attte borrowings used to fund the purcha:
of those assets may reduce our net income or resudt loss during periods of changing interest rate

Certain of the assets held in our investment pliotfparticularly RMBS, have a fixed coupon ratengrally for a significant peric
and in some cases, for the average maturity ohsiset. At the same time, our repurchase agreemedtsther borrowings typically provide
a payment reset period of 30 days or less. Intiaddithe average maturity of our borrowings geltesaill be shorter than the average matu
of the RMBS currently in our portfolio and shorthan the RMBS and certain other targeted assetich we seek to invest. Historically,
have used swap agreements as a means for attertgpfirghe cost of certain of our liabilities ovameriod of time; however, these agreerr
will generally not be sufficient to match the castall our liabilities against all of our investmesecurities. In the event we experie
unexpectedly high or low prepayment rates on RMBB8tler mortgageelated securities or loans, our strategy for matebur assets with o
liabilities is more likely to be unsuccessful whiotay result in reduced earnings or losses and esluash available for distribution to
stockholders.

In addition, the RMBS we invest in may be backedA\R®Ms that are subject to periodic and lifetimeenaist rate caps. Periodic inte
rate caps limit the amount an interest rate careas® during any given period. Lifetime interes¢ reaps limit the amount an interest rate
increase over the life of the security. Our bormys typically are not subject to similar restrio8o Accordingly, in a period of rapic
increasing interest rates, the interest rates paidur borrowings could increase without limitatiaile interest rate caps could limit
interest rates on RMBS in our portfolio that arel®d by ARMs. This problem is magnified for RMBSkad by ARMs and hybrid ARMs tt
are not fully indexed. Further, some RMBS backedABMs and hybrid ARMs may be subject to periodigmpant caps that result in a port
of the interest being deferred and added to thecjpral outstanding. As a result, the payments veeive on RMBS backed by ARMs ¢
hybrid ARMs may be lower than the related debt isercosts. These factors could have a materialradveffect on our business, finan
condition and results of operations and our abibitynake distributions to our stockholders.

Interest rate fluctuations will also cause variange the yield curve, which may reduce our net meo The relationship betwe
short-term and longer-term interest rates is ofefarred to as the “yield curve.” If shagrm interest rates rise disproportionately rekatis
longerierm interest rates (a flattening of the yield @)nour borrowing costs may increase more rapiiiy tthe interest income earned or
RMBS and other interegtarning assets in our investment portfolio. Fomgxa, because the RMBS in our investment portflically bea
interest based on longer-term rates while our lvammgs typically bear interest based on shertn rates, a flattening of the yield curve wc
tend to decrease our net income and the markee \@lihese securities. Additionally, to the exteash flows from investments that ret
scheduled and unscheduled principal are reinvegtedspread between the yields of the new invessnamd available borrowing rates r
decline, which would likely decrease our net incoihés also possible that short-term interestgatey exceed longaerm interest rates
yield curve inversion), in which event our borrogicosts may exceed our interest income and we docld significant operating losse

Declines in the market values of assets in our istraent portfolio may adversely affect periodic refgul results and credit availabilit
which may reduce earnings and, in turn, cash avdile for distribution to our stockholders.

The market value of the interdstaring assets in which we invest, most notably BM#d purchased prime ARM loans and
related hedging instruments, may move inversely witanges in interest rates. We anticipate thaeases in interest rates will generally 1
to decrease our net income and the market valeeiointeresthearing assets. A significant percentage of tleerfiges within our investme
portfolio are classified for accounting purposes‘asilable for sale.Changes in the market values of trading secuntidisbe reflected il
earnings and changes in the market values of daifar sale securities, such as CLOs, will beect#d in stockholdergquity. As a result,
decline in market values of certain of our invesiimgecurities may reduce the book value of ourtasddoreover, if the decline in mar
value of an available for sale security is othanttemporary, such decline will reduce earnings.
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A decline in the market value of outeiestbearing assets may adversely affect us, partiguilarinstances where we have borro
money based on the market value of those assdtse Imarket value of those assets declines, thdetemay require us to post additic
collateral to support the loan, which would redoce liquidity and limit our ability to leverage oassets. In addition, if we are, or antici
being, unable to post the additional collateral,waild have to sell the assets at a time when wghiriot otherwise choose to do so. In
event that we do not have sufficient liquidity teet such requirements, lending institutions maykecate indebtedness, increase interest
and terminate our ability to borrow, any of whichutd result in a rapid deterioration of our finactondition and cash available
distribution to our stockholders. Moreover, if viguidate the assets at prices lower than the ameatitost of such assets, we will incur losses.

Market values of our investments may also declithaut any general increase in interest rates foumber of reasons, such
increases in defaults, actual or perceived inceeas&oluntary prepayments for those investmeras We have that are subject to prepay:
risk, and widening of credit spreads. If the mankatues of our investments were to decline for sgason, the value of your investment ci
also decline.

A flat or inverted yield curve may adversely affggepayment rates on and supply of RMBS in which ineest.

Our net interest income varies in substantial part result of changes in interest rates as walhasges in interest rates across
yield curve. We believe that when the yield cuiwveelatively flat, borrowers have an incentiveréfinance into hybrid mortgages with lon
initial fixed rate periods and fixed rate mortgageausing our RMBS to experience faster prepaymdntsaddition, a flatter yield cur
generally leads to fixedate mortgage rates that are closer to the intea¢ss available on hybrid ARMs and ARMs, possitéereasing tt
supply of the RMBS we seek to acquire. At timésrsterm interest rates may increase and exceggtéom interest rates, causing an inve
yield curve. When the yield curve is inverted efi-rate mortgage rates may approach or be lower tgbrichARMs or ARM rates, furth
increasing prepayments on, and negatively impadtiegsupply of, RMBS. Increases in prepaymentsumportfolio will cause our premiu
amortization to accelerate, lowering the yield aolsassets. If this happens, we could experierd®eceease in net income or incur a net
during these periods, which may negatively impartdistributions to stockholders.

Prepayment rates can change, adversely affecting plerformance of our asset

The frequency at which prepayments (including batluntary prepayments by the borrowers and liqudcet due to defaults a
foreclosures) occur on mortgage loans underlying®SNk affected by a variety of factors, includihg fprevailing level of interest rates as
as economic, demographic, tax, social, legal, leti® and other factors. Generally, borrowers tengdrepay their mortgages when prevai
mortgage rates fall below the interest rates oir tim@rtgage loans. A significant percentage of thertgage loans underlying our exist
RMBS were originated in a relatively higher intdreste environment than currently in effect andysthcould be prepaid if borrowers
eligible for refinancings.

In general, “premium”securities (securities whose market values exckeil principal or par amounts) are adversely affedb)
faster-than-anticipated prepayments because theeabarket coupon that such premium securities cartlybgi earned for a shorter perioc
time. Generally, “discount” securities (securitigsose principal or par amounts exceed their marktes) are adversely affected by slower-
than-anticipated prepayments. Since many RMBS will keealint securities when interest rates are highvatde premium securities wh
interest rates are low, these RMBS may be advesstdgted by changes in prepayments in any inteagstenvironment.

The adverse effects of prepayments may impact various ways. First, particular investments, sasHOs, may experience outri
losses in an environment of faster actual or graieid prepayments. Second, particular investmeatsunderperform relative to any hedc
that we may have constructed for these assetdtingsin a loss to us. In particular, prepaymeiisp@ar) may limit the potential upside of m
RMBS to their principal or par amounts, whereasrtherresponding hedges often have the potentialfdimited loss. Furthermore, to -
extent that faster prepayment rates are due torlowearest rates, the principal payments receiverhfprepayments will tend to be reinveste
loweryielding assets, which may reduce our income inlding run. Therefore, if actual prepayment ratdgedifrom anticipated prepayme
rates, our business, financial condition and resaft operations and ability to make distributionsaur stockholders could be materi
adversely affected.

Our targeted assets and other asset classes wepuesue in the future include various forms of strired Agency RMBS, including 10
POs and CMOs. Although these assets are generallyject to the same risks as other Agency RMBS it portfolio, certain types of risk
may be enhanced depending on the type of structulggncy RMBS in which we invest.

Our target assets and other asset classes we msyepuo the future include various forms of struetlAgency RMBS, including IC
POs and CMOs, which are securitizations (i) issedrannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae, (ii) theg collateralized by Agency RMI
and (iii) that are divided into various trancheatthave different characteristics (such as differaaturities or different coupon paymer
These securities may carry greater risk than aesimrent in other types of Agency RMBS. For examiple,Agency |Os or POs we invest
are more sensitive to prepayment risks than AgelR¥s. In addition, many support securities and sées purchased at a significi



premium from certain CMO tranches are more sermstivprepayment risk. Because a significant portibour portfolio is invested
these assets, our overall portfolio and resultgpafrations may be more sensitive to prepayment risk
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Increased levels of prepayments on the mortgagedartying our structured Agency RMBS, particularly gency 10s, might decrease 1
interest income or result in a net loss, which cduhaterially adversely affect our business, finaattondition and results of operations a
our ability to pay distributions to our stockholdgr

When we acquire structured Agency RMBS, such anggéOs, we anticipate that the underlying mortgagél prepay at a project
rate, generating an expected yield. When the prapay rates on the mortgages underlying our stradtukgency RMBS are higher tt
expected, our returns on those securities may lerially adversely affected. For example, the valieur Agency 10s is extremely sensit
to prepayments because holders of these secutdiest have the right to receive any principal pagita on the underlying mortgages. Age
IOs currently comprise a large percentage of olar@st earning assets. Therefore, if the mortgeaesl underlying our Agency 10s are pre|
at a higher than anticipated rate, such secuniti@sld decline in value and provide less cash flasijch, in turn, could materially advers
affect our business, financial condition and ressaftoperations and our ability to pay distributido our stockholders.

Mortgage loan modification programs and future legative action may adversely affect the value aidahe returns on, the Agency RME
in which we invest.

During the second half of 2008, the U.S. Governm#mbugh the Federal Housing Authority, (“FHA'Qnd the Federal Depc
Insurance Corporation (“FDIC")commenced implementation of programs designed twige homeowners with assistance in avoi
residential mortgage loan foreclosures. These agdwture programs may involve, among other thinge, modification of mortgage loans
reduce the principal amount of the loans or the adiinterest payable on the loans, or to exteagtyment terms of the loans.

In addition, in February 2009 the U.S. Treasuryaamted the Homeowner Affordability and Stabilita®] or HASP, which is a multi-
faceted plan, intended to prevent residential nagpégforeclosures by, among other things:

» allowing certain homeowners whose homes are encagdl®y Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac conforming morégaim refinance tho
mortgages into lower interest rate mortgages wittiee Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac;

» creating the Homeowner Stability Initiative, whishintended to utilize various incentives for baaksl mortgage servicers to mot
residential mortgage loans with the goal of redgcmonthly mortgage principal and interest paymefots certain qualifie
homeowners; and

« allowing judicial modifications of Fannie Mae andeBdie Mac conforming residential mortgage loansindu bankruptc
proceedings.

In September 2011, the White House announced tleeyarking on a major plan to allow some of thendillion homeowners wt
owe more on their mortgages than their homes ar¢hvto refinance. In November 2011, the Federal $itay Financing Authority (“FHFAY
announced changes to the Home Affordable Refindrogram (“HARP”)that expands access to refinancing for qualifietividuals an
families whose homes have lost value, among othiags$, increasing the HARP loan+aiue ratio above 125%. However, this would «
apply to mortgages guaranteed by the GSEs. Thermany challenging issues to this program, nottitdyquestion as to whether a loan wi
loan-to-value ratio of 125% qualifies as a mortgagean unsecured consumer loan. The chances ofirtitigtive’s success have crea
additional uncertainty in the RMBS market, partaoiy with respect to possible increases in prepaymages.

On January 4, 2012, the U.S. Federal Reserve ederl Reserve, issued a white paper outliningtiaddil ideas with regard
refinancings and loan modifications. It is likelyat loan modifications would result in increasedpayments on some Agency RMBS
possibly some loans held in securitization tru$tsese initiatives, any future loan modification gmr@ms and future legislative or regulal
actions, including amendments to the bankruptcysatat result in the modification of outstandingrtgage loans may adversely affect
value of, and the returns on, the Agency RMBS iiicivlive invest and the prime ARM loans held in cegwitization trusts.

Certain actions by the Federal Reserve could caasé#attening of the yield curve, which could matefly adversely affect our busine:
financial condition and results of operations andupability to pay distributions to our stockholder

On September 21, 2011, the Federal Reserve anmbt@®peration Twist,"which is a program by which it intends to purchdsethe
end of June 2012, $400 billion of U.S. Treasuryuséies with remaining maturities between six afidy@ars and sell an equal amount of
Treasury securities with remaining maturities akthyears or less. The effect of Operation Twisicdde a flattening in the yield curve, wh
could result in increased prepayment rates duewed longterm interest rates and a narrowing of our netr@stemargin. Consequen
Operation Twist and any other future securitieschase programs by the Federal Reserve could nibteaidversely affect our busine
financial condition and results of operations and ability to pay distributions to our stockholders
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The ongoing debt crisis in Europe could have an adse effect on our business and liquidity.

During the past several years, several large Earofi@ancial institutions have experienced finahdifficulty and have been eitr
rescued by government assistance or by other Bugepean banks. Several European governments loavdicated plans to attempt to st
up their financial sectors through loans, credirgmtees, capital infusions, promises of continligdidity funding and interest re
cuts. Additionally, other governments of the waosldargest economic countries have also implemeimiest rate cuts in response to
crisis. There is no assurance that these and pliaes and programs will be successful in haltirgEluropean credit crisis or in preventing o
financial institutions from failing. If unsuccessf this could materially adversely affect our mesis, financial condition and results
operations as well as those of the entire mortgadyestry.

As the European credit crisis continues, there ggaaving risk to the financial condition and stétilof major European financi
institutions. Some of these financial institutiomsve U.S. banking subsidiaries which have provifiegncing to us, particularly repurchi
agreement financing collateralized by Agency RMBB8me of the U.S. banking subsidiaries of these m&ajoopean financial institutions he
recently been placed on credit watch. If the Euamperedit crisis continues to impact these majaofean financial institutions, there is
possibility that it will also impact the operatioasd lending activities of their U.S. banking suliiies, which could have an adverse impa
our ability to access financing sources on favaralerms, or at all, or result in counterparty dé&famder our repurchase agreement:
addition, it is possible that certain of our U.&sed counterparties could have significant exposurBuropean sovereign debt or affe:
European financial institutions. This could advérsdfect our business, liquidity, financial condit and results of operations as well as t
of the entire mortgage industry.

The downgrade of the U.S.’s, certain European cotes’ and certain European financial institutions’credit ratings and any futur
downgrades of the U.S.’s, certain European counfier certain European financial institutions’credit ratings may materially adverse
affect our business, financial condition and resalbf operations.

On August 5, 2011, Standard & Poor’'s downgradedUtf.’s credit rating for the first time in history. Bes® Fannie Mae a
Freddie Mac are in conservatorship of the U.S. @uwent, downgrades to the UScredit rating could impact the credit risk asate witt
Agency RMBS and certain CMBS and, therefore, desréhe value of the Agency RMBS and certain CMBS8Lun portfolio. In addition, tt
downgrade of the U.S. Governmengredit rating, the credit ratings for certain &ean countries and certain financial institutidosiciled ir
Europe has created broader financial turmoil ancertainty, which has weighed heavily on the gldmahking system. Therefore, the re:
downgrade of the U.%’credit rating and the credit ratings of certaimdpean countries and certain financial institugiclomiciled in Europ
and any future downgrades of the UsScredit rating or the downgrade of credit ratifigis certain European countries or certain finat
institutions domiciled in Europe, may materiallwadsely affect our business, financial conditiod aesults of operations.

Difficult conditions in the mortgage real estate meets have caused and may cause us to experiensge® and these conditions may pel
for the foreseeable future

Our business is materially affected by conditiamshie residential mortgage market, the resideatial commercial real estate mar
the financial markets and the economy generallytheumore, because a significant portion of ourenir assets and our targeted asset
credit sensitive, we believe the risks associatét aur investments will be more acute during pasi@f economic slowdown or recess
especially if these periods are accompanied byirdeglreal estate values and defaults. Concernatahe residential and commercial mortg
markets and a declining real estate market gegeeslwell as inflation, energy costs, sovereigot @ad geopolitical issues and the availak
and cost of credit have contributed to increaselhtVity and diminished expectations for the ecoyoand markets going forward. T
residential and commercial mortgage markets hawem laelversely affected by changes in the lendindsieape, the severity of which v
largely unanticipated by the markets. There issgueance that these markets will return to prieeleor that they will not worsen.

In addition, an economic slowdown or delayed recpveay result in continued decreased demand fddeaial and commerci
property, which would likely further compress homeership rates and place additional pressure orehamce performance, while forci
commercial property owners to lower rents on pripemith excess supply. We believe there is angtiaprrelation between home price gro
rates and mortgage loan delinquencies. Moreoveahedaextent that a property owner has fewer tenanteceives lower rents, such prop
owners will generate less cash flow on their propgr which increases significantly the likelihothdit such property owners will default
their debt service obligations. If the borrowersoaf mortgage loans, or the loans underlying certdiour investment securities, default,
may incur losses on those loans or investment gesurAny sustained period of increased paymefihgeencies, foreclosures or losses ¢
adversely affect both our net interest income amdability to acquire our targeted assets in thiarion favorable terms or at all. The fur
deterioration of the residential or commercial gage markets, the financial markets and the ecorgenegrally may result in a decline in
market value of our investments or cause us toréxpee losses related to our assets, which mayrselyeaffect our results of operations,
availability and cost of credit and our abilityrteake distributions to our stockholders.
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Changes in laws and regulations affecting the rataiship between Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and tbeS. government, may advers
affect our business.

Payments on the Agency RMBS in which we invest@raranteed by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. As byqadblicized, Fann
Mae and Freddie Mac have experienced significasgds in recent years, causing the U.S. Governrogriate Fannie Mae and Freddie |
under federal conservatorship and to inject sigaift capital in these businesses. Questions regatiae continued viability of Fannie Mae
Freddie Mac, as currently structured, including glv@rantees that back the RMBS issued by themttentd.S. Governmerd’participation i
the U.S. residential mortgage market through th&& $ontinue to persist. In February 2011, the D&partment of the Treasury along v
the U.S. Department Housing and Urban Developnelatsed a much-awaited report titled * Reformingeticds Housing Finance Markét
which outlines recommendations for reforming th&Lhousing system, specifically the roles of Famiéee and Freddie Mac and transforn
the governmeng involvement in the housing market and its refegfdp to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. It is uncheaw future legislatio
may impact the housing finance market and the img&nvironment for mortgageslated securities and more specifically, AgencyB8van(
nonAgency RMBS, as the method of reform is undecidedi flzas not yet been defined by the regulators. Mgulations and programs rela
to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, including thosectifig the relationship between the GSEs and the Gdvernment or the guarantees
back the RMBS issued by the GSEs, may adversedgtaffie pricing, supply, liquidity and value of Agy RMBS and otherwise materie
harm our business and operations.

Our income could be negatively affected in a numifeways depending on the manner in which everitda@ to Fannie Mae a
Freddie Mac unfold. For example, the current credjtport provided by the U.S. to Fannie Mae andidie=sMac, and any additional cre
support it may provide in the future, could have #ffect of lowering the interest rates we expecteceive from Agency RMBS, there
tightening the spread between the interest we earthose assets and our cost of financing thosetsa#s reduction in the supply of Ager
RMBS could also negatively affect the pricing ofelgy RMBS by reducing the spread between the istt&re earn on our Agency RMBS
our cost of financing those assets. In additioy, law affecting these governmesponsored enterprises may create market uncertanatyav
the effect of reducing the actual or perceived itrgdality of securities issued or guaranteed bgrita Mae or Freddie Mac. As a result, ¢
laws could increase the risk of loss on investmanfsgency RMBS issued by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac

Commercial mortgage loans that we may acquire oatlvack our CMBS are subject to risks of delinqugnand foreclosure and risks of lo
that may be greater than similar risks associateithwesidential mortgage loans.

We currently own and may acquire in the future CM&&®ked by commercial mortgage loans or may direstljuire commerci
mortgage loans. Commercial mortgage loans are sédwy multifamily or commercial property and aréjset to risks of delinquency a
foreclosure and risks of loss that are greater gianilar risks associated with residential mortgémpns. The ability of a borrower to repe
loan secured by an inconpeeducing property typically is dependent primariyon the successful operation of such properterahan upa
the existence of independent income or assetseobdhrower. If the net operating income of the propis reduced, the borrowsrability tc
repay the loan may be impaired. If we incur lossesSCMBS, or commercial mortgage loans, our busin&@sancial condition and results
operations and our ability to make distribution®tw stockholders may be materially adversely aéfe.c

We may invest in high yield or subordinated and kemrated securities that have greater risks of lahsn other investments, which cot
adversely affect our business, financial conditiamd cash available for dividends.

We may invest in high yield or subordinated or lowated securities, including subordinated trancbe€MBS or nonAgency
RMBS, which involve a higher degree of risk thahestinvestments. Numerous factors may affect a emyip ability to repay its high yield
subordinated securities, including the failure teemits business plan, a downturn in its industrynegative economic conditions. Th
securities may not be secured by mortgages or dansssets. Our right to payment and security éstewith respect to such securities ma
subordinated to the payment rights and securigrésts of the senior lender. Therefore, we maynbigeld in our ability to enforce our rights
collect these loans and to recover any of the bzdance through a foreclosure of collateral.

Failure to procure adequate funding and capital wibiadversely affect our results and may, in turnegatively affect the value of our
common stock and our ability to distribute cashdar stockholders.

We depend upon the availability of adequate funding capital for our operations. To maintain oatust as a REIT, we are requi
to distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable imeoannually, determined without regard to the dédudor dividends paid and excluding
capital gain, to our stockholders and therefore rase able to retain our earnings for new investrmekife cannot assure you that any
sufficient, funding or capital will be available s in the future on terms that are acceptablestdnuthe event that we cannot obtain suffic
funding and capital on acceptable terms, there beag negative impact on the value of our commocksamd our ability to make distributic
to our stockholders, and you may lose part orfafioarr investment.
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Competition may prevent us from acquiring assets famorable terms or at all, which could have a meg adverse effect on our busine:
financial condition and results of operation:

We operate in a highly competitive market for irtwesnt opportunities. Our net income largely depem®ur ability to acquire o
targeted assets at favorable spreads over ounbiogaosts. In acquiring our targeted assets, wepste with other REITS, investment banl
firms, savings and loan associations, banks, imegr@ompanies, mutual funds, other lenders and ethitiéies that purchase mortgagsate(
assets, many of which have greater financial ressuthan us. Additionally, many of our potentiaingetitors are not subject to REIT
compliance or required to maintain an exemptiomfithe Investment Company Act. As a result, we matyim the future be able to acqt
sufficient quantities of our targeted assets abfable spreads over our borrowing costs, whichctdave a material adverse effect on
business, financial condition and results of openat

We may experience periods of illiquidity for our sets which could adversely affect our ability tadince our business or operate profitably.

We bear the risk of being unable to dispose ofintarestearning assets at advantageous times or in a timahner because thi
assets can experience periods of illiquidity. Taeklof liquidity may result from the absence of #limg buyer or an established market
these assets, legal or contractual restrictiongesale or disruptions in the secondary marketss Thquidity may adversely affect o
profitability and our ability to finance our bussgeand could cause us to incur substantial losses.

Our portfolio investments are recorded at fair valbased on market quotations from pricing servi@esl broker/dealers. The value of ¢
common stock could be adversely affected if ouredetinations regarding the fair value of these inwegents were materially higher than tl
values that we ultimately realize upon their dispbs

All of our current portfolio investments are, arahree of our future portfolio investments will be,time form of securities that are
publicly traded. The fair value of securities arttlep investments that are not publicly traded maylre readily determinable. We curre
value and will continue to value these investmenisa quarterlypasis at fair value as determined by our managerbas¢d on mark
guotations from pricing services and brokers/dsalBecause such quotations and valuations arednthgmncertain, they may fluctuate o
short periods of time and may be based on estimatesour determinations of fair value may diffeatarially from the values that would hi
been used if a public market for these securitidsted. The value of our common stock could be exblg affected if our determinatic
regarding the fair value of these investments weaerially higher than the values that we ultimateklize upon their disposal.

Lack of diversification in the number of assets w@equire would increase our dependence on relativigy individual assets

Our management objectives and policies do not pdaait on the size of the amount of capital usedupport, or the exposure to
any other measure), any individual asset or anymad assets with similar characteristics or risksaddition, because we are a small comg
we may be unable to sufficiently deploy capitabiatnumber of assets or asset groups. As a resulportfolio may be concentrated in a si
number of assets or may be otherwise undiversifiedeasing the risk of loss and the magnitudeodémptial losses to us and our stockholde
one or more of these assets perform poorly. Fomelg our portfolio may at times be concentratedrirconsist of a substantial amoun
Agency IOs that are more sensitive to prepaymeikt or we may invest in CMBS secured by properti@scentrated in a limited number
geographic locations. To the extent that our pbafis concentrated in any one region or type afusiy, downturns relating generally to si
region or type of security may result in defaultssonumber of our assets within a short time penddch may materially adversely affect
business, financial condition and results of openatand our ability to make distributions to otackholders.

We may change our investment strategy, hedgingtstgg and asset allocation and operational and maaagent policies without stockhold
consent, which may result in the purchase of riski@ssets and materially adversely affect our busisgfinancial condition and results
operations and our ability to make distributions twr stockholders.

We may change our investment strategy, hedgingeglyaand asset allocation and operational and negmeigt policies at any tir
without the consent of our stockholders, which daeisult in our purchasing assets or enteringlietiging transactions that are different fr
and possibly riskier than, the assets and hedgargactions described in this report. A changeuinimvestment strategy or hedging stra
may increase our exposure to real estate valuesest rates, prepayment rates, credit risk andrd#ctors. A change in our asset alloce
could result in us purchasing assets in classésrélift from those described in this report. Ourrtaaf directors determines our operatic
policies and may amend or revise our policies,uditlg those with respect to our acquisitions, ghwiperations, indebtedness, capitalize
and distributions or approve transactions thatatevirom these policies without a vote of, or netie, our shareholders. In addition, certai
our external managers have great latitude in makingstment and hedging decisions on our behalan@ls in our investment strate
hedging strategy and asset allocation and opemrdtiand management policies could materially adWeraéfect our business, financ
condition and results of operations and abilityrake distributions to our stockholders.
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Residential whole mortgage loans, including subpenresidential mortgage loans and n-performing and subperforming residentia
mortgage loans, are subject to increased risks.

We may acquire and manage pools of residential evmobrtgage loans. Residential whole mortgage loar@duding subprim
mortgage loans and non-performing and pelforming mortgage loans, are subject to increastad of loss. Unlike Agency RMBS, whi
mortgage loans generally are not guaranteed by t8eGovernment or any GSE, though in some casgsntiay benefit from private mortge
insurance. Additionally, by directly acquiring wieomortgage loans, we do not receive the structredit enhancements that benefit se
tranches of RMBS. A whole mortgage loan is direethposed to losses resulting from default. Theegftre value of the underlying prope
the creditworthiness and financial position of tt@rower and the priority and enforceability of fien will significantly impact the value
such mortgage. In the event of a foreclosure, wg asaume direct ownership of the underlying retdtes The liquidation proceeds upon
of such real estate may not be sufficient to recows cost basis in the loan, and any costs orydéalaolved in the foreclosure or liquidat
process may increase losses.

Whole mortgage loans are also subject to “specédatd” risk (property damage causby hazards, such as earthquake
environmental hazards, not covered by standardeptpmsurance policies), and to bankruptcy rigld(rction in a borrowes’ mortgage debt |
a bankruptcy court). In addition, claims may beeased against us on account of our position asgagetholder or property owner, includ
assignee liability, responsibility for tax paymergsvironmental hazards and other liabilities. dme cases, these liabilities may lvecburs
liabilities” or may otherwise lead to losses in €3 of the purchase price of the related mortgageoperty.

Loan delinquencies on our prime ARM loans held ireauritization trusts may increase as a result ofjsificantly increased monthl
payments required from ARM borrowers after the iiait fixed period.

The scheduled increase in monthly payments oninef&M loans held in our securitization trusts ntagult in higher delinquen
rates on those mortgage loans and could have aialatdverse affect on our net income and resdltgperations. This increase in borrow
monthly payments, together with any increase irvaiting market interest rates, may result in sigaiftly increased monthly payments
borrowers with ARM loans, who in turn, may no longge able to prepay the loan or refinance the btacomparably low interest rates o
all. A decline in housing prices may also leaverdoers with insufficient equity in their homespgermit them to refinance their loans or
their homes

We have acquired and may acquire in the future néigency RMBS collateralized by subprime and Alt A nigage loans, which are ni
guaranteed by any governme-sponsored entity or agency and are subject to @ased risks.

We have acquired and may acquire in the future Agency RMBS, which are backed by residential resthte property but,
contrast to Agency RMBS, their principal and inttrare not guaranteed by a GSE such as Fannie Ma®ddie Mac. We may acquire non-
Agency RMBS backed by collateral pools of mortghggmns that have been originated using underwrgbagdards that are less restrictive
those used in underwriting “prime mortgage loansti dAlt A mortgage loans."These lower standards include mortgage loans ma
borrowers having imperfect or impaired credit higts, mortgage loans where the amount of the lbamigination is 80% or more of the va
of the mortgage property, mortgage loans made tmibers with low credit scores, mortgage loans ntadgorrowers who have other debt
represents a large portion of their income and gagie loans made to borrowers whose income is gatres to be disclosed or verified. Dut
current economic conditions and other factors, mafnthe mortgage loans backing the nsgency RMBS have in recent periods experiel
increased rates of delinquency, foreclosure, bagnkywand loss, and they are likely to continue xpegience delinquency, foreclost
bankruptcy and loss rates that are higher, andntlagtbe substantially higher, than those experighgemortgage loans underwritten in a n
traditional manner. Thus, because of the higheingeéncy rates and losses associated with thestgager loans, the performance of non-
Agency RMBS could be adversely affected, which domlaterially and adversely impact our results oérafions, financial condition a
business.

We may be required to repurchase loans if we breagthepresentations and warranties from loan salartsactions, which could harm ol
profitability and financial condition.

Loans from our discontinued mortgage lending opematthat were sold to third parties under sale@agents include numerc
representations and warranties regarding the manmehich the loan was originated, the propertyusieg the loan and the borrower. If th
representations or warranties are found to have beeached, we may be required to repurchase tre Id&/e may be forced to resell th
repurchased loans at a loss, which could harm mfitgbility and financial condition.
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The mezzanine loan assets that we may acquire ggioate will involve greater risks of loss than sien loans secured by incomproducing
properties.

We may acquire or originate mezzanine loans, whake the form of subordinated loans secured by rskgnortgages on t
underlying property or loans secured by a pledgd@fownership interests of either the entity owrtime property or a pledge of the owner
interests of the entity that owns the intereshméntity owning the property. These types of asseblve a higher degree of risk than |alegr
senior mortgage lending secured by incagmneducing real property, because the loan may beaamsecured as a result of foreclosure b
senior lender. In addition, mezzanine loans mayehagher loan-tosalue ratios than conventional mortgage loans ltiaglin less equity in tk
property and increasing the risk of loss of priatigf a borrower defaults on our mezzanine loadelst senior to our loan, or in the event
borrower bankruptcy, our mezzanine loan will bas$i@d only after the senior debt is paid in fulWhere debt senior to our loan exists,
presence of intercreditor arrangements betweehdhder of the mortgage loan and us, as the mezedeirder, may limit our ability to ame
our loan documents, assign our loans, accept pregiatg, exercise our remedies and control decisitade in bankruptcy proceedings rela
to borrowers. As a result, we may not recover somall of our investment, which could result indes. In addition, even if we are abl
foreclose on the underlying collateral followinglefault on a mezzanine loan, we would be substitide the defaulting borrower and, to
extent income generated on the underlying properigsufficient to meet outstanding debt obligatian the property, may need to con
substantial additional capital to stabilize thegandy and prevent additional defaults to lenderth wiisting liens on the property. Signific
losses related to mezzanine loans originated ariggtiby us could have a material adverse effedwrresults of operations and our abilit
make distributions to our stockholders.

To the extent that due diligence is conducted origrtial assets, such due diligence may not revdhbéthe risks associated with such ass
and may not reveal other weaknesses in such asséigh could lead to losses.

Before acquiring certain assets, such as wholegaget loans, CMBS or other mortgagdated or other fixed income assets, we o
external manager responsible for the acquisitioth m@anagement of such asset may decide to condtleer(eirectly or using third partie
certain due diligence. Such due diligence may ihel(i) an assessment of the strengths and wealenektee asset’credit profile, (ii) a revie
of all or merely a subset of the documentationteeldo the asset, or (iii) other reviews that weher external manager may deem appropri
conduct. There can be no assurance that we oxtamal manager will conduct any specific leveto diligence, or that, among other thi
the due diligence process will uncover all releviatts or that any purchase will be successfulctviuould result in losses on these as
which, in turn, could adversely affect our busindgsancial condition and results of operations anu ability to make distributions to ¢
stockholders.

Our real estate assets are subject to risks pattctio real property.

We own assets secured by real estate and may @liastate directly in the future, either througtedi acquisitions or upon a def:
of mortgage loans. Real estate assets are subjeatibus risks, including:

. acts of God, including earthquakes, floods andrathtural disasters, which may result in uninsuosdes;
. acts of war or terrorism, including the consequsrafderrorist attacks, such as those that occuomeBeptember 11, 2001;
. adverse changes in national and local economicrearilet conditions; and

. changes in governmental laws and regulations, Ifigolicies and zoning ordinances and the relatestscof compliance wi
laws and regulations, fiscal policies and ordinance

The occurrence of any of the foregoing or simileerégs may reduce our return from an affected ptgpar asset and, consequer
materially adversely affect our business, financ@ldition and results of operations and our abibtmake distributions to our shareholders.

We are highly dependent on information systems aydtem failures could significantly disrupt our bumess, which may, in turn, material
adversely affect our business, financial conditi@md results of operations and our ability to makestlibutions to our shareholders.

Our business is highly dependent on communicatamsinformation systems. Any failure or interruptiof our systems could cal

delays or other problems in our securities tradintivities, including RMBS trading activities, whicould materially adversely affect on
business, financial condition and results of openatand our ability to make distributions to otockholders.
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A change in the Federal Reserve's intention to hdle Federal Funds Target Rate near zero throughd-2014 that would result in highe
interest rates may adversely affect the market eabf our interest earning assets and, therefores@abur book value.

In response to the 2008 financial and credit cridie Federal Reserve lowered the Federal FundgeT&ate to near zero in an effor
stabilize markets and improve liquidity. Recenthe Federal Reserve announced that it intendsltbthe Federal Funds Target Rate near
through mid2014. These actions have resulted in favorableokadng terms under many of our repurchase agreeemidotvever, a change
the Federal Reserve's stated intention to holdrdteral Funds Target Rate near zero would reshigimer shorterm interest rates, which nr
negatively affect the market value of our investmsecurities because in a period of rising interagts, the relative value of the inte
earning assets we own can be expected to fall @hace our book value. In addition, our fixede interest earning assets, generally, are
negatively affected by these increases becauséniad of rising interest rates, our interest pagta could increase while the interest we
on our fixed-rate interest earning assets wouldchange.

Risk Related to Our Debt Financing and Hedging

Our access to financing sources, which may not baidable on favorable terms, or at all, especially light of current market conditions
may be limited, and this may materially adversef§eat our business, financial condition and resultsf operations and our ability to mal
distributions to our stockholders.

We depend upon the availability of adequate capital financing sources to fund our operations. H@areas previously discuss
the capital and credit markets have experiencedegepented levels of volatility and disruption @tent years, as most recently caused k
U.S. deficit debate and Eurozone sovereign debterms which exerted downward pressure on stoclkeprand credit capacity for lenders
these levels of market volatility and disruptiomtioue or worsen, it could materially adverselyeaffone or more of our lenders and ci
cause one or more of our lenders to be unwillingraable to provide us with financing, or to incredise costs of that financing, or to beci
insolvent. Moreover, we are currently party to neghase agreements of a short duration and therbeao assurance that we will be abl
roll over or re-set these borrowings on favorablets, if at all. In the event we are unable to ookr or reset our reverse repos, it may be n
difficult for us to obtain debt financing on favbta terms or at all. In addition, if regulatory @ap requirements imposed on our lent
change, they may be required to limit, or increttge cost of, financing they provide to us. In gahethis could potentially increase
financing costs and reduce our liquidity or require to sell assets at an inopportune time or ptideder current market conditio
securitizations are generally unavailable or lighjterhich has also limited borrowings under wareleoiailities and other credit facilities t|
are intended to be refinanced by such securitimati@onsequently, depending on market conditiotiseatelevant time, we may have to rely
additional equity issuances to meet our capital famehcing needs, which may be dilutive to our ktaslders, or we may have to rely on
efficient forms of debt financing that consume egéa portion of our cash flow from operations, t®r reducing funds available for
operations, future business opportunities, castuildlisions to our stockholders and other purpo¥¥s.cannot assure you that we will h
access to such equity or debt capital on favortdstas (including, without limitation, cost and térat the desired times, or at all, which r
cause us to curtail our investment activities andispose of assets, which could materially advgraffect our business, financial condit
and results of operations and our ability to makérithutions to our stockholders.
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We may incur increased borrowing costs related épurchase agreements and that would adversely affer profitability.

Currently, a significant portion of our borrowingse collateralized borrowings in the form of refwase agreements. If the inte
rates on these agreements increase at a rate highvethe increase in rates payable on our invedsneur profitability would be advers
affected.

Our borrowing costs under repurchase agreementsrgncorrespond to short-term interest rates sash.IBOR or a shotterir
Treasury index, plus or minus a margin. The margin these borrowings over or under shertn interest rates may vary depending ug
number of factors, including, without limitation:

« the movement of interest rates;
« :the availability of financing in the markehd
« rthe value and liquidity of our mortgi-related assets.

During 2008 and 2009, many repurchase agreemedetgmequired higher levels of collateral than theg required in the past
support repurchase agreements collateralized by&gRBMBS. Although these collateral requirementgehlaeen reduced to more approp!
levels, we cannot assure you that they will notimgeperience a dramatic increase. If the interagts, lending margins or collate
requirements under these repurchase agreemergagecror if lenders impose other onerous termbtairothis type of financing, our results
operations will be adversely affected.

The repurchase agreements that we use to finance ionestments may require us to provide additiorwalllateral, which could reduce ot
liquidity and harm our financial condition.

We intend to use repurchase agreements to finamcmwestments. If the market value of the loansexurities pledged or sold by
to a funding source decline in value, we may beaiired by the lending institution to provide additéd collateral or pay down a portion of
funds advanced, but we may not have the fundsableito do so. Posting additional collateral toparpour repurchase agreements will re
our liquidity and limit our ability to leverage owassets. In the event we do not have sufficientidity to meet such requirements, lenc
institutions can accelerate our indebtedness, aser@ur borrowing rates, liquidate our collatetahapportune times and terminate our ab
to borrow. This could result in a rapid deteriavatiof our financial condition and possibly require to file for protection under the U
Bankruptcy Code.

We intend to leverage our equity, which will exabate any losses we incur on our current and futuirevestments and may reduce c:
available for distribution to our stockholders.

We intend to leverage our equity through borrowjrggserally through the use of repurchase agreenaewt other short-term
borrowings or through longer-term structured debth as CDOs, which are obligations issued in plelitlasses secured by an underlying
portfolio of securities. We may, in the future lige other forms of borrowing. The amount of leage we incur varies depending on our ability
to obtain borrowings, the cost of the debt andlenders’ estimates of the value of our portfolic&sh flow. The return on our investments and
cash available for distribution to our stockholdersy be reduced to the extent that changes in meokelitions cause the cost of our financing
to increase relative to the income that can bevddrirom the assets we hold in our investment plotf Further, the leverage on our equity r
exacerbate any losses we incur.

Our debt service payments will reduce the net ireawailable for distribution to our stockholderse Vray not be able to meet our
debt service obligations and, to the extent thatarnot, we risk the loss of some or all of ouetsto sale to satisfy our debt obligations. A
decrease in the value of the assets may lead tgimealls under our repurchase agreements whictvibave to satisfy. Significant decreas
in asset valuation, could lead to increased margiis, and we may not have the funds availablatisfy any such margin calls. Although we
have established target leverage amounts for mhoyrassets, there is no established limitatitinelothan may be required by our financing
arrangements, on our leverage ratio or on the ggtgeamount of our borrowings.
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If we are unable to leverage our equity to the exteve currently anticipate, the returns on certanf our assets could be diminished, wh
may limit or eliminate our ability to make distrittions to our stockholders.

If we are limited in our ability to leverage certadf our assets, such as Agency RMBS or certainnoextial mortgageelatec
securities, the returns on these assets may besHadrkey element of our strategy is our use oétage to increase the size of our portfoli
an attempt to enhance our returns. Our repurchgigeiments are not currently committed facilitiegaming that the counterparties to tt
agreements may at any time choose to restrictimiredte our future access to the facilities andhage no other committed credit facilit
through which we may leverage our equity. If we anable to leverage our equity to the extent weetuly anticipate, the returns on
portfolio could be diminished, which may limit direinate our ability to make distributions to odoskholders.

If a counterparty to our repurchase transactions fdelts on its obligation to resell the underlyingesurity back to us at the end of t
transaction term or if we default on our obligatianunder the repurchase agreement, we would incsses.

When we engage in repurchase transactions, we abngell RMBS to lenders (i.e., repurchase agregmeunterparties) and rece
cash from the lenders. The lenders are obligatedgell the same RMBS back to us at the end ofethe of the transaction. Because the
we receive from the lender when we initially sbktRMBS to the lender is less than the value od¢HRMBS (this difference is referred tc
the “haircut”),if the lender defaults on its obligation to regblt same RMBS back to us we would incur a losshertrtansaction equal to
amount of the haircut (assuming there was no chamgiee value of the RMBS). Certain of the assktt tve pledge as collateral, includ
Agency 10s and CLOs, are currently subject to digamnt haircuts. Further, if we default on one afr mbligations under a repurch
transaction, the lender can terminate the trarmaciind cease entering into any other repurchasesactions with us. Our repurch
agreements contain crodsfault provisions, so that if a default occurs emdny one agreement, the lenders under our ogreements cou
also declare a default. Any losses we incur onrepurchase transactions could adversely affectearmings and thus our cash available
distribution to our stockholders.

Our use of repurchase agreements to borrow fundsynmave our lenders greater rights in the event theither we or a lender files f
bankruptcy.

Our borrowings under repurchase agreements mayfygdiat special treatment under the bankruptcy cogiging our lenders tt
ability to avoid the automatic stay provisions loé tbankruptcy code and to take possession of gnitléite our collateral under the repurcl
agreements without delay in the event that we ffile bankruptcy. Furthermore, the special treatm@ntepurchase agreements under
bankruptcy code may make it difficult for us to eger our pledged assets in the event that a lefildsrfor bankruptcy. Thus, the use
repurchase agreements exposes our pledged asssisitothe event of a bankruptcy filing by eitteetender or us.

Our liquidity may be adversely affected by margialls under our repurchase agreements because wedependent in part on the lende
valuation of the collateral securing the financing.

Each of these repurchase agreements allows therlegiodvarying degrees, to revalue the collaterafaiues that the lender consider
reflect market value. If a lender determines tiegt value of the collateral has decreased, it m#iai@ a margin call requiring us to p
additional collateral to cover the decrease. Wherave subject to such a margin call, we must peothe lender with additional collateral
repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings witmimal notice. Any such margin call could harm diguidity, results of operation a
financial condition. Additionally, in order to abih cash to satisfy a margin call, we may be reguio liquidate assets at a disadvantac
time, which could cause it to incur further losaes adversely affect our results of operationsfarahcial condition.
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Hedging against credit events and interest rate ngas and other risks may materially adversely affear business, financial condition ar
results of operations and our ability to make digtntions to our shareholders.

Subject to compliance with the requirements to ifjuals a REIT, we engage in certain hedging trati@as to limit our exposure
changes in interest rates and therefore may exposselves to risks associated with such transagtidde may utilize instruments suct
interest rate swaps, caps, collars and floors amddollar and U.S. Treasury futures to seek to betig interest rate risk associated with
portfolio. Hedging against a decline in the valoésur portfolio positions does not eliminate thesgibility of fluctuations in the values of st
positions or prevent losses if the values of sua$itipns decline. However, we may establish otheiging positions designed to gain fi
those same developments, thereby offsetting thinéein the value of such portfolio positions. Suwédging transactions may also limit
opportunity for gain if the values of the portfopmsitions should increase. Moreover, at any poirtime we may choose not to hedge all
portion of these risks, and we generally will netije those risks that we believe are appropriatasdo take at such time, or that we bel
would be impractical or prohibitively expensivehtedge.

Even if we do choose to hedge certain risks, feargety of reasons we generally will not seek tiakelsh a perfect correlation betwt
our hedging instruments and the risks being hedgeg. such imperfect correlation may prevent us fraghieving the intended hedge
expose us to risk of loss. Our hedging activityl wdry in scope based on the composition of outfpliw, our market views, and chang
market conditions, including the level and vol#ilbf interest rates. When we do choose to hedgdgihg may fail to protect or cot
materially adversely affect us because, among dtfiegs:

. either we or our external managers may fail toexdly assess the degree of correlation betweepédtfermance of the instrume
used in the hedging strategy and the performanteecdssets in the portfolio being hedged;

. either we or our external managers may fail toloedate, re-adjust and execute hedges in an efticiad timely manner;

. the hedging transactions may actually result inrpooverall performance for us than if we had not engagedhe hedgin
transactions;

. credit hedging can be expensive, particularly wtienmarket is forecasting future credit deteriamatand when markets are m
illiquid,;

. interest rate hedging can be expensive, partiguthrting periods of volatile interest rates;

. available hedges may not correspond directly vhighrisks for which protection is sought;

. the durations of the hedges may not match the idusabf the related assets or liabilities beingdest]

. many hedges are structured as overetbenter contracts with counterparties whose cragfitviness is not guaranteed, raising

possibility that the hedging counterparty may difan their payment obligations; and

. to the extent that the creditworthiness of a heglgiounterparty deteriorates, it may be difficulirmpossible to terminate or ass
any hedging transactions with such counterparty.

For these and other reasons, our hedging activdly materially adversely affect our business, fi@ncondition and results
operations and our ability to make distribution®tw stockholders.

Hedging instruments and other derivatives historilyghave not, in many cases, been traded on regethéxchanges, or been guaranteec
regulated by any U.S. or foreign governmental authi@s and involve risks and costs that could ressul material losses.

Hedging instruments and other derivatives involis& because they historically have not, in manyesadeen traded on regule
exchanges and have not been guaranteed or regblataty U.S. or foreign governmental authoritiesn€equently, for these instruments tl
are no requirements with respect to record keegdingncial responsibility or segregation of custorfiinds and compliance with applica
statutory and commodity and other regulatory rexyugnts and, depending on the identity of the copatty, applicable internatior
requirements. We are restricted from dealing witly particular counterparty or from concentratingy am all of our transactions with
counterparty. The business failure of a hedginghtemparty with whom we enter into a hedging tratisacwill most likely result in a defat
under the hedging agreement. Default by a partit witom we enter into a hedging transaction mayltrésuosses and may force us to re-
initiate similar hedges with other counterpartietha thenprevailing market levels. Generally we will seekéserve the right to terminate
hedging transactions upon a counterparigsolvency, but absent an actual insolvency, \ag not be able to terminate a hedging transa
without the consent of the hedging counterparty] e may not be able to assign or otherwise dispbse hedging transaction to anof



counterparty without the consent of both the oagjihedging counterparty and the potential assigtfeee terminate a hedgil
transaction, we may not be able to enter into &osnent contract in order to cover our risk. There be no assurance that a liquid secor
market will exist for hedging instruments purchasedold, and therefore we may be required to mairdny hedging position until exercise
expiration, which could materially adversely affect business, financial condition and resultspdrations.
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The U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission arthin commodity exchanges have established liraferred to as speculat
position limits or position limits on the maximunetiong or net short position which any person mug of persons may hold or contro
particular futures and options. Limits on tradimgoptions contracts also have been establishetidydrious options exchanges. It is pos:
that trading decisions may have to be modified twad positions held may have to be liquidated ieorto avoid exceeding such limits. S
modification or liquidation, if required, could neaially adversely affect our business, financiatldition and results of operation and our ak
to make distributions to our stockholders.

Our delayed delivery transactions, including TBAsbject us to certain risks, including price risled counterparty risks.

We purchase a significant portion of our Agency RM@Brough delayed delivery transactions, includif@As. In a delayed delive
transaction, we enter into a forward purchase ageeé with a counterparty to purchase either (ijoemtified Agency RMBS, or (ii) a to-be-
issued (or “to-be-announcedAgency RMBS with certain terms. As with any forwgrdrchase contract, the value of the underlyingrisy
RMBS may decrease between the contract date andeftiement date. Furthermore, a transaction copeatiy may fail to deliver tt
underlying Agency RMBS at the settlement datenif af the above risks were to occur, our financ@idition and results of operations ma;
materially adversely affected.

Risks Related to Our Agreements with Our External Managers

We are dependent on our external managers and derta their key personnel and may not find a suitebreplacement if they termina
their respective management agreements with usumhskey personnel are no longer available to us.

We historically were organized as a saffvised company that acquired, originated, sold mathaged its assets; however, a:
modified our business strategy and the targeteet@agge seek to acquire in response to changingehadnditions, we began to outsource
management of certain targeted asset classes fohwie had limited internal resources or experieffte presently are a party to two sepz
management agreements with Midway and RiverBant pghavide for the external management of certainoof assets and investm
strategies. Each of our external managers, in soarer, identifies, evaluates, negotiates, strasturloses and monitors certain investn
on our behalf. In each case, we have engaged thiedearties because of the expertise of certainpersonnel of our external managers.
departure of any of the senior officers of our exé¢ managers, or of a significant number of inwesit professionals or principals of
external managers, could have a material advefeetefn our ability to achieve our investment olijezs. We are subject to the risk that
external managers will terminate their respectiaagement agreement with us or that we may deaptéssary to terminate such agree!
or prevent certain individuals from performing dees for us, and that no suitable replacementbeilfound to manage certain of our asset:
investment strategies.

Pursuant to our management agreements, our externgnagers are entitled to receive a managementtfes is payable regardless of t
performance of the assets under their managem:

We will pay each of Midway and RiverBanc substdrtisse management fees, based on our investedlo@sitsuch term is definec
the respective management agreements), regardfesise operformance of the assets under their manegerihe external managers’
entittement in many cases to nparformance based compensation may reduce itstimedn devote the time and effort of its professits tc
seeking profitable investment opportunities for campany, which could result in the ungmrformance of assets under their managemet
negatively affect our ability to pay distributiottsour stockholders or to achieve capital appremiat

Pursuant to the terms of our management agreemeiots; external managers are generally entitled tocetve an incentive fee, which m
induce them to make certain investments, includisgeculative or high risk investments.

In addition to the base management fees, payabteitexternal managers, our external managers exerglly entitled to recei
incentive compensation based, in part, upon theeaement of targeted levels of net income. In eatihg investments and other managet
strategies, the opportunity to earn incentive camspion based on net income may lead our exteraabgers to place undue emphasis o
maximization of net income at the expense of othigeria, such as preservation of capital, maintgjniquidity and/or management of inter
rate, credit or market risks, in order to achieighér incentive compensation. Investments with aigyield potential are generally riskier
more speculative. In addition, Midway has broadcidison regarding the types of investments it wilake pursuant to its managen
agreement with us. This could result in increasgdto the value of our assets under the manageafientr external managers.
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We compete with our external managers’ other clistibr access to them.

Each of Midway and RiverBanc manages, and is erpetrd continue to manage, other client accounth siihilar or overlappin
investment strategies. In connection with the sewiprovided to those accounts, these managerbenagmpensated more favorably thar
the services provided under our external manageworeatlvisory agreements, and such discrepanciesmpensation may affect the leve
service provided to us by our external managersebher, each of our external managers may have@moenic interest in the accounts t
manage or the investments they propose. As a resaltwill compete with these other accounts andredts for access to Midway
RiverBanc and the benefits derived from those imahips. For the same reasons, the personnelobf @aMidway and RiverBanc may
unable to dedicate a substantial portion of thielletmanaging our investments to the extent theyagaror are associated with any fu
investment vehicles not related to us.

There are conflicts of interest in our relationshspwith our external managers, which could result igecisions that are not in the b
interests of our stockholders.

We may acquire or sell assets in which an exterralager or its affiliates have or may have an @stieror we may participate in co-
investment opportunities with our external managersheir affiliates. In these cases, it is pogsithlat our interests and the interests o
external managers will not always be aligned amsl ¢buld result in decisions that are not in thetheterests of our company. Similarly,
external managers or its affiliates may acquireedrassets in which we have or may have an irtedtbough such acquisitions or dispositi
may present conflicts of interest, we nonetheleag pursue and consummate such transactions. Addilyp we may engage in transacti
directly with our external managers or their affiis, including the purchase and sale of all ayrtign of a targeted asset.

Acquisitions made for entities with similar obje&s may be different from those made on our beflmlf.external managers may h
economic interests in or other relationships witteos in whose obligations or securities we mayuaeqIn particular, such persons may n
and/or hold an investment in securities that weumecthat may be pari passu, senior or junior imkidg to our interest in the securities o
which partners, security holders, officers, direst@agents or employees of such persons serveamddof directors or otherwise have ong:
relationships. Each of such ownership and otheticelships may result in securities laws restrigi@n transactions in such securities
otherwise create conflicts of interest. In suchanses, the external managers may, in their sstgation, make recommendations and deci:
regarding such securities for other entities thay roe the same as or different from those made rehect to securities acquired by us
may take actions (or omit to take actions) in thatext of these other economic interests or relatiips, the consequences of which ma
adverse to our interests.

The key personnel of our external managers andffilsates devote as much time to us as our extamanagers deem approprii
however, these individuals may have conflicts inadting their time and services among us and ththier accounts and investment vehit
During turbulent conditions in the mortgage indystlistress in the credit markets or other timesmvkve will need focused support
assistance from our external managers, other enfibr which our external managers serve as mapagéreir accounts, will likewise requ
greater focus and attention, placing the resoustesir external managers in high demand. In suciasdns, we may not receive the neces
support and assistance we require or would otherreiseive if we were internally managed.

We, directly or through our external managers, wiatgin confidential information about the compargesecurities in which we ha
invested or may invest. If we do possess confidémformation about such companies or securitiesie may be restrictions on our ability
dispose of, increase the amount of, or otherwise taction with respect to the securities of sucmmganies. Our external managers’
management of other accounts could create a coofliaterest to the extent such external managemiare of material nopablic informatior
concerning potential investment decisions andithisirn could impact our ability to make necessamestment decisions. Any limitations t
develop as a result of our access to confidentifarination could therefore materially adverselyeaffour business, financial condition
results of operations and our ability to make distions to our stockholders.

There are limitations on our ability to withdraw wested capital from the account managed by Midwand aur inability to withdraw ou
invested capital when necessary may materially adely affect our business, financial condition anm@sults of operations and our ability
make distributions to our stockholders.

Pursuant to the terms of the Midway Management &gent, we may only redeem invested capital in aousnequal to the less
of 10% of the invested capital in the account madagy Midway or $10 million as of the last calenday of the month upon not less thar
days written notice, subject to our authority teedt Midway to modify its investment strategy farrposes of maintaining our qualification ¢
REIT and exemption from the Investment Company Actddition, we are only permitted to make onehstgzlemption request in any d@ay
period. In the event of a significant market evanshock, we may be unable to effect a redemptionvested capital in greater amounts or
greater rate unless we obtain the consent of MidWayreover, because a reduction of invested capitalld reduce the base managemen
under the Midway Management Agreement, Midway mayelss inclined to consent to such redemptionselfire unable to withdraw inves
capital as needed to meet our obligations in th&dy our business and financial condition couldrtzgerially adversely affected.
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Termination of our external management agreementsayrbe difficult and costly.

Termination of the RiverBanc Management Agreemeithout cause is subject to several conditions whichy make such
termination difficult and costly. The RiverBanc Magement Agreement provides that we may only tert@iRaverBanc without cause and
be obligated to pay a termination fee unless wizeea negative 15% return on the assets manageasfby RiverBanc. Moreover, excep
described in the preceding sentence, we can nwmirtate RiverBanc without cause until expirationtiod initial term in 2013, and then o
upon providing 180 days advance notice and sultijeche payment of a termination fee equal to thedpet of (A) 24 and (B) the be
management fee earned by RiverBanc during the amhrperiod immediately preceding the terminatiated Thus, in the event we elect
to renew the RiverBanc Management Agreement forraagon other than cause or as otherwise desdritibis paragraph, we will be requil
to pay this termination fee. In addition, the RBanc Management Agreement provides RiverBanc witlexclusive right of first refusal
purchase any of our assets managed by it subjeetrtain exceptions, in the event we terminate tf@many reason. This provision could re
in our loss of assets that our earnings are depeng®n or may cause us to sell assets prior toemavery of lost value. These provisions |
increase the effective cost to us of terminating RiverBanc Management Agreement, thereby adveadidgting our ability to termina
RiverBanc without cause.

Pursuant to the Midway Management Agreement, wear@ermitted to terminate our agreement with Maglyprior to the end of tl
initial term, and while we have agreed with Midwthat we could suspend additional capital contrimgi to Midway in the event \
experience a 20% decline in cumulative return animeested capital in assets managed by Midwaynduainy calendar year in the initial te
we do not have the right to cause Midway to liqtedéhe assets in that account. In the event wermdete to terminate the Midw:
Management Agreement at any time in the futurefalhg expiration of the initial term, Midway hasethight to liquidate the assets it mane
on our behalf in its sole discretion. Moreoverdacussed above, there are certain restrictiorsuombility to redeem invested capital unde:
Midway Management Agreement. As a result, we maseHigtle control over the liquidation of any of bassets that are managed by Mid
or the timing of the full redemption of our invedteapital, which may make it more difficult to temate our agreement with Midway and cc
have a material adverse effect on our businessndial condition and results of operations.

Risks Related to an Investment in Our Capital Stock
The market price and trading volume of our commotosk may be volatile.

The market price of our common stock is highly titdaand subject to wide fluctuations. In additiadhe trading volume in o
common stock may fluctuate and cause significaiceprariations to occur. Some of the factors timatld result in fluctuations in the price
trading volume of our common stock include, amotigenthings: actual or anticipated changes incuurent or future financial performan
changes in market interest rates and general mariceeconomic conditions. We cannot assure ydulteamarket price of our common st
will not fluctuate or decline significantly.

We have not established a minimum dividend paymientl for our common stockholders and there are assurances of our ability to pi
dividends to common or preferred stockholders ire thuture.

We intend to pay quarterly dividends and to malstritiutions to our common stockholders in amounthghat all or substantia
all of our taxable income in each year, subjededain adjustments, is distributed. This, alonthwither factors, should enable us to qualif
the tax benefits accorded to a REIT under the hmateRevenue Code. We have not established a minidlividend payment level for o
common stockholders and our ability to pay dividenthy be harmed by the risk factors described ineffeom July 2007 until April 2008, ¢
Board of Directors elected to suspend the paymequarterly dividends on our common stock. Our Bdadecision reflected our focus on
elimination of operating losses through the salewf mortgage lending business and the conservafi@apital to build future earnings fre
our portfolio management operations. All distriloa to our common stockholders will be made atlikeretion of our Board of Directors ¢
will depend on our earnings, our financial conditimaintenance of our REIT status and such otletofaas our Board of Directors may d¢
relevant from time to time. There are no assuran€esir ability to pay dividends in the future hetcurrent rate or at all.
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Future offerings of debt securities, which would m& senior to our common stock and preferred stocgam our liquidation, and future
offerings of equity securities, which would diluteur existing stockholders and may be senior to czommon stock for the purposes
dividend and liquidating distributions, may adveigaffect the market price of our common stock.

In the future, we may attempt to increase our ehpésources by making offerings of debt or addaloofferings of equity securitie
including commercial paper, mediurgrm notes, senior or subordinated notes and das$epreferred stock or common stock. U
liguidation, holders of our debt securities anddiers with respect to other borrowings will recedvdistribution of our available assets pric
the holders of our preferred stock and common stedkh holders of our preferred stock having ptiprover holders of our comm
stock. Additional equity offerings may dilute theldings of our existing stockholders or reducerttezket price of our common stock, or bc
Because our decision to issue securities in anydubffering will depend on market conditions arlden factors beyond our control, we car
predict or estimate the amount, timing or naturewffuture offerings. Thus, holders of our comnstock bear the risk of our future offerii
reducing the market price of our common stock ahdidg their stock holdings in us.

Future sales of our common stock could have an acbeeeffect on our common stock price.

We cannot predict the effect, if any, of futureesabf common stock, or the availability of sham@sfiture sales, on the market prici
our common stock. Sales of substantial amount®wimon stock, or the perception that such salelsl @mcur, may adversely affect prevail
market prices for our common stock.

Risks Related to Our Company, Structure and Changé Control Provisions
Our directors have approved broad investment guiides for us and do not approve each investment waken

Our external managers are generally authorizealtow broad investment guidelines in determiningiahhassets we will invest |
Although our board of directors will ultimately @emine when and how much capital to allocate toilmuestment strategies, we generally
not, with certain exceptions, approve transactiorsdvance of their execution by these manageradtition, in conducting periodic revie\
we will rely primarily on information provided tosuby our external managers. Complicating matterthéun, our external managers may
complex investment strategies and transactionsstwiniay be difficulor impossible to unwind. As a result, because ateraal managers ha
great latitude to determine the types of assatsay decide are proper investments for us, therebeano assurance that we would other
approve of these investments individually or tiatytwill be successful.

We are dependent on certain key personnel.

We are a small company with only three fiithe employees and are dependent upon the efféxsiroChief Executive Officer ai
President, Steven R. Mumma, and certain key indai&sl employed by our external managers. The losspfkey personnel or their servi
could have an adverse effect on our operations.

The stock ownership limit imposed by our charter ynanhibit market activity in our common stock and ay restrict our busines
combination opportunities.

In order for us to maintain our qualification aRBIT under the Internal Revenue Code, not more 8@ in value of the issued ¢
outstanding shares of our capital stock may be dwaetually or constructively, by five or fewer indluals (as defined in the Internal Reve
Code to include certain entities) at any time dytime last half of each taxable year (other thanfiost year as a REIT). This test is knowt
the “5/50 test.” Attribution rules in the Internal Revenue Code gppldetermine if any individual or entity actuatly constructively owns o
capital stock for purposes of this requirement.difidnally, at least 100 persons must beneficiallyn our capital stock during at least 335 «
of each taxable year (other than our first yean &®EIT). To help ensure that we meet these testscharter restricts the acquisition
ownership of shares of our capital stock. Our trawith certain exceptions, authorizes our doesto take such actions as are necessal
desirable to preserve our qualification as a REId@ provides that, unless exempted by our Boardigdibrs, no person may own more t
5.0% in value of the outstanding shares of ourtahptock. The ownership limit contained in ouarbr could delay or prevent a transactic
a change in control of our company under circuns#arthat otherwise could provide our stockholdétls the opportunity to realize a premi
over the then current market price for our comntorcksor would otherwise be in the best interestswfstockholders.
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Certain provisions of Maryland law and our charteand bylaws could hinder, delay or prevent a charigecontrol which could have a
adverse effect on the value of our securities.

Certain provisions of Maryland law, our charter and bylaws may have the effect of delaying, défigrior preventing transactic
that involve an actual or threatened change inrobnThese provisions include the following, amaribers:

« our charter provides that, subject to the rightsred or more classes or series of preferred stwelkett one or more directc
a director may be removed with or without causey dny the affirmative vote of holders of at leasotthirds of all vote
entitled to be cast by our stockholders generallhe election of directors;

« our bylaws provide that only our Board of Directshall have the authority to amend our bylaws;

« under our charter, our Board of Directors has aitihto issue preferred stock from time to time oime or more series anc
establish the terms, preferences and rights ofanl series, all without the approval of our stai#térs;

« the Maryland Business Combination Act; and
« the Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act.

Although our Board of Directors has adopted a rgsmh exempting us from application of the MarylaBdsiness Combination A
and our bylaws provide that we are not subjech&Nlaryland Control Share Acquisition Act, our Babaif Directors may elect to make
“business combination” statute and “control shatatute applicable to us at any time and may deigwut stockholder approval.

Maintenance of our Investment Company Act exemptiomposes limits on our operation

We have conducted and intend to continue to canolucoperations so as not to become regulatech asvastment company unc
the Investment Company Act. We believe that theeeaanumber of exclusions under the Investment Gmy\ct that are applicable to us.
maintain the exclusion, the assets that we acquidimited by the provisions of the Investment @amy Act and the rules and regulati
promulgated under the Investment Company Act. Ogusti31, 2011, the SEC published a concept rekeatstted “Companies Engaged in-
Business of Acquiring Mortgages and Mortgage Rdl&tstruments” livestment Company Act Rel. No. 29778). This redessggests that t
SEC may modify the exemption relied upon by comgssimilar to us that invest in mortgage loansmandgagebacked securities. If the SI
acts to narrow the availability of, or if we otheése fail to qualify for, our exclusion, we couldnang other things, be required either (e
change the manner in which we conduct our operatioravoid being required to register as an investncompany or (b) to register as
investment company, either of which could have ¢enie adverse effect on our operations and theketarice of our common stock.

Tax Risks Related to Our Structure
Failure to qualify as a REIT would adversely affeour operations and ability to make distributions.

We have operated and intend to continue to opesatéo qualify as a REIT for federal income tax msgs. Our continu
qualification as a REIT will depend on our abilty meet various requirements concerning, amongr dfiags, the ownership of ¢
outstanding stock, the nature of our assets, theees of our income, and the amount of our distidims to our stockholders. In order to sat
these requirements, we might have to forego investenwe might otherwise make. Thus, compliancé tie REIT requirements may hin
our investment performance. Moreover, while wengk to continue to operate so to qualify as a RiafTfederal income tax purposes, gi
the highly complex nature of the rules governing RE-there can be no assurance that we will safgualany taxable year.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable yesard we do not qualify for certain statutory relbvisions, we would be subject
federal income tax (including any applicable alggive minimum tax) on our taxable income at reguatanporate rates. We might be require
borrow funds or liquidate some investments in ordepay the applicable tax. Our payment of incaape would reduce our net earni
available for investment or distribution to stoclders. Furthermore, if we fail to qualify as a REdnd do not qualify for certain statut
relief provisions, we would no longer be requiredrake distributions to stockholders. Unless ailufe to qualify as a REIT were excu
under the federal income tax laws, we generallyld/te disqualified from treatment as a REIT for ther taxable years following the yea
which we lost our REIT status.
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REIT distribution requirements could adversely atfeour liquidity.

In order to qualify as a REIT, we generally areuiegd each year to distribute to our stockholdeéreast 90% of our REIT taxal
income, excluding any net capital gain. To theeekthat we distribute at least 90%, but less tH@0% of our REIT taxable income, we will
subject to corporate income tax on our undistridREIT taxable income. In addition, we will be gdi to a 4% nondeductible excise ta
the amount, if any, by which certain distributiggesd by us with respect to any calendar year a® tlean the sum of (i) 85% of our ordin
REIT income for that year, (i) 95% of our REIT @ab gain net income for that year, and (iii) 10@¥our undistributed REIT taxable inco
from prior years.

We have made and intend to continue to make disioibs to our stockholders to comply with the 90®rébution requirement and
avoid corporate income tax and the nondeductibtésextax. However, differences in timing betwelea tecognition of REIT taxable inco
and the actual receipt of cash could require usetbassets or to borrow funds on a sherta basis to meet the 90% distribution require!
and to avoid corporate income tax and the nondédsdeaxcise tax.

Certain of our assets may generate substantial amtéras between REIT taxable income and availalsdle.c8uch assets could incl
mortgagebacked securities we hold that have been issuaddégcount and require the accrual of taxable ircamadvance of the receipt
cash. As a result, our taxable income may exceedash available for distribution and the requieetto distribute a substantial portion of
net taxable income could cause us to:

« sell assets in adverse market conditions,
e borrow on unfavorable terms or

« distribute amounts that would otherwise be invegtefditure acquisitions, capital expenditures grayment of debt in order to
comply with the REIT distribution requirements.

Further, our lenders could require us to enter mggative covenants, including restrictions on albility to distribute funds or
employ leverage, which could inhibit our abilitygatisfy the 90% distribution requirement.

Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for theduced tax rates on dividend income from regularporations.

The maximum U.S. federal income tax rate for dividie payable to domestic shareholders that areithdils, trust and estates is 1
(through 2012). Dividends payable by REITs, howeege generally not eligible for the reduced ratdthough the reduced U.S. fede
income tax rate applicable to dividend income fraagular corporate dividends does not adverselychffee taxation of REITs or divider
paid by REITs, the more favorable rate applicablesgular corporate dividends could cause investtis are individuals, trusts and estate
perceive investments in REITs to be relatively le$gctive than investments in the stocks of R&1T corporations that pay dividends, wt
could adversely affect the value of the sharesEIfTR, including our common shares.

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our alify to hedge effectively.

The REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Codastantially limit our ability to hedge the RMBS @ur investment portfolio. O
aggregate gross income from non-qualifying hedfess, and certain other nguralifying sources cannot exceed 5% of our annuas:s
income. As a result, we might have to limit oue usf advantageous hedging techniques or implenterstet hedges through a TRS. .
hedging income earned by a TRS would be subjefetderal, state and local income tax at regular @@fe rates. This could increase the
of our hedging activities or expose us to gredsksrassociated with changes in interest ratesvleawould otherwise want to bear.
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A decline in the value of the real estate securittte mortgage loans that back RMBS could cause ator of our income from suc
securities to be nonqualifying income for purposekthe REIT 75% gross income test, which could causs to fail to qualify as a REIT

Pools of mortgage loans back the RMBS that we fldur investment portfolio and in which we invest. general, the intere
income from a mortgage loan is qualifying incomegarposes of the 75% gross income test applidadREITs to the extent that the mortg
loan is secured by real property. If a mortgagelbas a loan-tgalue ratio greater than 100%, however, then ongyogortionate part of tl
interest income is qualifying income for purposéthe 75% gross income test and only a proportepart of the value of the loan is treate
a “real estate asset” for purposes of the 75% asstfpplicable to REITs. This loanialue ratio is generally measured at the time tine
REIT commits to acquire the loan. Although the IR ruled generally that the interest income fram-CMO RMBS is qualifying inconr
for purposes of the 75% gross income test, it isemirely clear how this guidance would apply i€ Wwurchase no&MO RMBS in thi
secondary market at a time when the loan-to-vadtie 1of one or more of the mortgage loans backirg ton€MO RMBS is greater th:
100%, and, accordingly, a portion of any incomerfreuch non-CMO RMBS may be treated as gaakfying income for purposes of the 7
gross income test. In addition, that guidance dmgsapply to CMO RMBS. In the case of CMO RMBSgss than 95% of the assets of
issuer of the CMO RMBS constitute “real estate @ssthen only a proportionate part of our income datifrem the CMO RMBS will qualif
for purposes of the 75% gross income test. Althoting law is not clear, the IRS may take the pamsithat the determination of the loan-to-
value ratio for mortgage loans that back CMO RMB$oi be made on a quarterly basis. A decline énvidue of the real estate securing
mortgage loans that back our CMO RMBS could caysertion of the interest income from those RMB®¢otreated as nogualifying incom
for purposes of the 75% gross income test. If suaihqualifying income caused us to fail the 75% gros®ime test and we did not qualify
certain statutory relief provisions, we would failqualify as a REIT.

Our ability to invest in and dispose of “to be anmeced” securities could be limited by our REIT status, ame could lose our REIT stati
as a result of these investments.

In connection with our investment in Agency 10s, may purchase Agency RMBS through TBAs, or doltdirtransactions. In certe
instances, rather than take delivery of the AgeRMBS subject to a TBA, we will dispose of the TBAxrdugh a dollar roll transaction in wh
we agree to purchase similar securities in theréutit a predetermined price or otherwise, which mesylt in the recognition of income
gains. We account for dollar roll transactions aspases and sales. The law is unclear regardiegheh TBAs will be qualifying assets for
75% asset test and whether income and gains frepositions of TBAs will be qualifying income foralv5% gross income test.

Until such time as we seek and receive a favoraiil@ate letter ruling from the IRS, or we are aéddy counsel that TBAs should
treated as qualifying assets for purposes of ti% @Sset test, we will limit our investment in TBAsd any norgualifying assets to no mc
than 25% of our assets at the end of any calenganter. Further, until such time as we seek andiveca favorable private letter ruling fri
the IRS or we are advised by counsel that incondegaims from the disposition of TBAs should be teelaas qualifying income for purpose:
the 75% gross income test, we will limit our gafrem dispositions of TBAs and any napalifying income to no more than 25% of our g
income for each calendar year. Accordingly, outitghtio purchase Agency RMBS through TBAs and tspdise of TBAs, through dollar r
transactions or otherwise, could be limited.

Moreover, even if we are advised by counsel thaA3Bhould be treated as qualifying assets or thebme and gains frc
dispositions of TBAs should be treated as qualdyimcome, it is possible that the IRS could sudtéigstake the position that such assets
not qualifying assets and such income is not ggialifincome. In that event, we could be subjec fmenalty tax or we could fail to qualify &
REIT if (i) the value of our TBAs, together with onon-qualifying assets for the 75% asset test, exce28@e of our gross assets at the er
any calendar quarter or (ii) our income and gamsnfthe disposition of TBAs, together with our ngumalifying income for the 75% grc
income test, exceeded 25% of our gross incomenfptaxable year.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
Item 2. PROPERTIES

Other than real estate owned, acquired throughindreu of, foreclosures on mortgage loans, the Gany does not own a
properties. As of December 31, 2011, our princgacutive and administrative offices are locatedeased space at 52 Vanderbilt Avel
Suite 403, New York, New York 10017.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are at times subject to various legal proceedargsing in the ordinary course of our businessofthe date of this report, we
not believe that any of our current legal procegsirindividually or in the aggregate, will have aterial adverse effect on our operati



financial condition or cash flows.
Iltem 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Price of and Dividends on the Regist’'s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Capitafhdaunder the trading symbol “NYMT”As of December 31, 2011, we |
13,938,273 shares of common stock outstanding amd ®Blarch 8, 2012, there were approximately 6&lécd of record of our common stc

This figure does not reflect the beneficial owngrsif shares held in nominee name.

The following table sets forth, for the periodsigaded, the high, low and quarter end closing sple&ses per share of our comn
stock and the cash dividends paid or payable orr@ummon stock on a per share basis.

Common Stock Prices Cash Dividends
Paid or Amount
High Low Close Declared Payable Per Share
Year Ended December 31, 2011
Fourth quarter $ 736 % 6.2: $ 7.21 12/15/1: 01/25/1: $ 0.3t
Third quarter 7.5C 6.5¢ 6.97 09/20/1: 10/25/1: 0.2t
Second quarter 7.92 6.4¢ 7.4F 05/31/1: 06/27/1: 0.22
First quarter 7.4 6.8¢ 7.07 03/18/1: 04/26/1: 0.1¢
Common Stock Prices Cash Dividends
Paid or Amount
High Low Close Declared Payable Per Share
Year Ended December 31, 2010
Fourth quarter $ 6.9¢ $ 6.2 $ 6.9¢ 12/20/1( 01/25/1. $ 0.1¢
Third quarter 6.52 5.6¢ 6.2¢€ 10/04/1( 10/25/1( 0.1¢
Second quarter 7.717 6.51 6.62 06/16/1( 07/26/1( 0.1¢
First quarter 8.0¢ 6.5¢ 7.5¢ 03/16/1( 04/26/1( 0.2t

We intend to continue to pay quarterly dividend$iddders of shares of common stock. Future digtions will be at the discretion
the Board of Directors and will depend on our eageiand financial condition, maintenance of our Rgualification, restrictions on maki
distributions under Maryland law and such othetdexas our Board of Directors deems relevant.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer afilad¢d Purchaser:
The Company has a share repurchase program, whpreviously announced in November 2005. At managdi® discretion, th
Company is authorized to repurchase shares of Coyngammon stock in the open market or through pelyanegotiated transactions throi

December 31, 2015. The plan may be temporarilyeompnently suspended or discontinued at any time.Jompany has not repurchased
shares since March 2006 and currently has no iotett recommence repurchases in the near-future.
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Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Gensation Plans

The following table sets forth information as ofd@enber 31, 2011 with respect to compensation pladsr which equity securities
of the Company are authorized for issuance. Thefgamm has no such plans that were not approvedduwyiseholders.

Number of Securities

Number of Securities to Weighted Average Remaining Available for
be Issued upon Exercise Exercise Price of Future Issuance under
of Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Equity Compensation
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Plans
Equity compensation plans approved by security
holders — % — % 1,154,99:
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

We are a smaller reporting company and, therefoeenot required to provide the information reqgibg this Item.
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Iltem 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIALCONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
General

We are a REIT in the business of acquiring, inwgstn, financing and managing primarily mortgagéated and, to a lesser ext
financial assets. Our objective is to manage af@mtof investments that will deliver stable dibutions to our stockholders over dive
economic conditions. We intend to achieve this cibje through a combination of net interest margial net realized capital gains from
investment portfolio. Our portfolio includes invesnts sourced from distressed markets over thequetwo years that create the potentia
capital gains as well as more traditional typesnoftgagerelated investments, such as Agency ARMs and Agé@ey that generate inter
income.

Since 2009, we have endeavored to build a divetsifivestment portfolio that includes elementsntdriest rate and credit risk, as
believe a portfolio diversified among interest ratel credit risks are best suited to deliveringlstaash flows over various economic cycle
2011, we refined our investment strategy from ameu$ed on a broad range of alternative assetsesbilng HCS to an investment strat
focused on residential and muliéimily loans and securities. In connection withstfocus, we entered into separate investment mamat
agreements with Midway and RiverBanc to provideesiment management services with respect to ceofabur investment strategi
including our investments in Agency RMBS compriggdOs, which we sometimes refer to as Agency @& CMBS backed by commerc
mortgage loans on multi-family properties, which veder to as multfamily CMBS. Our investment focus having moved avieym the
alternative assets sourced by HCS, our Board cédiors determined to terminate the advisory agreeméh HCS on December 30, 20
resulting in a one-time charge of approximately2%aillion.

We believe we are well positioned heading into 20dith seasoned investment managers, a focusederdgkil strategy and .
investment pipeline that we expect will producegidarm stable returns. Our targeted assets cuyremdiude:

« Agency RMBS consisting of adjustable-rate and hd/bdjustablaate RMBS, which we sometimes refer to as AgencyvARand
Agency I0s; and

« multi-family CMBS.
We have elected to be taxed as a REIT and have lmmnand intend to continue to comply, with thesions of the Intern
Revenue Code, with respect thereto. Accordingly,de@enot expect to be subject to federal incomeotaour REIT taxable income that

currently distribute to our stockholders if certaigset, income and ownership tests and recordigepgquirements are fulfilled. Even if
maintain our qualification as a REIT, we expedbéosubject to some federal, state and local tamesipincome generated in our TRSs.
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Factors that Affect our Results of Operations and ancial Condition
Our results of operations and financial conditiom @ffected by various factors, including, amongeothings:
. changes in interest rates;
. rates of prepayment, default and recovery oreseets or the mortgages or loans underlying sisgtsas
. general economic and financial and credit mackeditions;
. our leverage, our access to funding and our bong costs;
. our hedging activities;
. changes in the credit quality or ratings of thanls, securities, and other assets we own;

. changes in the market value of our investments;

. allocation of capital between various asset elsiss

. liabilities related to our discontinued operation

. the performance of our external managers;

. legislative or regulatory changes, as well aoasttaken by the U.S. Federal Reserve and the@®b®ernment; and

. requirements to maintain REIT status and to fué&dr an exemption from registration under thedastment Company Act.

We earn income and generate cash through our imeess. Our income is generated primarily from teegpread, which we refer
as net interest income, which is the differencevben the interest and other income we earn onsagsetr investment portfolio and the cos
our borrowings and hedging activities. Our netriesé income will vary based upon, among other thirige difference between the inte
rates earned on our interestrning assets and the borrowing costs of thelitiabiused to finance those investments, prepaymseeeds ar
default and recovery rates on the assets or thesloaderlying such assets. Because changes irshtates may significantly affect
activities, our operating results depend, in |goget, upon our ability to manage interest rate peghayment risks effectively while maintain
our status as a REIT.

We anticipate that, for any period during which rodpes in the interest rates earned on our asset®tdooincide with interest re
changes on our borrowings, such assets will reprioee slowly than the corresponding liabilities.nSequently, changes in interest re
particularly shorterm interest rates, may significantly influence aet interest income. With the maturities of oasets generally of long
duration than those of our liabilities, interederancreases will tend to decrease the net intémestne we derive from, and the market valu
our interest rate sensitive assets (and therefard@ok value). Such rate increases could possédylt in operating losses or adversely a
our ability to make distributions to our stockhalsle

The yield on our assets may be affected by a diffee between the actual prepayment rates and oj@cpons. Prepayment rates
reflected by the rate of principal paydown, vargading to the current interest rate environmem, type of investment, conditions in
economy and financial markets, government actiompetition and other factors, none of which carpbedlicted with any certainty. To 1
extent we have acquired assets at a premium oouwhi$do par, or face value, changes in prepaynsasmmay impact our anticipated yield
periods of declining interest rates, prepaymentsunmortgageelated assets will likely increase. If we are Uedb reinvest the proceeds
such prepayments at comparable yields, our neteistténcome will be negatively impacted. The currdimate of government intervention
the mortgage markets significantly increases tle associated with prepayments.
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While we historically have used, and intend to usthe future, hedging to mitigate some of our riest rate risk, we do not hedge
of our exposure to changes in interest rates, e thre practical limitations on our ability to uete our portfolio from all potential negat
consequences associated with changes in gontinterest rates in a manner that will allowtwseek or maintain attractive net spreads o
assets.

In addition, our returns will be affected by thedit performance and market risks of our more treelsitive assets, such as our non-
Agency RMBS, CMBS, equity investment in a pool afnigage loans and CLOs. These investments andrceftaur targeted assets, as \
as other assets that we may acquire from timtg¥te; expose us to credit risk and various marlgéisr To mitigate the credit risks associi
with these assets, we may acquire more senior pietehe capital structure, purchase the assetisabunted prices or hedge with cr
sensitive derivative instruments. Neverthelesgrédit losses on our investments, loans, or thaslamderlying our investments exceed
expectations or our ability to adequately hedgeresgahese losses, it may have an adverse effegtioperformance and our earnings.

In addition to the impact of credit risk, our retarmay be impacted by changes in the market valiteese assets. Market value
these investments may decline for a number of regssuch as actual or perceived increases in defaulprepayment experience, or
widening of credit spreads. If the market valuésur investments were to decline for any reasam,bmok value would likely be negativi
impacted.

For more information regarding the factors andsisiat affect our operations and performance, kem“1A. Risk Factorsabove an
“ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosurisout Market Risk” below.
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Current Market Conditions and Commentar y

General.Despite some positive momentum and optimism inye20ll1 with respect to an acceleration of the @c®nomic recover
the economy and markets generally exhibited coatinlackluster economic growth in the U.S. in 201 do a lack of job growth a
significant volatility in the financial markets, vadh was primarily due to concerns regarding Euroezsovereign debt and the U.S. fec
deficit and debt ceiling debates. It remains uaiclehat impact these events may have on the gletmiomy in 2012. Additionally, desg
recent labor reports from the U.S. Department dfdrahat suggest that labor market conditions amgréving and recent data suggesting
U.S. economic outlook is improving, inflation anchge pressure expectations remain low and the W&sifg market continues to fi
significant headwinds. In August 2011 and agaiNavember 2011, the Federal Reserve announcedttiénds to keep the Federal Fu
Target Rate near zero through n2idi4, thereby suggesting, in our view, that theeffgldReserve expects sluggish growth again in 20h2
environment has fostered continued strong demanddency RMBS backed by ARMs and fixedte mortgages while also helping to keey
costs of financing and hedging at or near histbimas.

On August 5, 2011, Standard & Paotbwered its long term sovereign credit ratinghe# U.S. from AAA to AA+. The downgra
reflected Standard & Poar'view that the fiscal consolidation plan of thesSUCongress at that time fell short of what woukdrnigcessary
stabilize the U.S. governmestimedium term debt dynamics. In addition, many eauats and financial analysts continue to beli¢nat bthe
rating agencies may lower their long term sovereigulit ratings of the U.S. in the near future. 8exe the guarantees provided by Fannie
and Freddie Mac are perceived by investors to laagueed by the U.S. government, if the W& ®redit rating were further downgrade
downgraded by other ratings agencies, it wouldyikapact the credit risk associated with Agency B8Mand, therefore, decrease the vall
the Agency RMBS in our portfolio. Moreover, any ther downgrade of the U.S.credit rating may create broader financial tutnaoic
uncertainty, which could have significant conseaq@arfor the global banking system and credit margenerally.

Recent Government Actioridany political and economic analysts believe tlnare is little likelihood of any significant legédlor
being passed by the U.S. Congress prior to the pedsldential election, including meaningful ddfigduction legislation. In recent years, tl
U.S. Government and the Federal Reserve and otharmgmental regulatory bodies have, however, takemerous actions to stabilize
improve market and economic conditions in the WrSo assist homeowners and may in the future &aklitional significant actions that i
impact our portfolio and our business. A descriptaf recent government actions that we believernaost relevant to our operations .
business is included below:

. On September 21, 2011, the U.S. Federal Resenauanad the maturity extension program where itnidseto sell $400 billic
of shorter-term U.S. Treasury securities by the ehdune 2012 and use the proceeds to buy lomger-U.S. Treasu
securities. This program is intended to extend aherage maturity of the securities in the FedemddRves portfolio. By
reducing the supply of longer-term U.S. Treasumgusiées in the market, this action should put deward pressure on longer-
term interest rates, including rates on financésleds that investors consider to be close sulestifor longetterm U.S. Treasu
securities, like certain types of Agency RMBS. Treduction in longeterm interest rates, in turn, may contribute tor@ak
easing in financial market conditions that the FallReserve hopes will provide additional stimulassupport the econon
recovery.

. On October 24, 2011, the FHFA, along with Fannie Mad Rreddie Mac, announced several changes to be madARP
Among those changes to HARP that are now part oRAAl are (1) the reduction or elimination in cérteases, of many ri
based fees charged to borrowers when refinanc)gthé expansion of the previous 125% loawvabtie ceiling to allow a
underwater borrowers (those borrowers who owe mar¢heir mortgages than the value of their homeg)articipate in th
program, regardless of the size of their loan \&the value of their home and (3) the removal ofade representations a
warranties made on behalf of lenders for loans @woreguaranteed by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac, amtmgy changes. The
refinancing opportunities will only be available borrowers with loans originated prior to June Q02 that are owned
guaranteed by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac and, dsise the expansion of HARP as described above,sabgect to th
restrictions originally put in place for the prograAlthough it is not yet possible to gauge thém#dtte success of HARP Il a
the expansion announcement, the FHi=Actions present the opportunity for many borrewaho previously could not, to te
advantage of the ability to refinance their mortgminto lower interest rates, possibly resultindpigher prepayment speed:
the future. This could negatively impact our AgerR¥IBS, particularly the performance of our Agen&s| however, it i
unknown at this time what the ultimate impact ved on our portfolia Moreover, in his annual State of the Union Addres
January 24, 2012, President Obama announced hie f@sthe U.S. Congress to pass legislation whatld extend this polic
to non-Agency borrowers with standard (nhmnbo) loans who are current with their mortgaggnpnts. However, .
discussed above, many political analysts beliea¢ sbich legislation is unlikely to be passed byWh8. Congress prior to t
2012 presidential election.
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. On August 31, 2011, the SEC published a conceptsel (No. IC-29778; File No. SW7-34; Companies Engaged in
Business of Acquiring Mortgages and Mortgd®elated Instruments) pursuant to which it is revigwwhether certa
companies that invest in mortgalgacked securities and rely on the exemption frogisteation under Section 3(c)(5)(C) of
Investment Company Act should continue to be altbteerely on such exemption from registration. Tiakease suggests t
the SEC may modify the exemption relied upon by pganies similar to us that invest in mortgage loamd mortgagéacke:
securities.

Developments at Fannie Mae and Freddie Ma®ayments on the Agency RMBS in which we investqararanteed by Fannie NV
and Freddie Mac. As broadly publicized, Fannie Mad Freddie Mac have experienced significant logsescent years, and are prese
under federal conservatorship as the U.S. Goverhemmtinues to evaluate the futures of these estitind what role the U.S. Governn
should continue to play in the housing marketshia future. The scope and nature of the actionsttieat).S. Government will ultimate
undertake with respect to the future of Fannie Maé Freddie Mac are unknown and will continue tole. New regulations and progra
related to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac may adveedédgt the pricing, supply, liquidity and value RMBS and otherwise materially ha
our business and operations.

Credit Spreads Over the past few years, the credit markets gdigeexperienced tightening credit spreads (spealify, spreac
between U.S. Treasury securities and other seesyrithainly due to the strong demand for lendingoopities. However, during the past tr
months, the credit markets experienced signifisgmead widening due to a series of factors, inagidioncerns related to a possible gl
economic slowdown, the European sovereign debtscansd continued concern with respect to certai. Womestic economic polici
Additionally, HARP Il has created a perception thegpayment speeds will rise in the near futurerehy placing additional pressure on ci
spreads. Finally, during the third quarter of 2Qhé& 10 year U.S treasury note reached a yield G2%, a historic low and increased ¢
marginally during the fourth quarter of 2011. Afltbese factors have contributed to significantemithg of credit spreads, which typically hi
negative impact on credit-sensitive assets suctL&s and multi-family CMBS, as well as Agency IOs.

Financing markets and liquidit. The availability of repurchase agreement finagds stable with interest rates between 0.30%
0.60% for 30-90 day repurchase agreements. TheagQ-andon Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBORMas 0.30% at December 30, 2011, mar
an increase of approximately 6 basis points fropt&eber 30, 2011, and an increase of 4 basis plsmts the previous year end. While
expect interest rates to rise over the longer tevenpelieve that interest rates, and thus our gbkom financing costs, are likely to remai
these historically low levels until such time as #tonomic data begin to confirm an acceleratioovefall economic recovery.

Prepayment ratesAs a result of various government initiatives ainel reduction in intermediate and longerm treasury yields, rat
on conforming mortgages have reached and remainleidtarical lows during the second half of 2011 amto early 2012. While these trel
have historically resulted in higher rates of refining and thus higher prepayment speeds, we centinexperience relatively low prepayn
rates for the current interest rate environment.
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Note Regarding Discontinued Operation

In connection with the sale of our wholesale andirenortgage lending platform assets in 2007, Vessified our mortgage lendi
business as a discontinued operation. As a reselthave reported revenues and expenses relatdtke tmmortgage lending business
discontinued operation and the related assetsialpitities as assets and liabilities related tasza@htinued operation for all periods presente
the accompanying consolidated financial statemeZrstain assets and liabilities, such as our dedfetax asset and our subordinated deb
part of our ongoing operations and accordingly,ehaet been classified as a discontinued operafisnof December 31, 2011 and 2C
discontinued operations consist of $4.0 milliorassets (including $3.8 million in loans held fote3aand $0.5 million in liabilities, and $¢
million in assets and $0.6 million in liabilitiesgspectively, and are included in receivables aheéroassets and accrued expenses and
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheetsudet in this Annual Report.

The discontinued operations had net income of $dillion and $1.1 million for the years ended DecemB1, 2011 and 201

respectively. We continue to wind down the disamntid operations and anticipate to be substantialtgplete with such winding down by -
end of 2012.

45




Financial Condition

As of December 31, 2011, we had approximately $6&2llion of total assets, as compared to approsetgab374.3 million of tot:
assets as of December 31, 2010. The increaseainaggtets is primarily a function of more fully @sting our available capital on a levered t
and our increased capital base, which resulted feosing additional capital during the year.

Investment Allocation

The following table sets forth our allocated equityinvestment type at December 31, 2011:

Multi-
Agency Family Securitized

(dollar amounts in thousands) ARMs Agency |0s CMBS Loans Other @) Total
Carrying value $ 68,77¢ $ 63,68. $ 41,188 $ 206,92( $ 44,30 $ 424,86
Liabilities

Callable® (56,919 (49,226 (21,53)) - (6,53%) (134,209

Non callable - - (199,762) (45,000 (244,767
Hedges (NetP (304 9,317 - - = 9,01z
Cash - 16,53¢ - - 16,58¢ 33,12:
Other - 1,33: - - (3,057 (1,729
Net equity allocated $ 11,55¢ $ 4164: $ 19,65« $ 7,15¢ $ 6,29t $ 86,30

@ Other includes CLOs, investment in limited parthgrs loans held for investment and ndgency RMBS. Other callable liabiliti
include a $6.5 million repurchase agreement on ©uO securities and other naalable liabilities consist of $45.0 million
subordinated debentures.

) Includes repurchase agreements and $21.5 millipayables for securities purchased related to auti-fiamily CMBS strategy.
® Includes derivative assets, receivable for seesrgbld, derivative liabilities, payable for setias purchased and restricted cash posted
as margin.

Balance Sheet Analysis

Investment Securities - Available for Sale At December 31, 2011, our securities portfolimsists of Agency RMBS, includil
Agency ARM pass-through certificates and Agency, IOBIBS, nonAgency RMBS and CLOs. At December 31, 2011, we fathvestmer
securities in a single issuer or entity, other tRannie Mae, that had an aggregate book valuedessxof 10% of our total assets. The folloy
tables set forth the balances of our investmenirgtezs available for sale as of December 31, 281dd 2010, respectively:

Balances of Our Investment Securities (dollar amous in thousands):

Par Carrying % of
December 31, 2011 Value Value Portfolio
Agency RMBS:
I0s $ 537,03. $ 63,68! 31.€%
ARMs 65,11: 68,77¢ 34.2%
CMBS:
I0s 850,82: 6,25¢ 3.1%
POs 138,38t 34,92, 17.5%
Non-Agency RMBS 6,07¢ 3,94¢ 1.%
Collateralized Loan Obligations 35,55( 22,75k 11.4%
Total $ 1,632,981 $ 200,34 100.(%
Par Carrying % of
December 31, 2010 Value Value Portfolio
Agency RMBS $ 45,04: $ 47,52¢ 55.2%
Non-Agency RMBS 11,10¢ 8,98t 10.4%

Collateralized Loan Obligations 45,95( 29,52¢ 34.2%




Total $ 102,09t $ 86,04( 100.(%
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CMBS Loan Characteristics

The following table details our CMBS loan charaisties (first loss securities) as of December 3, 22(dollar amounts in thousands,
except as noted). We did not invest in CMBS prio2®11.

December 31,

2011

Current balance of loans $ 3,457,29°
Number of loan: 234
Weighted average original LTV 68.0%
Weighted average underwritten debt service coveratie 1.52x
Current average loan size $ 14,77¢
Weighted average original loan term (in months) 117
Weighted average current remaining term (in months) 101
Weighted average loan rate 5.25%
First mortgages 100%
Geographic state concentration (greater than 5.0%):

Texas 14.3%

California 9.3%

New York 7.2%

Georgia 6.7%

Washington 6.3%

Florida 5.5%

Detailed Composition of Loans Securitizing Our CLOs

The following tables summarize the loans securigizbur CLOs grouped by range of outstanding balamckindustry as of Decem|
31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (dollar amounthdusands).

As of December 31, 201 As of December 31, 2010
Range of Number of Maturity Number of Maturity
Outstanding Balance Loans Date Total Principal Loans Date Total Principal
8/2015- 11/2014-
$0 - $60C 20 11/201¢ $ 8,58: 11 11/201° $ 5,40¢
12/2012- 5/2013-
$500 - $£,00( 10z 12/201¢ 147,59¢ 72 12/201° 95,70«
4/2013- 8/2012-
$2,000 - $,00( 84 9/201¢ 250,01( 88 11/201° 276,26!
2/2013- 11/2011-
$5,000 - $0,00( 6 3/201¢ 35,62: 11 3/201¢ 77,36¢

Total 218 $ 441,81 182 $ 454,73¢

47




December 31, 2011

Industry

Healthcare, Education & Childcare

Retail Store

Electronics

Telecommunications

Chemicals, Plastics and Rubber
Diversified/Conglomerate Service

Beverage, Food & Tobacco

Leisure, Amusement, Motion Pictures & Entertainment
Personal & Non-Durable Consumer Products
Aerospace & Defense

Utilities

Hotels, Motels, Inns and Gaming

Personal, Food & Misc. Services

Containers, Packaging and Glass

Finance

Printing & Publishing

Automobile

Diversified/Conglomerate Mfg.

Banking

Broadcasting & Entertainment

Mining, Steel, Iron and Non-Precious Metals
Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non-Construction & Ndtlectronic)
Textiles & Leather

Personal Transportation

Grocery

Buildings and Real Estate

Insurance

Diversified Natural Resources, Precious Metals lintkrals
Ecological

Farming & Agriculture

Cargo Transport

48

% of
Number of Outstanding Outstanding

Loans Balance Balance
24 $ 61,543 13.9%
14 35,704 8.1%
13 31,721 7.2%
13 27,638 6.3%
12 25,336 5.7%
15 22,320 5.1%
10 20,274 4.6%
8 18,904 4.3%
8 18,203 4.1%
10 17,254 3.9%
5 16,723 3.8%
5 15,914 3.6%
12 14,598 3.3%
7 14,493 3.3%
8 11,471 2.6%
4 11,404 2.6%
7 9,829 2.2%
6 9,643 2.2%
3 8,777 2.0%
3 6,293 1.4%
3 6,242 1.4%
4 6,029 1.4%
5 5,281 1.2%
2 4,969 1.1%
3 4,911 1.1%
2 4,887 1.1%
2 4,352 1.0%
1 2,227 0.5%
2 1,984 0.4%
1 1,900 0.4%
1 990 0.2%

213 $ 441,814 100.0%




December 31, 2010

Industry

Healthcare, Education & Childcare
Retail Store

Electronics

Telecommunications

Leisure , Amusement, Motion Pictures & Entertainimen
Personal, Food & Misc Services
Chemicals, Plastics and Rubber
Beverage, Food & Tobacco
Utilities

Aerospace & Defense

Insurance

Hotels, Motels, Inns and Gaming
Farming & Agriculture

Cargo Transport
Diversified/Conglomerate Mfg
Personal & Non-Durable Consumer Products
Printing & Publishing
Diversified/Conglomerate Service
Broadcasting & Entertainment
Ecological

Finance

Containers, Packaging and Glass

Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non-Construction & Ndtlectronic)

Personal Transportation

Buildings and Real Estate

Banking

Automobile

Mining, Steel, Iron and Non-Precious Metals

Textiles & Leather

Oil & Gas

Grocery

Diversified Natural Resources, Precious Metals Mirterals

% of
Number of Outstanding Outstanding

Loans Balance Balance

19 52,537 11.55%
10 29,388 6.46%
10 29,148 6.41%
13 26,410 5.81%
10 22,316 4.91%
10 21,179 4.66%
9 20,962 4.61%
9 18,666 4.10%
5 17,035 3.75%
7 16,468 3.62%
3 16,245 3.57%
5 15,389 3.38%
5 14,983 3.29%
3 14,372 3.16%
6 13,914 3.06%
5 13,774 3.03%
4 11,944 2.63%
5 10,841 2.38%
4 10,037 2.21%
4 8,763 1.93%
3 7,803 1.72%
4 7,635 1.68%
4 7,482 1.65%
3 7,306 1.61%
3 6,970 1.53%
2 6,750 1.48%
5 6,544 1.44%
3 5,466 1.20%
3 4,359 0.96%
2 3,994 0.88%
3 3,808 0.84%
1 2,251 0.49%

182 454,739 100.00%




Mortgage Loans Held in Securitization Trustdncluded in our portfolio are prime ARM loans thvet originated or purchased in b
from third parties that met our investment criteaiiad portfolio requirements and that we subsequesgturitized. We have completed f
securitizations; three were classified as finarngiagd one, New York Mortgage Trust 20D6qualified as a sale, which resulted in
recording of residual assets and mortgage serviignds.

At December 31, 2011, mortgage loans held in sezation trusts totaled approximately $206.9 miili@r 30.3% of our total asse
The Company has a net equity investment of apprateiy $7.6 million in the three securitization tsiat December 31, 2011. Of the mortc
loans held in securitized trusts, 100% are trad@&icARMs or hybrid ARMs, 81.7% of which are ARM lmathat are interest only. On ¢
hybrid ARMs, interest rate reset periods are preadately five years or less and the interesly period is typically 10 years, which mitige
the “payment shock” at the time of interest ratseteNone of the mortgage loans held in securitinatrusts are payment optidkRMs ol
ARMSs with negative amortization.

The following table details mortgage loans heldécuritization trusts at December 31, 2011 and 2@&Kpectively (dollar amounts
thousands):

# of Loans Par Value Coupon Carrying Value
December 31, 2011 512 $ 208,93: 282% $ 206,92(
December 31, 2010 556 $ 229,32: 3.16% $ 228,18!
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Characteristics of Our Mortgage Loans Held in Sétizetion:

The following table sets forth the composition afr doans held in securitization trusts as of Decerr@il, 2011 (dollar amounts

thousands):

General Loan Characteristics:

Original Loan Balance (dollar amounts in thousands)

Current Coupon Rate

Gross Margin

Lifetime Cap

Original Term (Months)
Remaining Term (Months)
Average Months to Reset
Original Average FICO Score
Original Average LTV

Index Type/Gross Margin:

One Month LIBOR

Six Month LIBOR

One Year LIBOR

One Year Constant Maturity Treasury

Total

Average High Low
$ 44t $ 2,95 $ 48
2.82% 7.25% 1.38%
2.3% 4.1% 1.1%%
11.2% 13.25% 9.12%
36C 36C 36C
28C 28¢ 247
4 11 1
72¢ 81¢ 59z
70.41% 95.0(% 13.94%
Weighted
Average
% of Outstanding Gross Margin
Loan Balance (%)
2.8% 1.6%
72.% 2.4(%
16.4% 2.26%
7.9% 2.6404
100.(% 2.38%

The following table sets forth the composition af tans held in securitization trusts as of Deceindi, 2010 (dollar amounts in

thousands):

General Loan Characteristics:

Original Loan Balance (dollar amounts in thousands)

Current Coupon Rate

Gross Margin

Lifetime Cap

Original Term (Months)
Remaining Term (Months)
Average Months to Reset
Original Average FICO Score
Original Average LTV

Index Type/Gross Margin:

One Month LIBOR

Six Month LIBOR

One Year LIBOR

One Year Constant Maturity Treasury

Total

Average High Low
$ 443 % 295( $ 48
3.16% 7.25% 1.36%
2.36% 4.1% 1.15%
11.2¢% 13.25% 9.15%
36C 36C 36C
292 30C 25¢
4 11 1
72¢ 81¢ 59z
70.48% 95.0(% 13.9/%
Weighted

% of Outstanding

Loan Balance

Average Gross
Margin (%)

2.€%
72.%
16.€%
7.S%

100.(%
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The following table details loan summary informatfor loans held in securitization trusts at Decenil, 2011 (dollar amounts in
thousands):

Principal
Amount of

Loans

Subject to
Periodic Original ~ Current  Delinquent

Description Interest Rate Final Maturity Payment Amount  Amount  Principal

Property Loan Term  Prior of of or

Type Balance  Count Max Min Avg Min Max (months) Liens Principal Principal Interest
Single  <=$100 14 3.0C 2.5C 2.8¢ 09/01/3+ 11/01/3! 36C NA $ 165¢ $ 1,058 $ =
FAMILY <=$250 71 4.5C 2.5(C 2.9¢ 09/01/3: 12/01/3! 36C NA  16,29¢ 13,10% 95¢€
<= $500 89 3.7 2.5C 2.87 07/01/3¢ 01/01/3¢ 36C NA  33,89¢ 31,05¢ 6,13t
<=$1,000 34 3.5C 1.5C 2.77 08/01/3. 12/01/3! 36C NA  27,12; 25,36¢ 3,411
>$1,000 21 3.2E 2.6 2.81 01/01/3¢ 11/01/3! 36C NA  37,35] 36,81 9,041
Summary 22¢ 4.5C 1.5C 2.8¢ 09/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA $116,33. $107,39° $  19,54¢
2-4 <= $100 2 3.65 3.0C 3.31 02/01/3¢ 07/01/3t 36C NA $ 21z $ 16€ $ 75
FAMILY <=$250 6 3.6 2.6: 3.0z 12/01/3: 07/01/3! 36C NA 1,28: 1,09¢ -
<= $500 15 7.28 2.1¢ 3.1C 09/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA 5,554 5,13¢ 254
<=$1,000 - - - - - - 36C NA - - -
>$1,000 - - - - - - 36C NA - - -
Summary 23 7.2 2.1° 3.1C 09/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA $ 7,04¢ $ 6,39 $ 32¢
Condo <=$100 13 3.2E 2.6 2.81 01/01/3¢ 12/01/3! 36 NA $ 1,64C $ 844 $ -
<= $250 72 3.5C 1.5C 2.9t 02/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA 14,297 12,41 46€
<= $500 58 3.7¢ 2.3¢ 2.8¢ 09/01/3: 12/01/3! 36C NA  20,94: 18,89 -
<=$1,000 14 3.8¢ 1.62 2.7¢ 08/01/3. 09/01/3! 36C NA  10,33¢ 9,99¢ -
> $1,000 10 2.8¢ 2.6 2.72 01/01/3¢ 09/01/3¢ 36C NA 14,91« 14,55¢ -
Summary 167 3.8¢ 1.5C 2.8¢ 09/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA $ 62,13: $ 56,70 $ 46€
CO-OP <=$100 4 2.8¢ 2.5C 2.6¢ 10/01/3+ 08/01/3! 36 NA $ 443 $ 30€ $ =
<= $250 15 3.3¢ 2.2¢ 2.7¢ 10/01/3: 12/01/3! 36C NA 3,42 2,57: 21z
<= $500 23 3.5C 1.3¢ 2.7¢ 08/01/3: 12/01/3! 36C NA 9,537 8,23:¢ -
<=$1,000 11 2.8¢ 2.6: 2.6¢ 12/01/3: 10/01/3! 36C NA 8,56: 8,321 -
> $1,000 4 2.7t 2.2t 2.5¢ 11/01/3: 12/01/3! 36C NA 5,65¢ 5,232 -
Summary 57 3.5C 1.3¢ 2.7z 08/01/3: 12/01/3! 36C NA $ 27,62t $ 24,668 $ 212
PUD <= $100 1 2.6% 2.6 2.6z 07/01/3t 07/01/3¢ 36C NA $ 10C $ 89 $ -
<= $250 18 3.1 2.5C 2.87 08/01/3t 12/01/3! 36C NA 3,95¢ 3,65¢ 16C
<= $500 10 3.0C 2.6¢ 2.8¢ 08/01/3: 12/01/3t 36C NA 3,66¢ 3,42z 31t
<=$1,000 4 3.2E 2.7¢ 2.9¢ 05/01/3: 07/01/3! 36C NA 2,832 2,59t -
>$1,000 3 2.8¢ 2.7¢ 2.8 04/01/3+ 12/01/3! 36C NA 4,14¢ 4,011 -
Summary 36 3.2F 2.5C 2.87 08/01/3: 12/01/3! 36C NA $ 14,70 $ 13,770 $ 478
Summary <= $100 34 3.65 2.5C 2.8 09/01/3: 12/01/3! 36C NA $ 4,05: $ 2462 $ 75
<= $250 182 4.5C 1.5C 2.9¢ 08/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA  39,26( 32,84¢ 1,79¢
<= $500 19t 7.28 1.3¢ 2.87 08/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA 73,59 66,73¢ 6,70¢
<=$1,000 63 3.8¢ 1.5C 2.717 08/01/3. 12/01/3! 36C NA  48,85¢ 46,27¢ 3,411
> $1,000 38 3.2E 2.2t 2.77 04/01/3:+ 12/01/3! 36C NA  62,07¢ 60,61: 9,047

Grand

Total 512 7.28 1.3¢ 2.8z 08/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA $227,84: $208,93: $ 21,03
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The following table details loan summary informatfor loans held in securitization trusts at Decenil, 2010 (dollar amounts in
thousands):

Principal
Amount of
Loans
Subject to
Periodic Original  Current Delinquent
Description Interest Rate Final Maturity Payment Amount  Amount  Principal
Property Loan Term  Prior of of or
Type Balance  Count Max Min Avg Min Max (months) Liens Principal Principal Interest
Single <=$100 12 3.8¢ 2.6 3.21 12/01/3+ 11/01/3! 36C NA $ 150¢ $ 914 $ =
FAMILY  <=$250 70 6.25 2.6: 3.4C 09/01/3: 12/01/3! 36C NA  14,58( 12,61¢ 417
<=$500 10¢ 6.5C 2.6 3.2 10/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA  39,29¢ 35,98! 7,60¢
<=$1,000 39 5.7¢ 1.5C 3.01 08/01/3¢ 12/01/3! 36C NA  31,12¢ 29,23¢ 3,411
>$1,000 21 3.2t 2.7¢ 2.97 01/01/3¢ 11/01/3! 36C NA  37,35] 36,857 10,16:
Summary 24E 6.5C 1.5C 3.2z 09/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA $123,87. $115,600 $  21,59¢
2-4 <=$100 1 3.8¢ 3.8¢ 3.8¢ 02/01/3¢ 02/01/3! 36C NA $ 80 $ 73 $ 75
FAMILY <=$250 7 4.0C 2.7¢ 3.2 12/01/3: 07/01/3! 36C NA 1,41¢F 1,221 191
<=$500 15 7.28 2.1¢ 3.5 09/01/3+ 01/01/3¢ 36C NA 5,554 5,25¢ 254
<=$1,000 - - - - - - 36C NA - - -
>$1,000 - - - - - - 36C NA - - -
Summary 23 7.28 2.1° 3.46¢ 09/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA $ 7,04¢ $ 6,550 $ 52C
Condo <=$100 15 3.5C 2.7¢ 3.0¢ 01/01/3¢ 12/01/3! 36C NA $ 1912 $ 93¢ % 55
<=$250 74 6.3¢ 2.7¢ 3.3¢ 02/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA  14,51: 13,03¢ 444
<= $500 64 6.25 1.5C 3.2C 09/01/3: 12/01/3! 36C NA 21,95} 20,84« 27z
<=$1,000 21 4.0C 1.65 2.9¢ 08/01/3. 10/01/3t 36C NA  15,48¢ 14,55¢ -
> $1,000 10 3.2E 2.7 2.9¢ 01/01/3¢ 09/01/3! 36C NA 14,91« 14,65« -
Summary 184 6.3¢ 1.5C 3.21 09/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA $ 68,78 $ 64,03C $ 771
CO-OP <=$100 4 3.0C 2.6 2.8¢ 10/01/3: 08/01/3¢ 36 NA $ 443 $ 331 % =
<=$250 19 6.12 2.2¢ 3.1¢ 10/01/3+ 12/01/3! 36C NA 4,13t 3,39¢ 21z
<= $500 26 6.3¢ 1.3¢ 3.1€¢ 08/01/3: 12/01/3! 36C NA 10,72« 9,53t -
<=$1,000 12 3.2E 2.7¢ 2.91 12/01/3: 10/01/3! 36C NA 9,08¢ 8,89¢ -
> $1,000 4 6.0C 2.2t 3.4¢ 11/01/3: 12/01/3! 36C NA 5,65¢ 5,33¢ -
Summary 65 6.3¢ 1.3¢ 3.1¢ 08/01/3: 12/01/3! 36C NA $ 30,05 $ 27,49t $ 212
PUD <= $100 1 3.0C 3.0C 3.0C 07/01/3¢ 07/01/3! 36C NA $ 10C $ 92 $ -
<=$250 16 6.5C 2.6t 3.66€ 01/01/3¢ 12/01/3! 36C NA 3,26( 3,09z 115
<=$500 14 6.1% 2.6¢ 3.37 08/01/3: 12/01/3! 36C NA 4,96¢ 4,671 77C
<=$1,000 4 3.5C 2.7¢ 3.1¢ 05/01/3: 07/01/3! 36C NA 2,832 2,65( -
> $1,000 4 6.1% 2.7¢ 3.66¢ 04/01/3: 12/01/3! 36C NA 5,23 5,13¢ 1,08t
Summary 39 6.5C 2.6° 3.4¢ 08/01/3: 12/01/3! 36C NA $ 16,39 $ 15,63¢ $ 1,96¢
Summary <= $100 33 3.8¢ 2.6¢ 3.1C 10/01/3: 12/01/3! 36C NA $ 404: $ 234¢ 3 13C
<=$250 18€ 6.5C 2.2¢ 3.3¢ 09/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA  37,90: 33,36: 1,377
<=$500 222 7.28 1.3¢ 3.2z 08/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA  82,50: 76,28¢ 8,90z
<=$1,000 76 5.7¢ 1.5C 2.9¢ 08/01/3¢ 12/01/3! 36C NA  58,53¢ 55,34( 3,411
> $1,000 39 6.1% 2.2t 3.0¢ 04/01/3+ 12/01/3! 36C NA  63,16: 61,98¢ 11,247
Grand
Total 55€ 7.28 1.3¢ 3.1€¢ 08/01/3: 01/01/3¢ 36C NA $246,14¢ $229,320 $ 25,06
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The following table details activity for loans hetdsecuritization trusts (net) for the year enBetember 31, 2011 (dollar amounts in
thousands):

Allowance for Net Carrying
Principal Premium Loan Losses Value
Balance, January 1, 2011 $ 229,320 % 1,451 $ (2,589 $ 228,18!
Principal repayments (19,679 — — (19,679
Provision for loan loss — — (1,380 (1,380
Transfer to real estate owned (890) — 19z (69¢)
Charge-Offs 17t — 44¢ 621
Amortization for premium — (139 — (1349
Balance, December 31, 2011 $ 208,93: $ 1,317 $ (3,33) $ 206,92(

The following table details activity for loans hetdsecuritization trusts (net) for the year en®etember 31, 2010 (dollar amounts in
thousands)

Allowance for Net Carrying
Principal Premium Loan Losses Value
Balance, January 1, 2010 $ 277,000 $ 1,75C $ (2,58]) $ 276,17¢
Principal repayments (45,72 — — (45,729
Provision for loan loss — — (1,560 (2,560
Transfer to real estate owned (1,969 — 564 (1,399
Charge-Offs — — 98¢ 98¢
Amortization for premium — (299) — (299)
Balance, December 31, 2010 $ 229,32 % 1,451 $ (2,589 $ 228,18!

Delinquency Status of Our Mortgage Loans Held ioui&zation Trusts (Net. As of December 31, 2011, we had 38 delinquemtddataling
approximately $21.0 million categorized as mortgéms held in securitization trusts (net). Of $&1.0 million in delinquent loans, $1i
million, or 86%, were currently under some fornmoddified payment plan at December 31, 2011. A sutiitl number of the loans reflectes
the tables below at each of December 31, 2011 a6 are the same loans as the foreclosure proeeske multiple years to be comple
particularly in certain states, including New YoMassachusetts and New Jersey. Loans originatpdlicial states are required to go thro
the supervision of a court for foreclosure resolutiThe table below shows delinquencies in ourfpliotof loans held in securitization trusts
of December 31, 2011 (dollar amounts in thousands):

Number of Total % of
Days Late Delinquent Loans Dollar Amount Loan Portfolio
30-60 2 $ 517 0.25%
61-90 1 $ 37¢ 0.1&%
90+ 35 $ 20,13¢ 9.61%
Real Estate Owned (REO) 3 $ 65€ 0.31%

As of December 31, 2010, we had 46 delinquent ldataing approximately $25.1 million categorizesl mortgage loans held
securitization trusts (net). Of the $25.1 milliondelinquent loans, $17.8 million, or 71%, were emsome form of modified payment plai
December 31, 2010. The table below shows delindesric our portfolio of loans held in securitizatitrusts as of December 31, 2010 (d«
amounts in thousands):

Number of Total % of
Days Late Delinquent Loans Dollar Amount Loan Portfolio
30-60 7 $ 2,51¢ 1.0%
61-90 4 % 4,36% 1.8%
90+ IS 18,19! 7.9(%
Real Estate Owned (REO) 3 % 894 0.3¢%

Interest is recognized as revenue when earneddingao the terms of the mortgage loans and whrethe opinion of management
is collectible. The accrual of interest on loandiscontinued when, in managemesnpinion, the interest is not collectible in themal cours
of business, but in no case beyond when paymeatloan becomes 90 days delinquent. Interest celieah loans for which accrual has
discontinued is recognized as income upon receipt.
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Equity Investment in Limited PartnershipThe following table details loan summary informatiéor loans held in the limite
partnership in which we have an equity interestfd3ecember 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, wisictcounted for under the equity met
(dollar amounts in thousands):

Loan Summary December 31, 201
Number of Loan: 64
Aggregate Current Loan Balance $ 9,654
Average Current Loan Balance $ 151
Weighted Average Original Term (Months) 375
Weighted Average Remaining Term (Months) 311
Weighted Average Gross Coupon (%) 7.02%
Weighted Average Original Loan-to-Value of Loan (%) 85.69%
Average Cost-to-Principal of Asset at Funding (%) 70.81%
Fixed Rate Mortgages (%) 55.55%
Adjustable Rate Mortgages (%) 44.45%
First Lien Mortgages (%) 100.00%
Loan Summary December 31, 201
Number of Loan: 159
Aggregate Current Loan Balance $ 26,953
Average Current Loan Balance $ 170
Weighted Average Original Term (Months) 377
Weighted Average Remaining Term (Months) 326
Weighted Average Gross Coupon (%) 6.80%
Weighted Average Original Loan-to-Value of Loan (%) 86.60%
Average Cost-to-Principal of Asset at Funding (%) 66.99%
Fixed Rate Mortgages (%) 69.63%
Adjustable Rate Mortgages (%) 30.37%
First Lien Mortgages (%) 100.00%

Financing Arrangements, Portfolio InvestmentsAs of December 31, 2011, there were approximat&y2% million of repurcha:
borrowings outstanding. Our repurchase agreemgptsally have terms of 30 days or less. As of Deben31, 2011, the current weigh
average borrowing rate on these financing facilitieas 0.71%. For the year ended December 31, 204 Ending balance, yearly average
maximum balance at any mongmd for our repurchase agreement borrowings wetd.81million, $85.6 million and $123.8 millic
respectively.

Collateralized Debt Obligations As of December 31, 2011, we had $199.8 millioncoliateralized debt obligations, or CDt
outstanding with a weighted average interest rae68%.

Subordinated DebenturesAs of December 31, 2011, one of our wholly ownebssdiaries had trust preferred securities outstay
of $45.0 million with a weighted average interesterof 4.35%. The securities are fully guarantegdi® with respect to distributions ¢
amounts payable upon liquidation, redemption oayepent. These securities are classified as sutatetirdebentures in the liability sectior
our consolidated balance sheet included in thisuahReport.

Our subordinated debentures in the amount of $2dBomihave a floating interest rate equal to threenth LIBOR plus 3.759
resetting quarterly; the interest rate on theselibated debentures was 4.33% at December 31, AbiEke securities mature on March
2035 and may be called at par by us any time dtch 15, 2010. The subsidiary that issued theseriies entered into an interest rate
agreement to limit the maximum interest rate cdéshese trust preferred securities to 7.5% throMiginch 15, 2010, at which point the inte
rate cap expired.

Our subordinated debentures in the amount of $2@®mhad a fixed interest rate equal to 8.35% ajautd including July 30, 2010,
which point the interest rate converted to a flogitrate equal to oneonth LIBOR plus 3.95% until maturity; the interaste on thes
subordinated debentures was 4.38% at Decembel031, Zhe securities mature on October 30, 2035naag be called at par by us any t
after October 30, 2010.

Convertible Preferred Debentures The Company issued $20.0 million in Series A Cotibler Preferred Stock that matured
December 31, 2010. The outstanding shares wereemeste by the Company at the $20.00 per share lijoidgreference plus accrt
dividends on December 31, 2010.
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Derivative Assets and Liabilitie$Ve generally hedge the risks related to changéegeénest rates related to our borrowings as we
market values of our overall portfolio.

In order to reduce our interest rate risk relatedur borrowings, we may utilize various hedgingtinments, such as interest rate <
agreement contracts whereby we receive floating patyments in exchange for fixed rate paymentgctdfely converting our short te
repurchase agreement borrowings or CDOs to a fiated At December 31, 2011, the Company had $24l®mof notional amount of intere
rate swaps outstanding with a fair market liabibglue of $0.3 million. The interest rate swapslidpas cash flow hedges for financ
reporting purposes.

In addition to utilizing interest rate swaps, weynpurchase or sell short U.S. Treasury securitreenter into Eurodollar or ot
futures contracts or options to help mitigate tlogeptial impact of changes in interest rates onpdormance of our Agency I0s. We r
borrow securities to cover short sales of U.S. Sueasecurities under reverse repurchase agreenwataccount for the securities borrow
transactions as reverse repurchase agreementsraomaolidated balance sheet. Short sales of Wé&asliry securities are accounted fc
securities sold short, at fair value. Realized angkalized gains and losses associated with purshasd short sales of U.S. Treasury secu
and Eurodollar or other futures are recognizeduioearnings in the consolidated statements ofatipes.

The Company uses TBAs, U.S. Treasury securitiesthB8d Treasury futures and options to hedge inteegs risk, as well as spre
risk associated with its investments in Agency IBa. example, we may utilize TBAs to hedge therggéerate or yield spread risk inherer
our long Agency RMBS by taking short positions iBAS that are similar in character. In a TBA trarigag we would agree to purchase
sell, for future delivery, Agency RMBS with certgmmincipal and interest terms and certain typesiraderlying collateral, but the particL
Agency RMBS to be delivered is not identified urstilortly before the TBA settlement date. The Comgptgpically does not take delivery
TBAs, but rather settles with its trading countetiga on a net basis. TBAs are liquid and have egiobharket prices and represent the |
actively traded class of RMBS. For TBA contractatttve have entered into, we have not assertegtyaical settlement is probable. Bec:
we have not designated these forward commitmemstsceged with our Agency 10s as hedging instrumemalized and unrealized gains
losses associated with these TBAs, U.S. Treaswyrisies and U.S. Treasury futures and optionsrapegnized through earnings in
consolidated statements of operations.

The use of TBAs exposes the Company to market viadlke as the market value of the securities that Company is required
purchase pursuant to a TBA transaction may detlélew the agreedpon purchase price. Conversely, the market valubeosecurities th
the Company is required to sell pursuant to a TEafagaction may increase above the agreed upompsede The use of TBAs associated \
our Agency 10 investments creates significant stearh payables (and/or receivables) on our balaheet. For more information regarding
use of TBAs please see Note 6 - “Derivative Instata and Hedging Activities”included in Item 8 bfs¢ Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Derivative financial instruments may contain cretfk to the extent that the institutional counteties may be unable to meet
terms of the agreements. We minimize this riskilmting our counterparties to major financial ingtions with good credit ratings. In additi
we regularly monitor the potential risk of loss lwiny one party resulting from this type of craik. Accordingly, we do not expect ¢
material losses as a result of default by othetiggrbut cannot guarantee we do not have countgrizalures.

The following table presents the fair value of dative instruments designated as hedging instrusnantl their location in tl
Company’s consolidated balance sheets at Decenib@031 and 2010, respectively (dollar amounthigqusands):

Balance Sheet December 31, December 31,
Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instruments Location 2011 2010
Interest Rate Swaps Derivative liabilities $ 304 $ 1,087

At December 31, 2011, we had $24.8 million in nagibinterest rate swaps outstanding. Should maegkes for similar term intere
rate swaps drop below the fixed rates we have dge®n our interest rate swaps, we will be reqlie post additional margin to the sv
counterparty, reducing available liquidity. At Dedger 31, 2011, the Company pledged $0.6 milliorcash margin to cover decrea
valuations for our interest rate swaps. The weiglateerage maturity of the swaps was 0.6 years e¢idber 31, 2011.
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Our investment in Agency IOs involves several typkderivative instruments used to hedge the olvesld profile of our investmen
in Agency 10s. This hedging technique is dynamimature and requires frequent adjustments, whiclrdingly makes it very difficult 1
qualify for hedge accounting treatment. Hedge anting treatment requires specific identificationaofisk or group of risks and then requ
that we designate a particular trade to that rigk wo minimal ability to adjust over the life dfi¢ transaction. Because we and our ext
manager are frequently adjusting these derivatisgruments in response to current market conditieshave determined to account for all
derivative instruments related to our Agency IOestvynents as derivatives not designated as hedgstgiiments. The following table prese
the fair value of derivative instruments relatedtw Agency IO investments that were not designatetiedging instruments and their loce
in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets atleer 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (dollar artsomthousands):

Derivatives Not Designated December 31, December 31,
as Hedging Instruments Balance Sheet Location 2011 2010
TBA securities Derivative assets $ 207,891 $ —
Options on U.S. Treasury futures Derivative assets 327 —
U.S. Treasury futures Derivative liabilities 566 —
Eurodollar futures Derivative liabilities 1,74¢ —

For the year ended December 31, 2011, we recoréedemlized gains of $2.9 million and unrealizedngaof $1.4 million it
connection with TBA transactions. There were ndized or unrealized gains or losses from TBAs fa@ same period in 2010. As of Decen
31, 2011, the fair value of our TBAs totaled $20m#Blion with a corresponding liability of $206.8iltion included in payable for securiti
purchased.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, we recoreeckalized losses of $0.2 million and net unreailfosses of $0.7 million frg
U.S. Treasury futures and options. There were atized or unrealized gains or losses from U.S. Jueasecurities, U.S. Treasury future
options for the same period in 2010.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, we recorefeckalized losses of $2.0 million and net unrealilosses of $1.7 million on ¢
Eurodollar futures contracts. The Eurodollar futucensist of 2,422 contracts with expiration datewing between March 2012 and Septer
2014. There were no realized or unrealized gainsosses from Eurodollars for the same period in020Qur Eurodollar futures sw
equivalents are accounted for at fair value witlthbeealized and unrealized gains and losses indludeother income (expense) in
consolidated statements of operations.

Balance Sheet Analysis - Stockholders’ Equity

Stockholdersequity at December 31, 2011 was $85.3 million arfided $11.3 million of accumulated other compresihee income
The accumulated other comprehensive income cods@té12.8 million in unrealized gains primarilylated to our CLOs, $1.2 million
unrealized losses related to our CMBS and $0.3ianilin unrealized derivative losses related to céelv hedges. Stockholdergquity a
December 31, 2010 was $68.5 million and included.®Imillion of accumulated other comprehensive meo The accumulated otl
comprehensive income consisted of $18.8 milliommmealized gains primarily related to our CLOs &1d1 million in unrealized derivati
losses related to cash flow hedges.

Analysis of Changes in Book Value

The following table analyzes the changes in bodkesdor the quarter and year ended December 311 2&hounts in thousan
except per share):

Quarter Ended December 31, 2011 Year ended December 31, 2011
Amount Shares Per Share® Amount Shares® Per Share

Beginning Balance $ 75,431 11,17¢  $ 6.7t $ 68,487 9,42t $ 7.27
Stock issuance) 17,77: 2,76( 6.44 29,697 4,48¢ 6.62
Restricted shares 21C 28 7.54
Balance after share issuance activity 93,21( 13,93¢ 6.6¢ 98,39 13,93¢ 7.0¢€
Dividends declared (4,87¢) (0.3%) (11,457 (0.82)
Net change AOCI®

Hedges 18C 0.01 78¢ 0.0¢

RMBS 284 0.0z (440 (0.09)

CMBS (1,036 (0.0¢) (1,03¢) (0.0¢)

CLOs (590) (0.04) (5,747 (0.41)



Net income excluding unrealized
gains and losses on Agency 10s

related hedges (997) (0.09) 14,43¢ 1.0¢
Unrealized gains and losses on

Agency I0s and related hedges (89E) (0.06) (9,657) (0.69)

Ending Balance $ 85,27¢ 13,93¢ $ 6.1z $ 85,27¢ 13,93¢ $ 6.12

@) Outstanding shares used to calculate book valushzae for the quarter and year ended periodsaamedoon outstanding shares as of
December 31, 2011 of 13,938,273.

2> On June 28, 2011, we entered into an underwritgrgement relating to the offer and sale of 1,500,§ares of our common stock
public offering price of $7.50 per share, whichraisawere issued and proceeds received on Julyll, Zin July 14, 2011, we issuec
additional 225,000 shares of common stock to tldeowriter pursuant to their exercise of an oveotallent option.
On December 1, 2011, we entered into an undengrdgreement relating to the offer and sale of 2@@@shares of our common stoc
a public offering price of $6.90 per share, whitlares were issued and proceeds received on Dec&mnB8il. On December 16, 2C
we issued an additional 360,000 shares of comnuamk $b the underwriter pursuant to their exercisaroover-allotment option.

@) Accumulated other comprehensive income (“AOCI”).

Statement of Operations Analysis
The following is a brief description of key termierh our statements of operations:

Net Interest income Net interest income is the difference between @geincome, which is the income that we earn orassets, ar
interest expense, which is the expense we pay opartfolio borrowings, subordinated debt and catilike preferred debentures.

Other income (expensether income (expense) includes a provision fommeded loan losses on ngerforming loans held
securitization trusts, impairment losses on investihsecurities, net realized gains from the salevastments securities and related hedge
unrealized losses on investment securities andecklaedges associated with our Agency 10s and iecfsom our investment in a limit
partnership and limited liability company.

General, administrative and other expenseSxpenses we incur in our business consist primafilsalary and employee benefits, 1
payable to HCS, Midway and RiverBanc pursuant eoatvisory and management agreements, professesmlinsurance and other gen
and administrative expenses. Other general andréstnaitive expenses include expenses for officé mrpplies and equipment, computer
software, telephone, travel and entertainment,coamted accounting services and other miscellanepesating expenses.

Income from discontinued operationlncome from discontinued operations includes allermies and expenses related to
discontinued mortgage lending business.
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Executive Summary Of Operating Results and Stockhders' Equity for Quarter and Year Ended December 312011

For the quarter ended December 31, 2011, the Compmoorted consolidated net loss attributable tmmon stockholders of $1
million, or $0.16 per common share, as comparezbtisolidated net income attributable to commonlidtolters of $1.0 million, or $0.11
common share, for the quarter ended December 3D, Zhe decline in net income for the fourth quaotfe2011 was primarily due to realiz
and unrealized losses on investment securitieselated hedges associated with the Company's Aghetrategy of $2.3 million and $(
million, respectively, during the fourth quarter2811, as compared to realized and unrealized gairisvestment securities and related he
associated with Agency 10s of $1.4 million and &spectively, during the fourth quarter of 2010alidition, the Company took a one t
charge of $2.2 million related to the terminatidrite advisory agreement with HCS, which negativieipacted net income for the 2011 fou
quarter.

Although the realized and unrealized losses camteith to the Compang’decline in net income for the 2011 fourth quartke
Companys investment portfolio continued to post strong inedrest income results, generating $5.4 milliomet interest income in the 2(
fourth quarter, which represents a 176% improvemegat net interest income for the same period d020 he increase in net interest inct
during the 2011 fourth quarter as compared to éimeesperiod in 2010, was primarily driven by a 328ib point increase in net interest inci
which was mainly due to the performance of the Camyfs Agency 10s and its investments in the mutirfly CMBS.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Comppurted consolidated net income attributable tormom stockholders of $4
million, or $0.46 per common share, as comparefiei® million, or $0.72 per common share, for tharyended December 31, 2010.
decrease in full year 2011 earnings as comparglet@ame period in 2010 was driven by a net urmeglioss of $9.7 million on investm:
securities and related hedges associated with ¢imep@nys Agency 10s, partially offset by realized gains$df7 million on the sale of CL
notes during 2011. Because of the hedging strategyloyed by the Company with respect to its Agel@y, unrealized gains and losses
not designated for hedge accounting treatment,tiagkfore are directly run through the Companiyicome statement. Similar to the fo
quarter of 2011, full year 2011 net income was a&ispacted by the onme charge of $2.2 million related to the termioatof the advisor
agreement with HCS.

For full year 2011, the Comparsynet interest income reached record levels at5$dfllion, an increase of $9.2 million, whi
represents an 89% improvement over net interestniecfrom the previous year. The increase in netrést income for the 2011 yeat
compared to the same period in 2010 was primarilyed by a 281 basis point increase in net interesime spread which was mainly du
the performance of the Company’s Agency 10s andtirfaunily CMBS, as well as the repayment of $20.0 igvllof convertible preferre
debentures on December 31, 2010 which had an sttexte of 10%.

As of December 31, 2011, the Compankbok value per common share was $6.12, down $®&m5 at September 30, 2011 and $
at December 31, 2010. The decrease since Septe3be&2011 is due in part to the unrealized lossesur credit sensitive securities
approximately $0.12 per share, the net loss fofdheth quarter of $0.16 per share and dividend$0085 per share. The decline in book v
since December 31, 2010 is due in part to unrehliaeses on CLO notes of approximately $0.41 paresland unrealized losses on multi-
family CMBS of approximately $0.07 per share, edcte primarily to widening credit spreads, and ulized losses associated with
Agency 10s and related hedges of approximately @& share. Unrealized gains and losses on thep@uwyis CLOs are run through 1
balance sheet and as a result, directly impackktdders’equity and book value per share. As of DecembeR@B11, since the inception of
investment in these securities, our CLOs have géeemrealized gains of $4.7 million and unrealigaths of $12.5 million. While unrealiz
losses associated with the Company’s Agency |IOgelated hedges are run through the income statethey do impact the Comparsybool
value per share through retained earnings.

The realized and unrealized losses discussed abwategontributed to lower net income and book @gler common share as of
for the year and quarter ended December 31, 20&te wegatively impacted as a result of a confluesfcseveral factors, including (i)
historical rally in U.S. Treasuries during the yésading to the lowest yield ever on the yigar Treasury note, which contributed to perce
higher future prepayment experience for the Comjmi®s, (ii) continued uncertainty and concernsyastamic risk related to the Europt
sovereign debt crisis, and (iii) uncertainty reisgltfrom the implementation of HARP I, with thetémt of increasing significantly the num
of homeowners eligible to refinance their mortgageer this program and thus, further elevatingdedrhigher prepayment speeds. Eac
these factors contributed to a significant widerdfigredit spreads and global market uncertaintyndguthe second half of 2011, which in tt
negatively impacted the pricing of our CLOs, Agen®s and multifamily CMBS at December 31, 2011. However, while tmarket
anticipated an escalation in prepayment speedsCtimpany$ actual prepayment experience during the last foomths have not indicat
significant increases in speeds, although manageamticipates prepayment speeds increasing ing¢aeterm.
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Results of Operations - Comparison of Years Ended é&zember 31, 2011 and 2010

(dollar amounts in thousands) For the Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 % Change

Net interest incom $ 19,45: $ 10,28¢ 89.1%
Total other (expense) income $ (3,699 $ 3,33: (210.9%
Total general, administrative and other expenses $ 10,51¢ $ 7,95( 32.2%
Income from continuing operations before incomesax $ 524: % 5,67(C (7.5)%
Income tax expense $ 43¢ $ — 100.(%
Income from continuing operations $ 481C $ 5,67(C (15.29)%
Income from discontinued operation - net of tax $ 63 $ 1,13¢ (94.9%
Net income $ 4,87 $ 6,80t (28.9%
Net income attributable to noncontrolling inter $ 97 $ = 100.(%
Net income attributable to common stockholc $ 477¢  $ 6,80¢ (29.9%
Basic income per common share $ 0.4€ $ 0.72 (36.1)%
Diluted income per common share $ 0.4€ $ 0.7z (36.2)%

For the year ended December 31, 2011, we repodtethcome attributable to common stockholders aB3$4illion as compared
$6.8 million for the year ended December 31, 20k $2.0 million decrease in net income was duaanily to a $9.7 million increase in |
unrealized loss on investment securities and mléedges, a onéme termination fee of $2.2 million recorded innoection with th
termination of the HCS Advisory Agreement, a $1illiom decrease in income from discontinued operaj a $0.4 million increase in gene
administrative and other expenses, a $0.4 millmngase in income tax expense, partially offsed B9.2 million increase in net interest ma
on our investment portfolio and loans held in s#iaation trusts, a $1.7 million increase in incofm@m investments in limited partnership
limited liability company, a $0.5 million decreaiseprovision for loan loss for the loans held irtgetization trusts, and a $0.4 million incre
in net realized gain on securities and related éed@he increase in net interest income for the gaded December 31, 2011 as compar
the year ended December 31, 2010 was primarilytdwe281 basis point increase in net interest ircgpread, which was mainly due to
performance of our Agency IOs and the maturity of Series A Preferred Stock in 2010. The $7.0 arillilecrease in other (expense) inc
from 2010 to 2011 was due primarily to a $9.7 roiilincrease in net unrealized loss on investmerirges and related hedges prime
associated with our Agency 10s, partially offseteb$1.7 million increase in income from investmentBmited partnership and limited liabili
company, a $0.5 decrease in provision for loan fosshe loans held in securitization trusts, arDad million increase in net realized gair
securities and related hedges. Included in oul tetdized gains of $5.7 million for the year end@ecember 31, 2011 is a $4.7 million gair
the sale of CLOs.
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Comparative Net Interest Income

Our results of operations for our investment pdidfaluring a given period typically reflects thetrieterest income earned on
investment portfolio of Agency and nédwgency RMBS, CMBS, prime ARM loans held in secusdtion trusts, loans held for investment, Ic
held for sale, CLOs, and U.S. Treasury securities {Interest Earning Assets”Jhe net interest spread is impacted by factors agabur co:
of financing, the interest rate that our investrsdygar and our interest rate hedging strategigthémore, the amount of premium or disce
paid on purchased portfolio investments and thpgmment rates on portfolio investments will imptiet net interest spread as such factors
be amortized over the expected term of such investsn Realized and unrealized gains and losseBéws, TEurodollar and Treasury futu
and other derivatives associated with our Agencyinig@stments, which do not utilize hedge accounfargfinancial reporting purposes,
included in other (expense) income in our stateroéoperations and therefore not reflected in tbeimterest income data set forth below.
following tables set forth the changes in net ies¢income, yields earned on our Interest Earnisgefs and rates on financing arrangemen
each of the years ended December 31, 2011 and g&slictively (dollar amounts in thousands, exesptoted):

For the Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010
Average Yield/ Average Yield/

Balance (1) Amount Rate (2) Balance (1) Amount Rate (2)

($Millions) ($Millions)
Interest Income:
Interest income $ 348.¢ $ 24,29 6.97% $ 370.8 % 19,89¢ 5.31%
Interest Expense:
Investment securities and loans $ 300.¢ $ 2,94¢ 0.9¢% $ 302.7 $ 4,86¢ 1.61%
Subordinated debentures 45.C 1,891 4.2(% 45.C 2,47: 5.4%
Convertible preferred debentures - - -% 20.C 2,274 11.3%
Interest expense $ 345.¢ $ 4,831 14(% $ 367.7 $ 9,611 2.61%
Net interest income / Net yield $ 19,45« 5.57% $ 10,28¢ 2.76%

(1) Our average balance of Interest Earning Assetal@iiated each period as the daily average balfamabe period of our Interest Earn
Assets, excluding unrealized gains and losses. aDarage balance of interest bearing liabilitiegatculated each period as the d
average balance for the period of our financin@ragements (portfolio investments), CDOs, subordihatebentures and convert
preferred debentures.

(2) Our net yield on Interest Earning Assets is caleady dividing our interest income from our Int@r&arning Assets for the period by
average Interest Earning Assets during the samiedpedur interest expense rate is calculated bydolig our interest expense from
interest bearing liabilities for the period by @werage interest bearing liabilities. The inteeegiense includes interest incurred on inti
rate swaps.

Comparative Net Interest Spread- Interest Earninggets

The following table sets forth, among other thintg net interest spread for our portfolio of lettrEarning Assets by quarter for
eight most recently completed quarters, excludiregdosts of our subordinated debentures and capleepreferred debentures.

Average Weighted

Interest Average

Earning Cash Yield Constant

Assets Weighted on Interest Prepayment

($ millions) Average Earning Cost of Net Interest Rate

Quarter Ended () Coupon (2) Assets (3) Funds (4) Spread (5) (CPR) (6)
December 31, 2011 $ 372.¢ 4.45% 7.17% 0.97% 6.2(% 15.6%
September 30, 2011 $ 369.¢ 4.47% 8.04% 0.8% 7.15% 10.6%
June 30, 2011 $ 341.7 4.28% 7.5%% 0.94% 6.65% 8.8%
March 31, 2011 $ 310.2 3.1%% 4.7¢% 1.06% 3.6&% 9.€%
December 31, 2010 $ 318.C 3.24% 4.98% 1.45% 3.52% 13.6%
September 30, 2010 $ 343t 3.7¢% 5.2%% 1.66% 3.6% 21.1%
June 30, 2010 $ 393.¢ 4.22% 5.28% 1.58% 3.7(% 20.5%
March 31, 2010 $ 425.1 4.5(% 5.85% 1.6(% 4.25% 18.6%



@)
2

©)
(4)

(®)
(6)

Our Average Interest Earning Assets is calculatetheuarter as the daily average balance of oardst Earning Assets for the qual
excluding unrealized gains and losses.

The Weighted Average Coupon reflects the weightedtagge rate of interest paid on our Interest Egrilissets for the quarter, net of f
paid. The percentages indicated in this columntheeinterest rates that will be effective throudle interest rate reset date, wt
applicable, and have not been adjusted to reffecptirchase price we paid for the face amounte§éturity.

Our Weighted Average Cash Yield on Interest Earrisgets was calculated by dividing our annualizgérest income from Intere
Earning Assets for the quarter by our average éstdearning Assets for the quarter.

Our Cost of Funds was calculated by dividing ounwsilized interest expense from our Interest Eariegets for the quarter by «
average financing arrangements, portfolio investsrxand CDOs for the quarter.

Net Interest Spread is the difference between ogigiifed Average Cash Yield on Interest Earning #ssard our Cost of Func

Our Constant Prepayment Rate, or CPR, is ttheqgption of principal of our pool of loans that reepaid off during each quarter.
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Prepayment ExperienceThe constant prepayment rate (“CPRI) our overall portfolio averaged approximately 1aé6 19% durin
2011 and 2010, respectively. CPRs on our purchasetolio of investment securities averaged apprately 14% while the CPRs
mortgage loans held in our securitization trustsraged approximately 8% during 2011, as compare2b®% and 16%, respectively, dur
2010. When prepayment expectations over the renmilifie of assets increase, we have to amortizenjur@s over a shorter time per
resulting in a reduced yield to maturity on oura@stment assets. Conversely, if prepayment expestatiecrease, the premium woulc
amortized over a longer period resulting in a higheld to maturity. In addition, the market valwesd cash flows from our Agency 10s cat
materially adversely affected during periods ovvated prepayments. We monitor our prepayment eapeg on a monthly basis and adjus
amortization rate to reflect current market coruahis.

The following table sets forth the constant prepagtrates for selected asset classes, by quarter:

Total
Agency Non-Agency Investment
Quarter Ended RMBS RMBS Securitizations Portfolio
December 31, 2011 19.2% 12.€% 5.2% 15.8%
September 30, 2011 10.8% 14.7% 10.2% 10.8%
June 30, 2011 9.C% 11.72% 8.4% 8.8%
March 31, 2011 12.(% 20.8% 7.0% 9.6%
December 31, 2010 —% 18.4% 11.5% 13.&%
September 30, 2010 —% 15.5% 18.7% 21.1%
June 30, 2010 —% 13.5% 11.% 20.5%
March 31, 2010 —% 18.(% 20.% 18.€%
Prepayment History Agency RMBS Portfolio
Quarterly Averages Monthly Averages
Carrying
Value
12/31/2011 9/30/2011 12/31/2011 12/31/2011 01/31/2012 02/28/2012
Agency Arms $ 68,776 16.6% 16.9% 21.0% 23.3% 23.1%
Agency I0s $ 63,681 10.1% 19.5% 20.6% 20.2% 20.3%

Federal Housing Finance Agency HARP Il Program

In November, the U.S. Government announced det&ildARP 1l, which is a program designed to assistréwers who are curre
with their mortgage payments but are unable tonagfte due to property valuation ratios. HARP Il warget homeowners who did 1
participate in the original version of HARP and whanortgages were originated prior to May 31, 2008e following table summarizes -
Agency RMBS in our portfolio that contain mortgagekich are eligible for refinancing and thus maypbepaid under HARP Il given t
parameters of the program.

HARP II Eligible Agency RMBS (Collateralized by loans originated prior to June 2009)

Weighted Average Coupon (“WAC”) of Underlying Loans

<4.0% <4.5% <5.0% <5.5% >5.5%
Agency Arms $ 21,556 - - - $ 15,006
Agency 10s - - - $4,261 $11,211

The Company does not believe securities backedagsl with WACS less than 4.0% are at risk to the HARP |l progesrthi
borrower has minimal rate incentive. In additithe Agency ARMs with coupons greater than 5.5% Favaverage coupon reset period ¢
months where the projected new coupon would becxppately 3.4%.

61




Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In addition to disclosing financial results caldelhin accordance with United States generally @eckaccounting principals (GAAI
we also present noBAAP financial measures that exclude certain itehitgese measures include "Net Interest Spre@dre Interest Earnit
Assets" and net income excluding management cdneamination and unrealized gains and losses &gsdcwith Agency IO investmen
These non-GAAP financial measures are providednioaece the uses’overall understanding of our financial performan8pecifically
management believes the nGAAP financial measures provide useful informatiornvestors by excluding or adjusting certain isemffecting
reported operating results that were unusual ointbitative of our core operating results. The 1@8AP financial measures presented by
Company should not be considered a substituteofasuperior to, the financial measures calculateacicordance with GAAP. Moreover, th
non-GAAP financial measures may not be comparablsirilarly titted measures reported by other conigs The norGAAP financia
measures included in this filing have been receddo the nearest GAAP measure.

Comparative Net Interest Spread- Core Interest Earning Assets, a Non GAAP Financislleasure

Net Interest SpreadCore Interest Earning Ass ets is a 8AAP financial measure and is defined as GAAP ntdrest spread pl
unconsolidated investments in interest earningtassech as our investments in a limited partnprsird limited liability company. O
investment in limited partnership represents owitggnvestment in a limited partnership that ovenpool of residential whole mortgage lo
and from which we receive distributions equal téngipal and interest payments and sales net oficeddministrative expenses. (
investment in a limited liability company includiegerest income from our share of two tranchesectisitized debt net of certain administra
costs. Because the income we receive from our imags in a limited partnership and limited liayilcompany include interest from pools
mortgage loans, management considers the investtodrg a functional equivalent to its Interest EagnAssets under GAAP. In order
evaluate the effective Net Interest Income of owestments, management uses Net Interest Spr&mtre Interest Earning Assets to reflect
net interest spread of our investments as adjustedflect the addition of unconsolidated investtsen interest earning assets. Manage!
believes that Net Interest Sprea@ore Interest Earning Assst provides useful information to investors as theoime stream from tt
unconsolidated investment is similar to the net¢nest spread for our Interest Earning Assets. Netdst Spreadzore Interest Earning Ass
should not be considered a substitute for our GA&Bed calculation of net interest spread.

The following tables reconcile our GAAP Net Intar&pread for our portfolio of Interest Earning Asstor the years ended Decenr
31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, to our non-GAAPasnee ofNet Interest SpreadCore Interest Earning Assets. We acquired
unconsolidated investment in a limited partnershiping the third and fourth quarters of 20d4i®d our investment in a limited liability comp:
during the second quarter of 2011. The limitedilisbcompany was dissolved and its assets distetiuo the partners, including RBCM,
December 30, 2011.

Weighted
Average Average
Interest Cash Yield
Earning Weighted on Interest
Assets Average Earning Cost of Net Interest
Year Ended December 31, 2011 $ millions) (1) Coupon (2) Assets (3) Funds (4) Spread (5)
Net Interest Spree— Interest Earning Assets  $ 348.¢ 4.20% 6.97% 0.9&% 5.9%
Investment in Limited Partnership $ 12.2 6.82% 10.2% —% 10.2%
Investment in Limited Liability Company $ 4.3 4.58% 8.7¢% —% 8.7¢%
Net Interest Spree— Core Interest Earning Asst $ 365.2 4.30% 7.15% 0.9&8% 6.17%
Weighted
Average Average
Interest Cash Yield
Earning Weighted on Interest
Assets Average Earning Cost of Net Interest
Year Ended December 31, 2010 ($ millions) (1)  Coupon (2) Assets (3) Funds (4) Spread (5)
Net Interest Spree— Interest Earning Assets  $ 370.¢ 3.9¢% 5.3™% 1.61% 3.7¢%
Investment in Limited Partnership $ 9.1 7.56% 13.5(% —% 13.5(%
Net Interest Spree— Core Interest Earning Asst $ 379.¢ 4.02% 5.44% 1.61% 3.8%

(1) Our Average Interest Earning Assets is calculatethgeriod as the daily average balance of ourdstéearning Assets for the peri

excluding unrealized gains and losses.

(2) The Weighted Average Coupon reflects the weightetage rate of interest paid on our Interest Egriissets or Core Interest Earr



©)

(4)
()

Assets, as applicable, for the period, net of fesd. The percentages indicated in this columntlaenterest rates that will be effect
through the interest rate reset date, where apipicand have not been adjusted to reflect thehase price we paid for the face amq
of the security.

Our Weighted Average Cash Yield on Interest Earnsgets was calculated by dividing our annualizgéérest income from Intert
Earning Assets or Core Interest Earning Assetsapmdicable, for the period by our average Intefestning Assets or Core Inter
Earning Assets, as applicable.

Our Cost of Funds was calculated by dividing ounuslized interest expense from our Interest Eardingets for the period by ¢
average financing arrangements, portfolio investsrxand CDOs.

Net Interest Spread is the difference between oeigiMed Average Cash Yield on Interest Earning #ssseCore Interest Earning Ass
as applicable, and our Cost of Funds.
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Net Income Excluding Management Contract Terminatim and Unrealized Gains and Losses Associated withg&ncy 10 Investments

During the quarter and year ended December 31,,20&1lincurred a onéme $2.2 million termination fee in connection kwioul
termination of the HCS Advisory Agreement and eiqgrezed unusually excessive market volatility timapacted unrealized gains and losse
our Agency I0s and related hedges. A reconciliaietween net income excluding the dimee fee for the management contract termin:
and unrealized gains and losses related to ousiments in Agency I0s and related hedges and GA&tRntome attributable to comrr
stockholders for the years and quarters ended DismeBil, 2011 and 2010, respectively, is presengddwb(dollar amounts in thousan

except per share amounts):

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2011

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2010

Net Income Attributable to Common Stockhold-
GAAP $
Adjustments
Unrealized gains and losses on investment seauriti
and related hedges associated with Agency 10
investments
Termination of management contract

Net income excluding termination of managen
contract and unrealized gains and losses $

Amounts Per Share Amounts Per Share
477¢  $ 0.4¢ 6,80t $ 0.72
9,657 0.91 - -
2,19¢ 0.21 - -
16,62¢ $ 1.5¢ 6,80t $ 0.72

For the Quarter Ended
December 31, 2011

For the Quarter Ended
December 31, 2010

Net (Loss) Income Attributable to Common Stockhod
- GAAP $
Adjustments
Unrealized gains and losses on investment secariti
and related hedges associated with Agency 1O
investments
Termination of management contract

Net income excluding termination of managen
contract and unrealized gains and losses $

Amounts Per Share Amounts Per Share
(1,899 $ (0.1¢) $ 1,01¢ $ 0.11
89t 0.0¢ - -
2,19¢ 0.1¢ - -
1,19¢ $ 0.1C 1,01¢ $ 0.11
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Comparative Expenses (dollar amounts in thousands)
For the Year Ended December 31

General, administrative and other expenses: 2011 2010 % Change
Salaries and benefits $ 151¢ $ 1,78( 14.7)%
Professional fees 1,521 1,19¢ 26.%
Management fees 3,25( 2,852 14.(%
Termination of management contract 2,19¢ — 100.(%
Other 2,03¢ 2,11¢ 4.00%
Total $ 10,51¢ $ 7,95( 32.%%

The increase in general, administrative and otixpenses of $2.6 million for the year ended DecerBthie2011, as compared to
year ended December 31, 2010 was primarily dukddR.2 million termination fee related to the teration of the HCS Advisory Agreeme
a $0.4 million increase in management fees dueiterBanc and Midway, a $0.3 million increase infpssional fees, offset by a $0.3 mill
decrease in salaries and benefits, and a $0.Jomilécrease in other expenses.

Discontinued Operations (dollar amounts in thousans)
For the Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 % Change

Revenues:

Net interest incom $ 17¢ $ 22C (20.0%
Other income (net) 27 1,18: (97. )%
Total net revenues 203 1,40:¢ (85.5%
Expenses:

General and administrative 14C 26€ (47.9%
Total expenses 14C 26€ (47.9%
Income from discontinued operations — net of tax $ 63 $ 1,13¢ (94.9)%

The decrease in income from discontinued operatiomst of tax is primarily a function of our continuadhding down of assets a
liabilities classified as discontinued operations.

Portfolio Asset Yields for the Quarter Ended Decemér 31, 2011

The following table summarizes the Companyignificant interest earning assets at Decemler2811, classified by relev:
categories (dollar amount in thousands, excepbsei

Current Par Carrying
Value Value Coupons@ Yield @ CPR®
Agency RMBS $ 65,11 $ 68,77¢ 3.7% 2.91% 16.%%
Agency IOs $ 537,03 $ 63,68! 5.21% 18.06% 19.5%
CMBS $ 989,20° $ 41,18¢ 5.02% 11.09% N/A
Securitized Loans $ 208,93 $ 206,92( 2.71% 2.66% 5.2%
Other® $ 60,45! $ 44,30: 4.96% 22.4%% N/A

(1) Coupons, yields and CPRs are based on fourth 2014 average balances.
(@ Other includes CLOs, investment in limited parthgsloans held for investment and rAgency RMBS.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is a measure of our ability to meet pdtahcash requirements, including ongoing committaen repay borrowings, fu
and maintain investments, comply with margin reguients, fund our operations, pay management, iiveesitd consulting fees, pay divide
to our stockholders and other general businesssnéxar investments and assets generate liquiditgroangoing basis through principal
interest payments, prepayments, net earnings estgimior to payment of dividends and distributidnem unconsolidated investments.
addition, depending on market conditions, the sdlénvestment securities or capital market trarisast may provide additional liquidit
However, our intention is to meet our liquidity dsethrough normal operations with the goal of awvmdunplanned sales of asset:
emergency borrowing of funds.

We fund our investments and operations throughlanbed and diverse funding mix, which includes sitemm repurchase agreem
borrowings, shorterm structured debt and longer term debt, suduasrust preferred debentures and, prior to tfeglemption, our convertit
preferred debentures. At December 31, 2011, wechall balances of $16.6 million. The reduction ishcand cash equivalents from $!
million at December 31, 2010 reflects the use dfittwhal capital in 2011 to acquire our targeteseds.

We rely primarily on repurchase agreements to fieahe mortgageacked securities in our investment portfolio. A®ecember 3:
2011, we have outstanding repurchase agreemefusnaof collateralized shotterm borrowing, with five different financial insitions. Thes
agreements are secured by certain of our investsexurities and bear interest rates that haverliatly moved in close relationship
LIBOR. Our borrowings under repurchase agreemeawrtbased on the fair value of our investment séearportfolio. Interest rate changes
increased prepayment activity can have a negatiy@aét on the valuation of these securities, redutiie amount we can borrow under tt
agreements. Moreover, our repurchase agreemeats #ie counterparties to determine a new marketevaf the collateral to reflect curr
market conditions and because these lines of fingnare not committed, the counterparty can cal lden at any time. If a counterpe
determines that the value of the collateral hasedesed, the counterparty may initiate a margin @atl require us to either post additic
collateral to cover such decrease or repay a podidhe outstanding borrowing in cash, on minimatice. Moreover, in the event an exis
counterparty elected to not renew the outstandadgrice at its maturity into a new repurchase agee¢nwe would be required to repay
outstanding balance with cash or proceeds receinmd a new counterparty or to surrender the moedarked securities that serve
collateral for the outstanding balance, or any doatiion thereof. If we are unable to secure finagdirom a new counterparty and hau
surrender the collateral, we would expect to ireclwss. In addition, in the event one of our lesderder the repurchase agreement defau
its obligation to “re-sell’or return to us the securities that are securiegbitrrowings at the end of the term of the repwseregreement, \
would incur a loss on the transaction equal toateunt of “haircut” associated with the repurchageement.

At December 31, 2011, the Company had short termoimings or repurchase agreements of $112.7 milisrcompared to $3:
million as of December 31, 2010. The increase af.$million is primarily due to our investment ing@ncy 10s in 2011. In addition to «
excess cash, the Company has $48.9 million in wmehered securities, including $17.0 million of RMB® which $13.0 million are Agen
RMBS. There is $16.5 million in restricted cashilalde to meet additional margin calls as it retate the repurchase agreements secur
our Agency 10s. At December 31, 2011, we also loagérterm debt, including CDOs outstanding of $199.8ioriland subordinated debt
$45.0 million. The CDOs are collateralized by thertgage loans held in securitization trusts. Basedur current investment portfolio, n
investment initiatives, leverage ratio and avagahhd future possible borrowing arrangements, ievge our existing cash balances, fu
available under our current repurchase agreemewtsash flows from operations will meet our ligtydiequirements for at least the nex
months.

Our leverage ratio for our investment portfolio,igthwe define as our outstanding indebtedness umgherrchase agreements divi
by stockholderséquity, was 1.3 to 1 at December 31, 2011. We kawnéinued to utilize significantly less leveragartour previously target
leverage due to the ongoing repositioning of owegiment portfolio to a more diversified portfotivat includes elements of credit risk v
reduced leverage.

As of December 31, 2011, we have provided investggtal of $39.5 million towards our Agency 10 ségy and $22.1 million
RBCM in connection with our mulfiamily CMBS investments. We also purchased an amfdit $21.5 million of CMBS through RBCM tt
settled in the first quarter of 2012. We fundedsthavestments primarily with proceeds from our &eber 2011 capital raise, excess wor
capital and shorterm borrowings. We anticipate continuing to cdnite additional capital toward the acquisition leége assets in the fut
from either working capital liquidity or proceed®sin capital market transactions or a combinati@medbf.

Certain of our hedging instruments may also immactliquidity. We use Eurodollar or other futuresntracts to hedge interest t
risk associated with our investments in Agency I@®th respect to futures contracts, initial mardeposits will be made upon entering
futures contracts and can be either cash or se=urDuring the period the futures contract is gperanges in the value of the contract
recognized as unrealized gains or losses by matkingarket on a daily basis to reflect the markdte of the contract at the end of each day’
trading. We may be required to satisfy variatiorrgirapayments periodically, depending upon whetheealized gains or losses are incurred.



We also use TBAs to hedge interest rate risk amelasprisk associated with our investments in Agdixy. Since delivery for the
securities extends beyond the typical settlememésdéor most nomlerivative investments, these transactions are mooee to mark
fluctuations between the trade date and the ulgénsattiement date, and thereby are more vulneraBlggcially in the absence of mal
arrangements with respect to these transactionsgteasing amounts at risk with the applicablenterparties.
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We also use U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. Ulingdigtures and options to hedge interest rateagdociated with our investment:
Agency 10s and interest rate swap agreements achanism to reduce the interest rate risk of owenty ARMs and mortgage loans hel
securitization trusts.

We also own approximately $3.8 million of loanschébr sale, which are included in discontinued agiens. Our inability to se
these loans at all or on favorable terms could e affect our profitability as any sale for lékan the current reserved balance would r
in a loss. Currently, these loans are not finareguledged.

As it relates to loans sold previously under certaan sale agreements by our discontinued mortgging business, we may
required to repurchase some of those loans or indeithe loan purchaser for damages caused byachref the loan sale agreement. We |
a reserve of approximately $0.3 million.

We paid quarterly cash dividends of $0.18, $0.182% and $0.25 per common share in January, Apusihe, and October 20
respectively. On December 15, 2011, we declare@ld fourth quarter cash dividend of $0.25 per comstrare and a special cash divider
$0.10 per common share. The dividend was paid onala 25, 2012 to common stockholders of recordf @ecember 27, 2011. Each of th
dividends was paid out of our working capital. W@ect to continue to pay quarterly cash dividend®wor common stock during the near te
However, our Board of Directors will continue toadwate our dividend policy each quarter and wilkeadjustments as necessary, basec
variety of factors, including, among other thingse need to maintain our REIT status, our financ@ldition, liquidity, earnings projectic
and business prospects. Our dividend policy doésamstitute an obligation to pay dividends, wharily occurs when our Board of Direct
declares a dividend.

On June 28, 2011, we entered into an underwritgrgement relating to the offer and sale of 1,500 8itares of our common stocl
a public offering price of $7.50 per share, whittares were issued and proceeds received on J@§11, On July 14, 2011, we issuec
additional 225,000 shares of common stock to théenwriter pursuant to their exercise of an oaketment option. We received total
proceeds of $11.9 million from the issuance oftt#25,000 shares.

On December 1, 2011, we entered into an undergriiigreement relating to the offer and sale of 2@D shares of our comm
stock at a public offering price of $6.90 per shavbich shares were issued and proceeds receivddeoamber 6, 2011. On December
2011, we issued an additional 360,000 shares ofremmstock to the underwriter pursuant to their eiser of an ovesllotment option. W
received total net proceeds of $17.9 million frdra issuance of the 2,760,000 shares.

We intend to make distributions to our stockholderscomply with the various requirements to maimtaur REIT status and
minimize or avoid corporate income tax and the mahudtible excise tax. However, differences in tignlmetween the recognition of RE
taxable income and the actual receipt of cash coedpiire us to sell assets or to borrow funds cshaertierm basis to meet the RE
distribution requirements and to minimize or avoatporate income tax and the nondeductible exeiseAt December 31, 2011, Hypoth
Capital, LLC, one of our TRSs, had approximatel® $3illion of net operating loss carryforwards thdll expire in 2024 through 2029. T
Internal Revenue Code places certain limitationshenannual amount of net operating loss carryfadwahat can be utilized if certain char
in the Companys ownership occur. The Company has undergone arrship change within the meaning of IRC section 882 will limit the
net loss carryforwards to be used to offset futas@ble income to $660,000 per year. Hypothecat&8lapiLC, one of our TRSs, is preset
undergoing an IRS examination for the taxable yeateed December 31, 2010 and 2009.

Exposure to European financial counterparties

We finance the acquisition of a significant portioihour mortgagdsacked securities with repurchase agreements.rinemion witl
these financing arrangements, we pledge our seuds collateral to secure the borrowing. The arnhofi collateral pledged will typical
exceed the amount of the financing with the extdrmver<collateralization ranging from 6% of the amountroered (in the case of Ager
ARM collateral) to up to 35% (in the case of CLQlateral). While our repurchase agreement financegylts in us recording a liability to 1
counterparty in our consolidated balance sheetangeexposed to the counterparty, if during the tefrthe repurchase agreement financir
lender should default on its obligation and we raseable to recover our pledged assets. The anauhts exposure is the difference betw
the amount loaned to us plus interest due to thuteoparty and the fair value of the collateraldgled by us to the lender including acci
interest receivable on such collateral.

Several large European banks have experiencedcfadaifficulty and have been either rescued byegoment assistance or by ol
large European banks. Some of these banks havebbhn&ing subsidiaries which have provided repurelageement financing or interest
swap agreements to us in connection with the aitiuisof various investments, including mortgaggecked securities investments. We t
entered into repurchase agreements with Credits8uisrst Boston LLC (a subsidiary of Credit Suisd®up AG, which is domiciled
Switzerland) in the amount of $11.1 million at Dexxer 31, 2011. We have outstanding interest ratp sgreements with Barclays Bank F
(domiciled in the United Kingdom) as a counterpartyhe amount of $24.8 million notional with a retposure of $0.3 million. In additic



certain of our U.S. based counterparties may haymfisant exposure to European sovereign debt kvitiould impact their futu
lending activities or cause them to default undgeaments with us. Any counterparty defaults coekllt in a material adverse effect on
operating results. We refer you to Note 7, Finagdnrangements, Portfolio Investments, includettém 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-
K.
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Inflation

For the periods presented herein, inflation haslyetatively low and we believe that inflation hast had a material effect on «
results of operations. The impact of inflation igarily reflected in the increased costs of ouemgpions. Virtually all our assets and liabili
are financial in nature. Our consolidated finansi@tements and corresponding notes thereto hae firepared in accordance with GA
which require the measurement of financial positiol operating results in terms of historical dslleithout considering the changes in
relative purchasing power of money over time duanffation. As a result, interest rates and ottaatdrs influence our performance far v
than inflation. Inflation affects our operationsrparily through its effect on interest rates, sifmterest rates typically increase during periof
high inflation and decrease during periods of lofation. During periods of increasing interesiesatdemand for mortgages and a borrosver’
ability to qualify for mortgage financing in a phese transaction may be adversely affected. Dypengpds of decreasing interest ra
borrowers may prepay their mortgages, which in may adversely affect our yield and subsequentyviélue of our portfolio of mortga
assets.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The Company had the following contractual obligasiat December 31, 2011 (dollar amounts in thousand

Less than More than
Total 1 year 1to 3 years 3to 5 years 5 years
Operating leases $ 26 $ 196 $ 67 $ — % —
Repurchase agreements 112,67- 112,67- — — —
CDOs (1)(2) 213,52 17,76: 33,49« 32,82: 129,44:
Subordinated debentures (1) 89,46¢ 1,89t 3,77¢ 3,78¢ 80,00¢
Management fees (3) 1,29( 1,29( — — —
Employment agreements 30C 30C — — —
Interest rate swaps (1) 564 52€ 38 — —
Total contractual obligations $ 418,08 $ 134,65( $ 37,37 $ 36,607 $ 209,44

(1) Amounts include projected interest paymentsnduthe period. Interest based on interest ratedfect on December 31, 2011.

(2) Maturities of our CDOs are dependent upon cashdloeeeived from the underlying loans receivabler €imate of their repaymen
based on scheduled principal payments and estinpiedipal prepayments based on our internal preygay model on the underlyi
loans receivable. This estimate will differ frontwad amounts to the extent prepayments and/orlluzses are experienced.

(3) We terminated the HCS Advisory Agreement on DecemBe2011. Amounts include the base fees for Midasad RiverBanc based
the current invested capital, the remaining baseagement fees to be paid to HCS and excludes ineeliees which are based on fui
performance.

Advisory and Management Agreemer

During the 2011 fiscal year, the Company was aypgartnanagement or advisory agreements with HC8wdy and RiverBanc. V
terminated the HCS Advisory Agreement effective &aber 31, 2011. See “ltem 1. Business —Recent Dprednts Fermination of Advisor
Agreement.”In connection with our continuing management agexgswith RiverBanc and Midway, we have agreedayp fne applicab
external manager that is a party to those agreenwentain fees for the performance of certain ses/thereunder. See “Item 1. Busindes's
description of the fees and expenses payable bpder these agreements.

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, ¢itis%ed aggregate base advisory and consulting deegpproximatel
$1.1 million and $0.9 million, respectively, and iacentive fee of approximately $1.7 million and &2nillion, respectively. As of Decemt
31, 2011 and 2010, approximately $34.0 million &48.2 million, respectively, of the Compasyassets were being managed under the
Advisory Agreement. As of December 31, 2011 and02@ie Company had a management fee payable @&lr8 million and $0.7 milliol
respectively, included in accrued expenses and t#imlities.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, Midway eabasg management and incentive fees of approxiyn&#20,000 and $
respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, RiverBameddrase management fees of approximately $96,000.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements



We did not maintain any relationships with uncoiated entities or financial partnerships, sucheatities often referred to
structured finance or special purpose entitiegtdished for the purpose of facilitating dfélance sheet arrangements or other contrac
narrow or limited purposes. Further, we have netrgnteed any obligations of unconsolidated entit@sdo we have any commitment or in
to provide funding to any such entities.
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Significant Estimates and Critical Accounting Poliges

We prepare our consolidated financial statementoiformity with U.S. GAAP, which requires the usfeestimates, judgments ¢
assumptions that affect reported amounts. Thesmasts are based, in part, on our judgment andngstians regarding various econol
conditions that we believe are reasonable basddats and circumstances existing at the time obntapg. The results of these estimates a
reported amounts of assets, liabilities and accatadlother comprehensive income at the date ofdheolidated financial statements anc
reported amounts of income, expenses and otherretrapsive income during the periods presented.

Changes in the estimates and assumptions couldehmagerial effect on these financial statementsofinting policies and estima
related to specific components of our consoliddieancial statements are disclosed in the notesutoconsolidated financial statements
accordance with SEC guidance, those material a¢ccmupolicies and estimates that we believe aretrdigcal to an investos understandir
of our financial results and condition and whichjuige complex management judgment are discusseavbel

Revenue Recognitianinterest income on our mortgage loans and moetgagked securities is a combination of the inteeashe:
based on the outstanding principal balance of thderlying loan/security, the contractual terms lué issets and the amortization of y
adjustments, principally premiums and discountgigenerally accepted interest methods. The neABAost over the par balance of self-
originated loans held for investment and premiurd discount associated with the purchase of mortgagked securities and loans
amortized into interest income over the lives @ timderlying assets using the effective yield methadjustments to amortization are made
actual prepayment activity. Estimating prepaymetd the remaining term of our interest yield inaestts require management judgm
which involves, among other things, consideratibpassible future interest rate environments aneéstimate of how borrowers will react
those environments, historical trends and perfooneaifhe actual prepayment speed and actual livelsl d® more or less than the amc
estimated by management at the time of originatiopurchase of the assets or at each financiattiaggeriod.

With respect to derivative instruments that havebeen designated as hedges, any fluctuationseifiaih value will be recognized
current earnings.

Fair value. The Company has established and documented prgcissdetermining fair values. Fair value is basgdn quote
market prices, where available. If listed pricesqootes are not available, then fair value is Baseon internally developed models -
primarily use inputs that are market-based or iedéepntlysourced market parameters, including interestyisiel curves. Such inputs to
valuation methodology are unobservable and sigmifi¢o the fair value measurement. The Commih@s and POs are considered to bt
most significant of its fair value estimates.

Mortgage Loans Held in Securitization Trusts — lingéh Loans (net)Impaired mortgage loans held in the securitizatiusts ar
recorded at amortized cost less specific loan tessrves. Impaired loan value is based on managesmestimate of the net realizable v:
taking into consideration local market conditiorfsttte distressed property, updated appraisal vabfigbe property and estimated expel
required to remediate the impaired loan.

The Company’s valuation methodologies are describeldote 14 —Fair Value of Financial Instruments included innite8 of thit
Annual Report on Form 10-K
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Variable Interest Entities- An entity is referred to as a variable interettte (“VIE”) if it meets at least one of the following crite
(1) the entity has equity that is insufficient termit the entity to finance its activities withcadditional subordinated financial support of o
parties; or (2) as a group, the holders of thetgduovestment at risk lack (a) the power to diréha activities of an entity that most significal
impact the entitys economic performance; (b) the obligation to dbdbe expected losses; or (c) the right to recéiecexpected residt
returns; or (3) have disproportional voting rightel the entitys activities are conducted on behalf of the invetitat has disproportionally fe
voting rights.

The Company consolidates a VIE when it has bothpibwer to direct the activities that most signifittg impact the econom
performance of the VIE and a right to receive biseair absorb losses of the entity that could beemtally significant to the VIE. Tt
Company is required to reconsider its evaluationvbéther to consolidate a VIE each reporting pertmased upon changes in the facts
circumstances pertaining to the VIE.

Fair Value Option— The fair value option provides an election thab\a companies to irrevocably elect fair value foahcial asse
and liabilities on an instrument-bgstrument basis at initial recognition. Changegain value for assets and liabilities for whicke telection i
made will be recognized in earnings as they occur.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

A discussion of recent accounting pronouncements tae possible effects on our financial statemeésitsicluded in Note -
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies inclade Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the exposure to loss resulting frohanges in interest rates, credit spreads andyepgrtides. All of our market ris
sensitive assets, liabilities and related deriveafigsitions are for notrading purposes only. Management recognizes fl@miog primary risk:
associated with our business and the industry ichwvye conduct business:

. Interest rate risk
. Liquidity risk

. Prepayment risk
. Credit risk

. Fair value risk

The following analysis includes forwatdeking statements that assume that certain maxkaditions occur. Actual results may dit
materially from these projected results due to glearin our portfolio assets and borrowings mix dod to developments in the domestic
global financial and real estate markets. Develogmeén the financial markets include the likelihoofl changing interest rates and
relationship of various interest rates and thejpact on our portfolio yield, cost of funds and cisiwvs. The analytical methods that we us
assess and mitigate these market risks shouldencofsidered projections of future events or opeyaterformance.

Interest Rate Risl

Interest rates are sensitive to many factors, @ioly governmental, monetary, tax policies, domeatid international econon
conditions, and political or regulatory matters dweg our control. Changes in interest rates affeetvalue of the financial assets we ma
and hold in our investment portfolio, the variabd¢ée borrowings we use to finance our portfoliod ahe interest rate swaps and ¢
Eurodollar and other futures, TBAs and other séiesrior instruments we use to hedge our portfdi®.a result, our net interest incom:
particularly affected by changes in interest rates.

For example, we hold RMBS some of which may haver@st coupons that reset on various dates thatarenatched to the re:
dates on our repurchase agreements. In generatetpecing of our repurchase agreements occursemaickly than the rericing of ou
assets. Thus, it is likely that our floating ratgrowings may react to changes in interest ratésrdour RMBS because the weighted ave
next repricing dates on the related borrowings may hawetsh time periods than that of the RMBS. In aduditithe interest rates on «
Agency ARMs backed by hybrid ARMs may be limitedatdperiodic cap”or an increase of typically 1% or 2% per adjustnpariod, while
our borrowings do not have comparable limitatidBbBanges in interest rates can directly impact preyeat speeds, thereby affecting our
return on RMBS. During a declining interest rateissnment, the prepayment of RMBS may acceleraeb(arowers may opt to refinance
lower rate) causing the amount of liabilities tihatve been extended by the use of interest ratessteamcrease relative to the amoun
RMBS, possibly resulting in a decline in our netura on RMBS as replacement RMBS may have a lovigd ythan those being prepe
Conversely, during an increasing interest raterenment, RMBS may prepay slower than expected,ir@guws to finance a higher amoun
RMBS than originally forecast and at a time wheteriest rates may be higher, resulting in a deétineur net return on RMBS. According
each of these scenarios can negatively impact etinterest income.
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We seek to manage interest rate risk in the paotfo} utilizing interest rate swaps, caps, Eurcalofind other futures, options and |
Treasury securities with the goal of optimizing ganings potential while seeking to maintain Itexgn stable portfolio values. We continu
monitor the duration of our mortgage assets ane lagpolicy to hedge the financing such that thedneation of the assets, our borrowed fu
related to such assets, and related hedging instrtgnare less than one year. In addition, wezatiliBAs to mitigate the risks on our I
Agency RMBS positions associated with our investmémAgency [0s.

We utilize a modebased risk analysis system to assist in projegiontfolio performances over a scenario of differeerest rate
The model incorporates shifts in interest rateanges in prepayments and other factors impactieagdfuations of our financial securities
instruments, including mortgadecked securities, repurchase agreements, intetestswaps and interest rate caps, TBAs and Elan
futures

Based on the results of the model, instantaneocaisgds in interest rates would have had the follgweffiect on net interest income
the next 12 months based on our assets and liebieis of December 31, 2011 (dollar amounts inghnds):

Changes in Net Interest Income

Changes in Net

Interest

Changes in Interest Rates Income
+200 $ 6,10%
+100 $ 5,081
-100 $ (7,82%)

Interest rate changes may also impact our net lvabke as our mortgage assets and related hedgeatilgs are marked-toarke
each quarter. Generally, as interest rates incr¢lasevalue of our mortgage assets, other than d@seases, and conversely, as interest
decrease, the value of such investments will ireredhe value of an 10 will likely be negativelyfeafted in a declining interest r.
environment due to the risk of increasing prepaymates because the 10s value is wholly continganthe underlying mortgage loans hay
an outstanding balance. In general, we expect tvat; time, decreases in value of our portfoligiladtable to interest rate changes will
offset, to the degree we are hedged, by increasealiie of our interest rate swaps or other finanoistruments used for hedging purposes
vice versa. However, the relationship between sisremn securities and spreads on our hedging institarmay vary from time to tin
resulting in a net aggregate book value increasdectine. That said, unless there is a materialaimpent in value that would result it
payment not being received on a security or lohanges in the book value of our portfolio will mbtectly affect our recurring earnings or
ability to make a distribution to our stockholders.

71




Liquidity Risk

Liquidity is a measure of our ability to meet pdtahcash requirements, including ongoing committaen repay borrowings, fu
and maintain investments, pay dividends to ourldtoltlers and other general business needs. Wenizeothe need to have funds availabl
operate our business. It is our policy to have adegliquidity at all times. We plan to meet ligitycthrough normal operations with the goa
avoiding unplanned sales of assets or emergencgwinig of funds.

Our principal sources of liquidity are the repurehaagreements on our mortgdgeeked securities, the CDOs we have issui
finance our loans held in securitization trustg, phincipal and interest payments from our assatiscash proceeds from the issuance of e
securities (as market and other conditions permi®. believe our existing cash balances and cassffoom operations will be sufficient 1
our liquidity requirements for at least the nextm@nths.

As it relates to our investment portfolio, derivatifinancial instruments we use to hedge inter&st risk subject us to “margin call”
risk. If the value of our pledged assets decredse,to a change in interest rates, credit chaiatitay, or other pricing factors, we may
required to post additional cash or asset collgteraeduce the amount we are able to “borrai'sus the collateral. For example, undel
interest rate swaps typically we pay a fixed ratéhe counterparties while they pay us a floateug.rif interest rates drop below the fixed
we are paying on an interest rate swap, we magdpgined to post cash margin.

Prepayment Risl

When borrowers repay the principal on their morgbigins before maturity or faster than their schestiamortization, the effect is
shorten the period over which interest is earnaed,therefore, reduce the yield for mortgage agaetshased at a premium to their then cu
balance, as with the majority of our assets. Caalgr mortgage assets purchased for less thanttiegircurrent balance exhibit higher yie
due to faster prepayments. Furthermore, prepaysp@ds exceeding or lower than our modeled prepatyspeeds impact the effectivenes
any hedges we have in place to mitigate financind/a fair value risk. Generally, when market ietgrrates decline, borrowers ha\
tendency to refinance their mortgages, therebyesming prepayments. The impact of increasing prapay rates, whether as a resul
declining interest rates, government interventiorthie mortgage markets or otherwise, is particpladute with respect to our Agency |
Because the value of an 10 security is wholly augeint on the underlying mortgage loans having atstanding principal balance,
unexpected increase in prepayment rates on thegbmobdrtgage loans underlying the 10s could sigaifitly negatively impact the performa
of our Agency IOs.

Our modeled prepayments will help determine thewarhof hedging we use to oflet changes in interest rates. If actual prepay
rates are higher than modeled, the yield will bgsléhan modeled in cases where we paid a premiunthéo particular mortgage as:
Conversely, when we have paid a premium, if agiwmepayment rates experienced are slower than nmohdeke would amortize the premi
over a longer time period, resulting in a highelgito maturity.

In an increasing prepayment environment, the timiifference between the actual cash receipt ofcjpal paydowns and t
announcement of the principal paydown may resudtditional margin requirements from our repurchag®ement counterparties.

We mitigate prepayment risk by constantly evalypiinir mortgage assets relative to prepayment spaestrved for assets witl
similar structure, quality and characteristics.tRermore, we stregest the portfolio as to prepayment speeds andesiteate risk in order
further develop or make modifications to our hetigéances. Historically, we have not hedged 100%uofliability costs due to prepaym:
risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that we will not fully ceitt the principal we have invested in mortgage daamother assets, such as maency
RMBS, CMBS, and CLOs, due to borrower defaults. Partfolio of loans held in securitization trusts af December 31, 2011 consiste:
approximately $208.9 million of securitized firgérls originated in 2005 and earlier. The secuudtifiest liens were principally originated
2005 by one of our subsidiaries prior to our esati the mortgage lending business. These are priedtaty higheguality loans with an avera
loan-to-value (“LTV”) ratio at origination of approximately 70.4%, andemge borrower FICO score of approximately 729adidition
approximately 64.4% of these loans were originatét full income and asset verification. While weef that our origination and underwrit
of these loans will help to mitigate the risk ajrsificant borrower default on these loans, we cam@mssure you that all borrowers will contil
to satisfy their payment obligations under thesm$oand thereby avoid default.
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As of December 31, 2011 the Company owns $34.9anmilbf first loss CMBS comprised of POs that arekeal by commerci
mortgage loans on multamily properties at a weighted average amortizetipase price of approximately 26.1% of current jée overa
return of these securities will be dependent onpiformance of the underlying loans and accorginglanagement has taken an approg
credit reserve when determining the amount of distéo accrete into income over time. In additive, owned approximately $3.9 million
non-Agency RMBS senior securities. The rmegency RMBS has a weighted average amortized paecipeice of approximately 84.8%
current par value. Management believes the purcpase discount coupled with the credit supporthivitthe bond structure protects us fi
principal loss under most stress scenarios forethesiAgency RMBS. As of December 31, 2011, we own apipnately $22.8 million of note
issued by a CLO at a discounted purchase pricel éq@8.9% of par. The securities are backed bgrqio of middle market corporate loat

Fair Value Risk

Changes in interest rates also expose us to maaket (fair value) fluctuation on our assets, lidibs and hedges. While the fair va
of the majority of our assets that are measured eturring basis are determined using Level 2vialues, we own certain assets, such a
CMBS, for which fair values may not be readily dahie if there are no active trading markets far iistruments. In such cases, fair va
would only be derived or estimated for these inwesits using various valuation techniques, sucloagpating the present value of estim:
future cash flows using discount rates commensuséte the risks involved. However, the determinatiof estimated future cash flows
inherently subjective and imprecise. Minor chanigeassumptions or estimation methodologies can laanmterial effect on these derivec
estimated fair values. Our fair value estimates asglimptions are indicative of the interest ratérenments as of December 31, 2011, an
not take into consideration the effects of subsetjurerest rate fluctuations.

We note that the values of our investments in dgifre instruments, primarily interest rate hedgesoar debt, will be sensitive
changes in market interest rates, interest rateasigy credit spreads and other market factorsvale of these investments can vary anc
varied materially from period to period.

The following describes the methods and assumpti@ngse in estimating fair values of our finanamstruments:

Fair value estimates are made as of a specifid poitime based on estimates using present valuwgher valuation techniques. Th
techniques involve uncertainties and are signitigaaiffected by the assumptions used and the judésrn@ade regarding risk characteristic
various financial instruments, discount rates neate of future cash flows, future expected loseegrpce and other factors.

Changes in assumptions could significantly affeetse estimates and the resulting fair values. Bérfair value estimates cannot
substantiated by comparison to independent mageds in many cases, could not be realized in aneidiate sale of the instrument. Al
because of differences in methodologies and assonspised to estimate fair values, the fair valusesi by us should not be compared to t
of other companies.

The fair values of the Company's RMBS and CDOsgamerally based on market prices provided by dealdro make markets
these financial instruments. If the fair value cfezurity is not reasonably available from a dea@magement estimates the fair value bas
characteristics of the security that the Compangikes from the issuer and on available marketriméion.

The fair value of mortgage loans held in securitira trusts is estimated using pricing models aaking into consideration t
aggregated characteristics of groups of loans aschut not limited to, collateral type, indexeirgst rate, margin, length of fixedte perioc
life cap, periodic cap, underwriting standards, age credit estimated using the estimated marke¢pfor similar types of loans.

The fair value of our CMBS is based on managerseestimates using pricing models and inputs fromecii market conditiot
including recent transactions. Our CMBS investmerdse acquired in private transactions and areaotitely traded in the secondary mark
However similar assets are issued on a periodits lthat allows management to assess current madgatitions when formulating a mor
evaluation.
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The table below presents the sensitivity of thekaiavalue and net duration changes of our portfati@f December 31, 2011, usir
discounted cash flow simulation model assumingratantaneous interest rate shift. Application @ thethod results in an estimation of
fair market value change of our assets, liabiliisd hedging instruments per 100 basis point (“Bpfft in interest rates.

The use of hedging instruments is a critical pdrbar interest rate risk management strategies, thadeffects of these hedg
instruments on the market value of the portfolie egflected in the model's output. This analyss dbkes into consideration the valu
options embedded in our mortgage assets includingtraints on the rpricing of the interest rate of assets resultirgrfiperiodic and lifetim
cap features, as well as prepayment options. Assetdiabilities that are not interest raensitive such as cash, payment receivables, g
expenses, payables and accrued expenses are @kclude

Changes in assumptions including, but not limitedvblatility, mortgage and financing spreads, psgpent behavior, defaults, as v
as the timing and level of interest rate changdkaffiect the results of the model. Therefore, attesults are likely to vary from mode
results.

Market Value Changes

Changes in Changes in Net
Interest Rates Market Value Duration
(Amounts in thousands)
+200 $ (13,092) 2.73 years
+100 $ (6,579) 1.92 years
Base — 0.70 years
-100 $ 602 (0.69) years

It should be noted that the model is used as attoiglentify potential risk in a changing intereate environment but does not incl
any changes in portfolio composition, financingttgies, market spreads or changes in overall megkelity.

Although market value sensitivity analysis is widatcepted in identifying interest rate risk, iedaot take into consideration char
that may occur such as, but not limited to, charigesvestment and financing strategies, changasarket spreads and changes in bus
volumes. Accordingly, we make extensive use ofamiegs simulation model to further analyze ouelef interest rate risk.

There are a number of key assumptions in our egsngimulation model. These key assumptions inclciienges in mark
conditions that affect interest rates, the pricofgARM products, the availability of investment ats and the availability and the cos
financing for portfolio assets. Other key assummionade in using the simulation model include pyepat speeds and managem
investment, financing and hedging strategies, dmdissuance of new equity. We typically run the dation model under a variety
hypothetical business scenarios that may includérdnt interest rate scenarios, different investinstrategies, different prepaym
possibilities and other scenarios that provide ith & range of possible earnings outcomes in oterssess potential interest rate risk.
assumptions used represent our estimate of thly kffect of changes in interest rates and do ecessarily reflect actual results. The earr
simulation model takes into account periodic afetithe caps embedded in our assets in determihmgarnings at risk.
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Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Our financial statements and the related notesthey with the Report of Independent Registeredi®@ezcounting Firm thereon,
required by this Item 8, are set forth beginningpage F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K areliacorporated herein by reference.

Iltem 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.
None.
Iltem 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Proceduréd/e maintain disclosure controls and procedures ahatdesigned to ensure 1
information required to be disclosed in the repdtintt we file or submit under the Securities ExgeAct of 1934, as amended, is recor
processed, summarized and reported within the fexods specified in the rules and forms of the SB@d that such information
accumulated and communicated to our managemergpaie@iate to allow timely decisions regarding rieed disclosures. An evaluation v
performed under the supervision and with the padiion of our management, including our Chief Bxae Officer and Chief Financi
Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure ttols and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-1a&e) 15di5(e) under the Securit
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of Decemhe2(@1l. Based upon that evaluation, our Chief EtteelOfficer and Chief Financi
Officer concluded that our disclosure controls pratedures were effective as of December 31, 2011.

Management’'s Report on Internal Control Over Finah&eporting. Our management is responsible for establishimgraaintainini
adequate internal control over financial reportiag,such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 18@). Our internal control system v
designed to provide reasonable assurance to ouagearent and Board of Directors regarding the riiiabpreparation and fair presentat
of published financial statements in accordancé wénerally accepted accounting principles. UnHersupervision and with the participa
of our management, including our principal exeafficer and principal financial officer, we coraded an evaluation of the effectivenes
our internal control over financial reporting basedthe framework innternal Control - Integrated Frameworkissued by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway CommissB®ased on our evaluation under the frameworkiniternal Control Integrate
Framework, our management concluded that our internal cbotrer financial reporting was effective as of Deatxer 31, 2011.

This Annual Report on Form 1K-does not include an attestation report of ouepehdent registered public accounting firm rega
internal control over financial reporting. Managentie report was not subject to attestation by our pedeent registered public accoun
firm pursuant to the rules of the SEC that permitaiprovide only management’s report in this AdrReport on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial RepodirThere have been no changes in our internal cootret financial reportin
during the quarter ended December 31, 2011 that hwaterially affected, or are reasonably likelyrtaterially affect, our internal control o
financial reporting.
Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

The information set forth in Item 1 of this AnnuBkeport on Form 1@ related to the Midway Amendment and the Mid'

Management Agreement are incorporated by referéecein. A copy of the Midway Amendment is filed Bshibit 10.[ ] to this Annu:
Report on Form 10-K.
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PART Il
Item 10.DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CORPORATE GOVERNARE
The information required by this item is includedoiur Proxy Statement for our 2012 Annual Meetih@tockholders to be filed with
the SEC within 120 days after the end of the figealr ended December 31, 2011 (the “2012 Proxeit”) and is incorporated herein by
reference.
Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is includedie 2012 Proxy Statement and is incorporatedrhésereference.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANDMANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDEF
MATTERS

Except as set forth below, the information requingdhis item is included in the 2012 Proxy Statatrend is incorporated herein by
reference.

The information presented under the heading “Marfketthe Registrant’'s Common Equity and Relatedcidtolder Matters—
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity @ensation Plans” in Item 5 of Part Il of this FOiGK is incorporated herein by referen

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, ANDDIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information required by this item is includedie 2012 Proxy Statement and is incorporatedrnésereference.
Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is includedie 2012 Proxy Statement and is incorporatedrnésereference.
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PART IV
Item 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@) Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accognfimm - Grant Thornton LLP
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statements of Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
(b) Exhibits.

The information set forth under “Exhibit Index” bel is incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyidthas duly caused this reg
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedeti@o duly authorized.

NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC.

Date: March 12, 2012 By: /s/ Steven R. Mumma
Steven R. Mumma
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 12, 2012 By: /s/ Fredric S. Starker
Fredric S. Starker
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélptine following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Steven R. Mumma Chief Executive Officer, President and Director March 12, 2012
Steven R. Mumma (Principal Executive Officer)
/sl Fredric S. Starker Chief Financial Officer March 12, 2012
Frederic S. Starker (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ James J. Fowler Chairman of the Board March 12, 2012

James J. Fowler

/s/ Alan L. Hainey Director March 12, 2012
Alan L. Hainey
/sl Steven G. Norcutt Director March 12, 2012

Steven G. Norcutt

/s/ David R. Bock Director March 12, 2012
David R. Bock
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
New York Mortgage Trust, Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balameets of New York Mortgage Trust, Inc. (a Mamng corporation) and

subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31,128ad 2010, and the related consolidated statenvérdperations, comprehensive
income, equity, and cash flows for each of the fwars in the period ended December 31, 20Ihese financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s managemeur responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hiésancial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighaifglo(United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thetaadbbtain reasonable assurance about whethefirthecial statements are free of
material misstatementThe Company is not required to have, nor were vgaged to perform an audit of its internal contnedofinancial
reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a basis for designénglit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for thgppse of expressing an opinion on the effectiveridthe Company’s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion audit also includes examining, on a test basiglence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial stetesy assessing the accounting principles useds@ndficant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall figdustatement presentationWe believe that our audits provide a reasonables bas
our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaaeferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the financial position of New
York Mortgage Trust, Inc. as of December 31, 20dd 2010, and the results of its operations ancdaish flows for each of the two years in
the period ended December 31, 2011 in conformiti @tcounting principles generally accepted inlUnéed States of America.

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP

New York, New York
March 12, 2012
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NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

December 31, December 31,
2011 2010
ASSETS

Investment securities available for sale, at falue (including pledged securities of $129,942 an

$38,475, respectively) $ 200,34. $ 86,04(
Mortgage loans held in securitization trusts (net) 206,92( 228,18t
Mortgage loans held for investment 5,11¢ 7,46(
Investment in limited partnership 8,70: 18,66¢
Cash and cash equivalents 16,58¢ 19,37¢
Receivable for securities sold 1,13¢ 5,65
Derivative assets 208,21¢ -
Receivables and other assets 35,68¢ 8,91¢
Total Assets $ 682,70! $ 374,29:

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities:
Financing arrangements, portfolio investments $ 112,67: $ 35,63:
Collateralized debt obligations 199,76: 219,99
Derivative liabilities 2,61¢ 1,087
Payable for securities purchased 228,30( -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 8,04: 4,09t
Subordinated debentures 45,00( 45,00(
Total liabilities 596,39¢ 305,80°
Commitments and Contingencies
Equity:
Stockholders' equity
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 400,000,000 authdyiz3,938,273 and 9,425,442, shares issu

and outstanding, respectively 13¢ 94
Additional paid-in capital 153,71( 135,30(
Accumulated other comprehensive income 11,29: 17,73:
Accumulated deficit (79,869 (84,639
Total stockholders' equity 85,27¢ 68,48’
Noncontrolling interes 1,02¢ -
Total equity 86,30’ 68,48’
Total Liabilities and Equity $ 682,70! $ 374,29:

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data

For the Years
Ended December 31,

2011 2010
INTEREST INCOME $ 24,29.  $ 19,89¢
INTEREST EXPENSE:
Investment securities and loans held in securitmatusts 2,94¢ 4,86¢
Subordinated debentures 1,891 2,47:
Convertible preferred debentures - 2,274
Total interest expense 4,831 9,611
NET INTEREST INCOME 19,45¢ 10,28¢
OTHER (EXPENSE) INCOME:
Provision for loan losses (1,699 (2,230
Impairment loss on investment securities (250) (29€)
Income from investments in limited partnership &ndted liability company 2,16 49¢
Realized gain on investment securities and relagseiyjes, net 5,74( 5,36%
Unrealized loss on investment securities and relagslges, net (9,659 -
Total other (expense) income (3,699 3,33
General, administrative and other expenses 8,32: 7,95(
Termination of management contract 2,19t -
Total general, administrative and other expenses 10,51¢ 7,95(
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME TABS 5,24% 5,67(
Income tax expense 43: -
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 4,81( 5,67(
Income from discontinued operation - net of tax 63 1,13¢
NET INCOME 4,87: 6,80t
Net income attributable to noncontrolling inter 97 -
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON STOCKHOLDER¢ $ 477¢  $ 6,80¢
Basic income per common share $ 0.4¢ $ 0.72
Diluted income per common share $ 0.4¢ $ 0.7z
Dividends declared per common share $ 1.0C $ 0.7¢
Weighted average shares outstanding-basic 10,49t 9,42
Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted 10,49¢ 9,42

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

For the Years
Ended December 31,

2011 2010

NET INCOME $ 487 $ 6,80¢
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME

(Decrease) increase in net unrealized gain onabaifor sale securities (3,339) 9,10¢

Reclassification adjustment for net gain includedét income (3,886 (5,01))

Increase in fair value of derivative instrumentiizegd for cash flow hedges 783 1,81¢
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME (6,440 5,914
COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMOISTOCKHOLDERS $ (1,567 $ 12,71¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Accumulated

Additional Other Non-
Common Paid-In Accumulated Comprehensive  controlling
Stock Capital Deficit Income/(Loss) Interest Total
Balance, January 1, 2010 $ 94 $ 14251¢ $ (91,449 $ 11,81¢ $ - $ 62,98"
Net income - - 6,80¢ - - 6,80¢
Stock issuance - 22F - - - 22¢
Dividends declared - (7,449 - - - (7,449
Reclassification adjustment for net
gain included in net income - - - (5,011 - (5,01))
Increase in net unrealized gain on
available for sale securities - - - 9,10¢ - 9,10¢
Increase in fair value of derivative
instruments utilized for cash flow
hedges - - - 1,81¢ - 1,81¢
Balance, December 31, 2010 9 135,30( (84,639 17,73 - 68,48’
Net income - - 4,77¢ - 97 4,87:
Stock issuance 45 30,54¢ - - - 30,59:
Costs associated with issuance of
common stock - (68€) - - > (68€)
Dividends declared - (11,457 - - - (11,459
Increase in non-controlling interest
related to consolidation of interes
in a limited liability company = = = = 932 932
Reclassification adjustment for net
gain included in net income - - - (3,88¢) - (3,886
Decrease in net unrealized gain on
available for sale securities - - - (3,337) - (3,337)
Increase in fair value of derivative
instruments utilized for cash flow
hedges - - - 783 - 788
Balance, December 31, 2011 $ 13¢ $ 153,71( $ (79,869 $ 11,29 $ 1,02¢ $ 86,301

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

For the Years Ended

December 31,

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income $
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigea by (used in) operating activitie
Depreciation and amortization
Net accretion on investment securities and mortd@aes held in securitization trusts
Realized gain on securities and related hedges, net
Unrealized loss on securities and related hedggs, n
Impairment loss on investment securities
Net decrease in loans held for sale
Provision for loan losses
Income from investments in limited partnership &nmdted liability company
Interest distributions from investments in limiteartnership and limited liability company
Stock issuance
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables and other assets
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Restricted cash
Purchases of investment securities
Proceeds from sales of investment securities
Issuance of mortgage loans held for investment
Proceeds from mortgage loans held for investment
Purchase of investments in limited partnership lanied liability company
Proceeds from investments in limited partnership
Net proceeds on other derivative instruments nsigti@ted as qualifying hedges
Principal repayments received on mortgage loars inedecuritization trusts
Principal paydowns on investment securities - aéd for sale

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from (payments of) financing arrangements
Stock issuance
Costs associated with stock issuance
Dividends paid
Redemption of convertible preferred debentures
Payments made on collateralized debt obligations
Capital contributed by noncontrolling interest

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $

Supplemental Disclosure:
Cash paid for interest $

Non-Cash Investment Activities:
Sale of investment securities not yet settled $

2011 2010
4,87: 6,80¢
126 66¢
5,55¢ (3,249)
(5,740) (5,367)
9,657 -
25C 29¢

31 32
1,69: 2,23(
(2,167) (496)
1,07¢ 234
21C 22¢
(2,929) 26¢
767 (1,959
13,41« (305)
(24,326) 1,61(
(291,21) (5)
167,80 46,02
(2,520) (7,460)
5,001 -
(5,327) (19,35¢)
10,90¢ 95€
4,961 -
19,95( 45,74«
19,45¢ 52,17
(95,29’) 119,68
77,04: (49,472
30,38: -
(686€) -
(8,270 (8,107)
- (20,000)
(20,31%) (46,95()
93z -
79,08¢ (124,52)
(2,789 (5,147
19,37t 24,52.
16,58¢ 19,37t
4,66¢ 9,73(
1,13¢ 5,65:




Purchase of investment securities not yet settled $ 228,300 $ -

Transfer of investment securities from investmaritmited liability company $ 546 $ -

Non-Cash Financing Activities:
Dividends declared to be paid in subsequent period $ 487¢ $ 1,697

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization— New York Mortgage Trust, Inc., together with dé@nsolidated subsidiaries (“NYMT,” the “Companywé&,” “our”
and “us”), is a real estate investment trust, ol TREh the business of acquiring, investing in,diting and managing primarily mortgage-
related assets. Our principal business objectite generate net income for distribution to ourcktmlders resulting from the spread betw
the interest and other income we earn on our istea@ning assets and the interest expense we pdedotrowings that we use to finance
leveraged assets and our operating costs. We adsoapportunistically acquire and manage variouemotypes of mortgageelated an
financial assets that we believe will compensatapgopriately for the risks associated with them.

The Company conducts its business through the pammpany, NYMT, and several subsidiaries, inclgdgpecial purpo:
subsidiaries established for loan securitizatiorppses, taxable REIT subsidiaries ("TRSs") andifiedl REIT subsidiaries ("QRSs"). T
Company conducts certain of its portfolio investineperations through one of its wholly-owned TRBgpotheca Capital, LLC (“HC")in
order to utilize, to the extent permitted by lawpation of a net operating loss cafgrward held in HC that resulted from the Compamexs
from the mortgage lending business. Prior to M&th2007, the Company conducted substantiallyfatsanortgage lending business thro
HC. The Company utilizes one of its wholly-owned R RB Commercial Mortgage LLC (“RBCM"), for itsviestments in multfamily
CMBS assets, and, to a lesser extent, other conmheeal estate-related debt investments. The Compilizes another of its whollgwnec
QRSs, NYMT-Midway LLC, and one of its wholly-own&tRSs, New York Mortgage Funding, LLC (“NYMF"jor its Agency IO portfoli
managed by Midway. The Company consolidates ailtsoubsidiaries under generally accepted accogitiimciples in the United States
America (“GAAP”).

The Company is organized and conducts its opemtiomualify as a REIT for federal income tax pwgs As such, the Comps
will generally not be subject to federal income ¢exthat portion of its income that is distributedstockholders if it distributes at least 909
its REIT taxable income to its stockholders bydiie date of its federal income tax return and casplith various other requirements.

Basis of Presentation The accompanying consolidated financial statemieswe been prepared on the accrual basis of acogun
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accoumtiimgiples (“GAAP”).The preparation of financial statements in confoyrmiith GAAP
requires management to make estimates and assusphiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiahiities and disclosure of conting
assets and liabilities at the date of the finanstialements and the reported amounts of revenukesxq@enses during the reporting period. Ac
results could differ from those estimates.

The consolidated financial statements of the Comaciude the accounts of all subsidiaries; siguaifit intercompany accounts i
transactions have been eliminated.

Variable Interest Entities- An entity is referred to as a variable interestitg (“VIE") if it meets at least one of the followi
criteria: (1) the entity has equity that is insaiiint to permit the entity to finance its activitimithout additional subordinated financial sup
of other parties; or (2) as a group, the holderghefequity investment at risk lack (a) the powedirect the activities of an entity that rr
significantly impact the entitg’ economic performance; (b) the obligation to absbe expected losses; or (c) the right to rectiieeexpecte
residual returns; or (3) have disproportional vgtirights and the entitg’ activities are conducted on behalf of the invedtat ha
disproportionally few voting rights.

The Company consolidates a VIE when it has bothpthwer to direct the activities that most signifittg impact the econom
performance of the VIE and a right to receive biseair absorb losses of the entity that could beemtally significant to the VIE. Tt
Company is required to reconsider its evaluationvbéther to consolidate a VIE each reporting pertmased upon changes in the facts
circumstances pertaining to the VIE.
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Investment Securities Available for Sal&@he Company's investment securities, where thevédire option has not been elected
which are reported at fair value with unrealizethgand losses reported in other comprehensivarirgOCI"), include residential mortgage-
backed securities (“RMBS”) that are issued by goxeFnt sponsored enterprises (“GSEVhich, together with RMBS issued or guarantee
other GSEs or government agencies, is referred tdgency RMBS,” non-Agency RMBS, collateralizeditoobligations (“CLOs”) and multi-
family commercial mortgage-backed securities (“CMB®ur investment securities are classified as aviailfdy sale securities. Realized g
and losses recorded on the sale of investmentieswavailable for sale are based on the speidéntification method and included in reali
gain (loss) on sale of securities and related hedy¢he consolidated statements of operationshise premiums or discounts on investi
securities are amortized or accreted to interestinre over the estimated life of the investment stes using the effective yield meth
Adjustments to amortization are made for actuap@yenent activity.

When the fair value of an investment security ssléhan its amortized cost at the balance sheet thed security is considel
impaired. The Company assesses its impaired siesudh at least a quarterly basis, and designatgsimpairments as either “temporamy”
“other-than-temporary.If the Company intends to sell an impaired secutyit is more likely than not that it will be reiged to sell th
impaired security before its anticipated recovéngn it must recognize an other-th@mporary impairment through earnings equal toethtére
difference between the investment's amortized aostits fair value at the balance sheet date elfGbmpany does not expect to sell an other
than-temporarily impaired security, only the pantiof the other-thatemporary impairment related to credit losses ogaized throug
earnings with the remainder recognized as a comyarfeother comprehensive income (loss) on the alisted balance sheet. Impairme
recognized through other comprehensive income )lass not impact earnings. Following the recognitioh an other-thanemporanr
impairment through earnings, a new cost basistabéshed for the security, which may not be adjddor subsequent recoveries in fair vi
through earnings. However, other-th@mporary impairments recognized through earningg be accreted back to the amortized cost ba
the security on a prospective basis through inténeesme. The determination as to whether an dt@ntemporary impairment exists and
so, the amount considered other-thh@mporarily impaired is subjective, as such deteations are based on both factual and subje
information available at the time of assessmentaAgsult, the timing and amount of other-th@amporary impairments constitute mate
estimates that are susceptible to significant chang

The Companys investment securities available for sale alsdudes its investment in a wholly owned account nref@é to as ot
Agency IO portfolio. These investments primarilgluide interest only and inverse interest only siéesr(collectively referred to as “IOstha
are guaranteed or issued by a GSE or governmentpgéhe Agency IO portfolio investments includeidative investments not designate:
hedging instruments for accounting purposes, witrealized gains and losses recognized throughreggrin the consolidated statement
operations. The Company has elected the fair vapt®n for these investment securities which alsasures unrealized gains and lo
through earnings in the consolidated statementspafrations, as the Company believes this accourttie@tment more accurately ¢
consistently reflects their results of operations.

Mortgage Loans Held in Securitization TrustdMortgage loans held in securitization trusts argage adjustable rate mortge
("ARM") loans transferred to New York Mortgage Tr@905-1, New York Mortgage Trust 2005-2 and NewRrMortgage Trust 2003-tha
have been securitized into sequentially rated elas$ beneficial interests. The Company accourgedhiese securitization trusts as financ
which are consolidated into the financial statermehtortgage loans held in securitization trustscamied at their unpaid principal balan
net of unamortized premium or discount, unamortipath origination costs and allowance for loan ésss

Interest income is accrued and recognized as reveiien earned according to the terms of the moetd@ans and when, in t
opinion of management, it is collectible. The aatrof interest on loans is discontinued when, imaggemens opinion, the interest is r
collectible in the normal course of business, Iuhd case when payment becomes greater than 90ddégguent. Loans return to accr
status when principal and interest become curnethtaae anticipated to be fully collectible.

Allowance for Loan Losses on Mortgage Loans Hel&éauritization Trusts We establish an allowance for loan losses bas
management's judgment and estimate of credit lashesent in our portfolio of mortgage loans heldsécuritization trusts.

Estimation involves the consideration of variousdit-related factors including but not limited toacroeconomic conditions, tl
current housing market conditions, loanvilue ratios, delinquency status, historical crémbs severity rates, purchased mortgage insul
the borrower's current economic condition and offaetors deemed to warrant consideration. Additignave look at the balance of a
delinquent loan and compare that to the currentevaf the collateralizing property. We utilize vars home valuation methodologies incluc
appraisals, broker pricing opinions (“BPOs”"), imtetbased property data services to review comparablgepties in the same area or cor
with a realtor in the property's area.
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Comparing the current loan balance to the propeatye determines the current loan-to-value (“LTV&}io of the loan. General
we estimate that a first lien loan on a propertgt thoes into a foreclosure process and becomesstate owned (“REO”)esults in th
property being disposed of at approximately 84%hef current value. This estimate is based on manegts experience as well as real
severity rates since issuance of our securitizatidrhis base provision for a particular loan mayadogusted if we are aware of spec
circumstances that may affect the outcome of the foitigation process for that loan. However, wedpminantly use the base reserve nui
for our reserve. If real estate markets continugetdine, we may adjust our anticipated realizafiercentage.

Mortgage Loans Held for InvestmentMortgage loans held for investment are stated paighprincipal balance, adjusted for
unamortized premium or discount, deferred feesxperses, net of valuation allowances. Interesirimeis accrued on the principal amour
the loan based on the loantontractual interest rate. Amortization of prems$ and discounts is recorded using the effectivdd
method. Interest income, amortization of premiwand discounts and prepayment fees are reporteddrest income. Loans are considere
be impaired when it is probable that, based uporentiinformation and events, the Company will Imahle to collect all amounts due ur
the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Basdtie facts and circumstances of the individoahs being impaired, loan specific valua
allowances are established for the excess carmahge of the loan over either: (i) the present gadfiexpected future cash flows discounte
the loan’s original effective interest rate, (lietestimated fair value of the loaninderlying collateral if the loan is in the pres®f foreclosul
or otherwise collateral dependent, or (iii) then@aobservable market price.

Investment in Limited PartnershipThe Company has an equity investment in a limitedngrship. In circumstances where
Company has a notentrolling interest but either owns a significamterest or is able to exert influence over theiedf of the enterprise, t
Company utilizes the equity method of accountitlgnder the equity method of accounting, the initiestment is increased each perioc
additional capital contributions and a proportienghare of the entity’earnings and decreased for cash distributionsgrdportionate she
of the entity’s losses.

Management periodically reviews its investmentsifopairment based on projected cash flows fromehgty over the holdin
period. When any impairment is identified, thedstments are written down to recoverable amounts.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsCash and cash equivalents include cash on handyrasmdue from banks and overnight deposits.
Company maintains its cash and cash equivalentighly rated financial institutions, and at timbgse balances exceed insurable amounts.

Receivables and Other AssetfReceivables and other assets include restricteld lcalsl by third parties of $25.8 million wh
includes $16.5 million held in our Agency 10 poiifoto be used for trading purposes and $9.1 mmillield by counterparties as collateral
hedging instruments at December 31, 2011.

Financing Arrangements, Portfolio Investmenrtdnvestment securities available for sale are tyjyicBnanced with repurcha
agreements, a form of collateralized borrowing Whig secured by the securities on the balance .st&gth financings are recorded at t
outstanding principal balance with any accruedrégedue recorded as an accrued expense.

Collateralized Debt Obligations (“CDOs"} We use CDOs to permanently finance our loans heldeicuritization trusts. F
financial reporting purposes, the ARM loans held@tateral are recorded as assets of the Compashyhe CDO is recorded as the Company’
debt. The Company has completed four securitizatgimce inception, the first three were accounted$ a permanent financing and the fc
was accounted for as a sale and accordingly, irbtded in the Company’s financial statements.

F-10




Subordinated Debentures Subordinated debentures are trust preferred sesuthat are fully guaranteed by the Company
respect to distributions and amounts payable ujpguidation, redemption or repayment. These sdeariare classified as subordine
debentures in the liability section of the Compamgonsolidated balance sheet.

Derivative Financial Instruments- The Company has developed risk management progeamdsprocesses, which incl
investments in derivative financial instrumentsigesd to manage interest rate and prepayment ss@csted with its securities investrr
activities.

Derivative instruments contain an element of riskthie event that the counterparties may be unablmdet the terms of su
agreements. The Company minimizes its risk expolsuiéniting the counterparties with which it ergénto contracts to banks and investn
banks who meet established credit and capital gnéate

The Company invests in To-Be-Announced securiti@BAs”) through its Agency 10 portfolio. TBAs areofwardsettling
purchases and sales of Agency RMBS where the wingrpools of mortgage loans are “To-Be-Announcelursuant to these TE
transactions, we agree to purchase or sell, fardusettlement, Agency RMBS with certain principald interest terms and certain type
underlying collateral, but the particular Agency BBIto be delivered is not identified until shorbigfore the TBA settlement date. For T
contracts that we have entered into, we have resrtesi that physical settlement is probable, tbeeefve have not designated these fon
commitments as hedging instruments. Realized angalined gains and losses associated with thesesTéBé recognized through earning
the consolidated statements of operations.

For derivative instruments that are designated qualify as a cash flow hedge, the effective portafrthe gain or loss on t
derivative instrument is reported as a componer®@@f and reclassified into earnings in the saméodeor periods during which the hed;
transaction affects earnings. The remaining gailoss on the derivative instruments in excess efdlimulative change in the present valt
future cash flows of the hedged item, if any, isognized in current earnings during the periodhafrge.

For instruments that are not designated or qual#fya cash flow hedge, such as our use of U.S. 0meascurities or Eurodoll
futures contracts, any realized and unrealized sgaimd losses associated with these instrumentseaognized through earnings in
consolidated statement of operations.

Termination of Hedging Relationships The Company employs risk management monitoring gaoes to ensure that
designated hedging relationships are demonstradimd) are expected to continue to demonstrate,haléng! of effectiveness. Hedge accoun
is discontinued on a prospective basis if it ised®ined that the hedging relationship is no lorigghly effective or expected to be hig
effective in offsetting changes in fair value oé thedged item.

Additionally, the Company may elect to un-designatéedge relationship during an interim period aedesignate upon tl

rebalancing of a hedge profile and the correspantiedge relationship. When hedge accounting isodiswued, the Company continues
carry the derivative instruments at fair value wittanges recorded in current earnings.
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Revenue Recognitiohlnterest income on our investment securities andwnmortgage loans is accrued based on the odisg
principal balance and their contractual terms. Ruams and discounts associated with investment geuand mortgage loans at the timi
purchase or origination are amortized into inteiesbme over the life of such securities using #fiective yield method. Adjustments
premium amortization are made for actual prepayraetivity.

Interest income on our credit sensitive securitsesh as our noAgency RMBS and certain of our CMBS that were pasgd at
discount to par value, is recognized based on ¢#oergy’s effective interest rate. The effective interederon these securities is base:
management’s estimate from each security of thgegted cash flows, which are estimated based orCtirapanys assumptions related
fluctuations in interest rates, prepayment speedstlae timing and amount of credit losses. On astla quarterly basis, the Company rev
and, if appropriate, makes adjustments to its dash projections based on input and analysis resgtifrom external sources, internal moc
and its judgment about interest rates, prepaynaesy the timing and amount of credit losses, ahdrdactors. Changes in cash flows f
those originally projected, or from those estima#dthe last evaluation, may result in a prospectitange in the yield/interest incc
recognized on these securities.

Based on the projected cash flows from the Comgafigst loss CMBS POs purchased at a discount tovalaie, a portion of tt
purchase discount is designated as non-accretabt@éase discount or credit reserve, which effebtingitigates the Compang’risk of loss o
the mortgages collateralizing such CMBS and isexpected to be accreted into interest income. Tineuat designated as a credit reserve
be adjusted over time, based on the actual perfwenaf the security, its underlying collateral, u.adtand projected cash flow from s
collateral, economic conditions and other facttrthe performance of a security with a credit reseis more favorable than forecaste
portion of the amount designated as credit reserag be accreted into interest income over time VE€wsely, if the performance of a secu
with a credit reserve is less favorable than fasterd the amount designated as credit reserve magcbeased, or impairment charges
write-downs of such securities to a new cost bemisd result.

With respect to interest rate swaps and caps that hot been designated as hedges, any net payumelatis or fluctuations in the
fair value of, such swaps and caps will be recagphin current earnings.

Other Comprehensive Income (Losspther comprehensive income (loss) is comprised gmilynof income (loss) from changes
value of the Company’ available for sale securities, and the impactieferred gains or losses on changes in the fairevaf derivativ
contracts hedging future cash flows.

Employee Benefits PlarsThe Company sponsors a defined contribution fitae “Plan”)for all eligible domestic employees. 1
Plan qualifies as a deferred salary arrangemergru@dction 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Campany made no contributions to
Plan for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Stock Based CompensatierCompensation expense for equity based awards égméred over the vesting period of such aw:
based upon the fair value of the stock at the giate.

Income Taxes- The Company operates so as to qualify as a RElTemutite requirements of the Internal Revenue (
Requirements for qualification as a REIT includerioas restrictions on ownership of the Compangtock, requirements concerr
distribution of taxable income and certain resiics on the nature of assets and sources of incAnREIT must distribute at least 90% of
taxable income to its stockholders of which 85%spny undistributed amounts from the prior yeartnbesdistributed within the taxable y
in order to avoid the imposition of an excise tBistribution of the remaining balance may extendiluimely filing of the Companys tay
return in the subsequent taxable year. Qualifyistridutions of taxable income are deductible BRET in computing taxable income.

HC and NYMF are TRSs and therefore subject to fddmmd state income taxes. Accordingly, deferredasets and liabilities ¢
recognized for the future tax consequences ataiidatto differences between the financial statencantying amounts of existing assets
liabilities and their respective tax base upon dhange in tax status. Deferred tax assets anditiebiare measured using enacted tax
expected to apply to taxable income in the yearwhich those temporary differences are expectebetoecovered or settled. The effec
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a changeirates is recognized in income in the period ithdudes the enactment date.

Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 Accangptfor Income Taxes (“ASC 740’)rovides guidance for how uncertain
positions should be recognized, measured, presesmeddisclosed in the financial statements. ASC réduires the evaluation of tax positi
taken or expected to be taken in the course ofgpireg the Company'’s tax returns to determine whetthe tax positions are “more-likely-than-
not” of being sustained by the applicable tax authotitysituations involving uncertain tax positiongated to income tax matters, we do
recognize benefits unless it is more likely thanthat they will be sustained. ASC 740 was appledll open taxable years as of the effec
date. Managemerst’determinations regarding ASC 740 may be subjeottiew and adjustment at a later date based aorfincluding, bt
not limited to, an ongoing analysis of tax lawgukations and interpretations thereof. The Compaitlyrecognize interest and penalties, if
related to uncertain tax positions as income tpeaze.



Earnings Per Share- Basic earnings per share excludes dilution andomputed by dividing net income available to com
stockholders by the weightenkerage number of shares of common stock outstgrfdinthe period. Diluted earnings per share réslehe
potential dilution that could occur if securities @her contracts to issue common stock were es@icor converted into common stocl
resulted in the issuance of common stock that ghemed in the earnings of the Company.
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A Summary of Recent Accounting Pronouncementsv#l
Receivables (ASC 31

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-8&ceivables (Topic 310): A CrediterDetermination of Whether a Restructu
is a Troubled Debt RestructuringASU 201102 clarifies whether loan modifications constitiiteubled debt restructurings. In evalua
whether a restructuring constitutes a troubled debtructuring, a creditor must separately conclindg both of the following exist: (a) t
restructuring constitutes a concession; and (b#isor is experiencing financial difficulties. BS01102 is effective for the first interim
annual period beginning on or after June 15, 2@hdl, should be applied retrospectively to the beg@mof the annual period of adoption. -
adoption of ASU 2011-02 did not have an effect anfonancial condition, results of operations amsttbsures.

Transfers and Servicing (ASC 860)

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-03ansfers and Servicing (Topic 860): Reconsideratid Effective Control fc
Repurchase Agreemer. ASU 2011-03 is intended to improve financial ngjmg of repurchase agreements (“repasifl other agreements t
both entitle and obligate a transferor to repurehas redeem financial assets before their matuhitya typical repo transaction, an er
transfers financial assets to a counterparty imhamnge for cash with an agreement for the countgrpareturn the same or equivalent finar
assets for a fixed price in the future. FASB Acdingn Standards Codification (“Codification”) Top860, Transfers and Servicingprescribe
when an entity may or may not recognize a sale tperiransfer of financial assets subject to regre@ments. That determination is base
part, on whether the entity has maintained effectiontrol over the transferred financial assete dimendments to the Codification in this £
are intended to improve the accounting for thearsiactions by removing from the assessment oftaféecontrol the criterion requiring t
transferor to have the ability to repurchase oeead the financial assets. The guidance in the ASeffective for the first interim or anni
period beginning on or after December 15, 2011. hielance should be applied prospectively to tretimas or modifications of existil
transactions that occur on or after the effectiaedEarly adoption is not permitted. We do noteetgthe adoption of ASU 20103 to have &
effect on our financial condition, results of ogeras and disclosures.

Fair Value Measurements (ASC 8.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-64jr Value Measurements (Topic 820): Amendment&disieve Common F¢
Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements ifGB8P and International Financial Reporting Standsar(“ IFRS ). ASU 2011604
represents the converged guidance of the FASB lendASB (the “Boards”pn fair value measurements. The collective effoftthe Board
and their staffs, reflected in ASU 2004 have resulted in common requirements for m@agdiair value and for disclosing information ak
fair value measurements, including a consistentningaof the term “fair value. The Boards have concluded the common requiremeifii
result in greater comparability of fair value measnents presented and disclosed in financial sert&srprepared in accordance with G/
and IFRS. The amendments in this ASU are requaduktapplied prospectively, and are effective fiderim and annual periods beginning &
December 15, 2011. We do not expect the adopticgkStf 201104 to have a significant effect on our financiahdiion, results of operatio
and disclosures.

Comprehensive Income (ASC 220)

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-08mprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation ah@ehensive Income
which amends current comprehensive income guidak8bl. 201105 eliminates the option to present the componehtgher comprehensi
income as part of the statement of sharehold=ysity. Instead, the Company must report compréheriscome in either a single continu
statement of comprehensive income which contains $ections, net income and other comprehensiveniacr in two separate |
consecutive statements. However, in December 20@1FASB issued ASU No. 2011-1Referral of the Effective Date for Amendments &
Presentation of Reclassifications of Iltems Out ofumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accouritagdards Update No. 2C-05,
which deferred the guidance on whether to requirities to present reclassification adjustments afuaccumulated other comprehen:
income by component in both the statement wherénoeme is presented and the statement where otineprehensive income is presentec
both interim and annual financial statements. A®W1212 reinstated the requirements for the presentatioaclassifications that were in pl:
prior to the issuance of ASU 2011-05 and did naingfe the effective date for ASU 2011-05. The ameamdmin ASU 2011-05 and ASU 2011-
12 are effective for fiscal years, and interim pds within those years, beginning after December 2BL1 and should be appl
retrospectively. The early adoption of this guidanaring 2011 did not have a significant impacban financial position, results of operati
and disclosures as it only required a change itfidimeat of the current presentation.

Balance Sheet (ASC 21

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011Hi4closures about Offsetting Assets and LiabilitieBhe update requir
new disclosures about balance sheet offsettingraladed arrangements. For derivatives and finarasakets and liabilities, the amendm



require disclosure of gross asset and liability ants, amounts offset on the balance sheet, and ramagubject to the offsetti
requirements but not offset on the balance shéwt.guidance is effective January 1, 2013 and ixetapplied retrospectively. The adoptio
ASU 201141 will have an effect on our disclosures but wendbexpect the adoption to have an effect on mantial condition or results
operations.
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2. Investment Securities Available For Sale

Investment securities available for sale consisheffollowing as of December 31, 2011 (dollar amtsun thousands):

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Carrying
Costs Gains Losses Value
Agency RMBS $ 139,63¢ $ 2327 $ (9,509 $ 132,45
CMBS 42,22 12¢ (1,164 41,18¢
Non Agency RMB¢S 5,15¢ — (1,211 3,94t
CLOs 10,26: 12,49: — 22,75¢
Total $ 197,27¢ $ 14,94¢  $ (11,884 $ 200,34.

Securities included in investment securities atééldor sale as part of our Agency IO portfoliotthee measured at fair value
through earnings consist of the following as of @aber 31, 2011 (dollar amounts in thousands):

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Carrying
Costs Gains Losses Value
Interest only securities included in Agency RMBS:
Federal National Mortgage Association (“Fannie Mae” $ 31,07¢ $ 49C % (3,908 $ 27,66
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FreddiecMa 19,477 142 (2,554 17,06¢
Government National Mortgage Association (“GinniadVl 21,65¢ 304 (3,004 18,95¢
Total $ 72,21: % 93¢ $ (9,466 $ 63,68:

Investment securities available for sale consisheffollowing as of December 31, 2010 (dollar amtsun thousands):

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Carrying
Costs Gains Losses Value
Agency RMBS (1) $ 4586¢ $ 1,66« $ — 3 47,52¢
Non Agency RMBS 10,07: 8C (1,166 8,98¢
CLOs 11,28t¢ 18,24( — 29,52¢
Total $ 67,22: $ 19,98 $ (1,166 $ 86,04(

(1) Agency RMBS includes only Fannie Mae issuemligges at December 31, 2010.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coympaceived total proceeds of approximately $20.8lioni realizing
approximately $5.0 million of profit before incevei fee, from the sale of certain CLO investmengstain Agency RMBS and U.S. Treas
securities. During the year ended December 3102@ie Company received total proceeds of appraeina$46.0 million, realizin
approximately $5.0 million of profit before inceveifee, from the sale of certain Agency RMBS and-Agency RMBS.

Actual maturities of our available for sale sedastare generally shorter than stated contractadlinities (which range up to 3!

years), as they are affected by the contractuasliof the underlying mortgages, periodic payment$ prepayments of principal. As
December 31, 2011 and 2010, the weighted avertgeflthe Company’s available for sale securitiedfplio is approximately 5.24 years.
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The following tables set forth the stated resetqoisr of our investment securities available foresal December 31, 2011 (do

amounts in thousands):

Agency RMBS
CMBS

Non-Agency RMBS
CLO

Total

More than
Less than 6 Months More than
6 Months To 24 Months 24 Months Total
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
Value Value Value Value
$ 7498: $ 29,21( $ 28,26: $ 132,45
— — 41,18* 41,18¢
3,94¢ — — 3,94¢
22,75t — — 22,75¢
$ 101,68: $ 29.21( % 69,44¢ $ 200,34

The following tables set forth the stated resetqoisr of our investment securities available foresal December 31, 2010 (do

amounts in thousands):

Agency RMBS
Non-Agency RMBS
CLO

Total

More than
Less than 6 Months More than
6 Months To 24 Months 24 Months Total
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
Value Value Value Value
$ 25,816 $ 531 $ 16,400 $ 47,52¢
8,985 — — 8,98¢
29,52¢ — — 29,52¢
$ 64,327 $ 531 $ 16,400 $ 86,04(

The following table presents the Company's investnsecurities available for sale in an
OCI, aggregated by investment category and lenfttimee that individual securities have been in atowous unrealized loss positior
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (dollayuats in thousands):

unrealizesk Iposition reported throu

December 31, 2011 Less than 12 Months Greater than 12 months Total
Gross Gross Gross
Carrying Unrealized Carrying Unrealized Carrying Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Agency RMBS $ 13,71¢ $ 43 $ — 3 — 3 13,71¢ $ 43
CMBS 13,39¢ 1,16¢ — — 13,39¢ 1,16¢
Non-Agency RMBS — — 3,94 1,211 3,94¢ 1,211
Total $ 27,11« $ 1,207 $ 394/ % 1,211 $ 31,05¢ % 2,41¢
December 31, 2010 Less than 12 Months Greater than 12 months Total
Gross Gross Gross
Carrying Unrealized Carrying Unrealized Carrying Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Non-Agency RMBS $ — $ — $ 6,43¢ $ 1,16€ $ 6,43¢ $ 1,16¢
Total $ — $ — $ 6,43¢ $ 1,166 $ 6,43¢ $ 1,16¢

As of December 31, 2011, the Company recognized.8 #illion other-thartemporary impairment through earnings. A:
December 31, 2010, the Company did not have uzeghlpbsses in investment securities that were deéearther-than-temporary.
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3. Mortgage Loans Held in Securitization Trusts and Ral Estate Owned

Mortgage loans held in securitization trusts (rehsist of the following at December 31, 2011 a®d @ respectively (doll
amounts in thousands):

December 31,

2011 2010
Mortgage loans principal amount $ 208,93 $ 229,32!
Deferred origination costs — net 1,317 1,451
Reserve for loan losses (3,331 (2,589
Total $ 206,92( $ 228,18!

Allowance for Loan lossesThe following table presents the activity in thengmany's allowance for loan losses on mortgage
held in securitization trusts for the years endedénber 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (dollanarson thousands):

Years ended December 31,

2010 2010
Balance at beginning of period $ 258¢ $ 2,581
Provisions for loan losses 1,38( 1,56(
Transfer to real estate owned (292 (564
Charge-offs (446 (988
Balance at the end of period $ 3,331 $ 2,58¢

On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates theuadg®f its allowance for loan losses. The Compaajlowance for loan loss
at December 31, 2011 was $3.3 million, represeritB@basis points of the outstanding principal bedéaof loans held in securitization trust
of December 31, 2011, as compared to 113 basidspadiof December 31, 2010. As part of the Comigaaijfowance for loan adequ
analysis, management will assess an overall lelvallowances while also assessing credit lossesrértt in each noperforming mortgac
loan held in securitization trusts. These estimateslve the consideration of various credit rethfactors, including but not limited to, curr
housing market conditions, current loan to valuigosa delinquency status, borrowgrturrent economic and credit status and othevasl
factors.

Real Estate Owned Fhe following table presents the activity in thengany’s real estate owned held in securitization trustgHe
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respgoctidatlar amounts in thousand.

December 31,

2011 2010
Balance at beginning of period $ 74C  $ 54¢€
Write downs (87) (293
Transfer from mortgage loans held in securitizatiosts 69¢ 1,39¢
Disposal (897, (1,011
Balance at the end of period $ 454 % 74C

Real estate owned held in securitization trustsrarieided in receivables and other assets on tlanba sheet and write downs
included in provision for loan losses in the stagatrof operations for reporting purposes.

All of the Companys mortgage loans and real estate owned held iniSeation trusts are pledged as collateral for @20s issue
by the Company. As of December 31, 2011 and 20E0Companys net investment in the securitization trusts, Whicthe maximum amot
of the Companys investment that is at risk to loss and represhetslifference between the carrying amount ofitla@s and real estate owi
held in securitization trusts and the amount of GOtstanding, was $7.6 million and $8.9 millioespectively.
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Delinquency Status of Our Mortgage Loans Held in Smuritization Trusts

As of December 31, 2011, we had 38 delinquent lomitls an aggregate principal amount outstandingambroximately $21
million categorized as Mortgage Loans Held in Sei@ation Trusts (net). Of the $21.0 million inlotejuent loans, $18.0 million, or 86%,
currently under some form of modified payment pldie table below shows delinquencies in our pbafof loans held in securitization trus
including real estate owned through foreclosure@REs of December 31, 2011 (dollar amounts inshads):

December 31, 2011

Number of Delinquent Total % of Loan
Days Late Loans Dollar Amount Portfolio
30-60 2 $ 517 0.25%
61-90 1 $ 37¢ 0.16%
90+ 35 $ 20,13¢ 9.61%
Real estate owned through foreclosure 3 $ 65€ 0.31%

As of December 31, 2010, we had 46 delinquent lomitls an aggregate principal amount outstandingambroximately $25
million categorized as Mortgage Loans Held in Sei@ation Trusts (net). Of the $25.1 million inlotejuent loans, $17.8 million, or 71%,
currently under some form of modified payment pldie table below shows delinquencies in our pbafof loans held in securitization trus
including real estate owned through foreclosure@REs of December 31, 2010 (dollar amounts inshods):

December 31, 2010

Number of Delinquent Total % of Loan
Days Late Loans Dollar Amount Portfolio
30-60 7 $ 2,51t 1.0¢%
61-90 4 $ 4,36: 1.8%%
90+ 35 $ 18,19: 7.9(%
Real estate owned through foreclosure 3 $ 894 0.3%%

4, Variable Interest Entities

The Company has evaluated its real estate debstimests to determine whether they are a VIE. ABDefember 31, 2011, t
Company identified interests in four entities whiglere determined to be VIEs. Based on managemsamalysis, the Company is not
primary beneficiary of three of the identified VIEmce it (i) does not have the power to directahtvities that most significantly impact -
VIE's economic performance; and (ii) does not haveotiigation to absorb the losses of the VIE or fightrto receive the benefits from
VIE, which could be significant to the VIE. Accondjly, these VIEs are not consolidated into the Camyfs financial statements as
December 31, 2011.

The Companys three identified variable interests in a VIE thae not consolidated are investment securitiel wifair value ¢
$41.2 million, which is our maximum exposure toslo¥he Company has accounted for these three meaestsecurities as available for ¢
securities at fair value, with unrealized gains ss$es reported in OCI. The investment securiigssist of first loss principal only strips fri
Freddie Mac Multi-Family K-Series CMBS securitizats.

The Company has identified one entity that it hatednined that it has a variable interest in a ¥ for which it is the prima
beneficiary and has a controlling financial intéréhe entity is an investment in a limited liabilicompany that has provided a loan
borrower that is secured by commercial propertye Tdan is for $2.5 million and the limited liabjlitompany has been consolidated intc
Company'’s financial statements.
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5. Investment in Limited Partnership

The Company has a nawntrolling, unconsolidated limited partnershipeirgst in an entity that is accounted for using ehaity
method of accounting. Capital contributions, disttions, and profits and losses of the entity alecated in accordance with the terms of
limited partnership agreement. The Company owng/4 08 the equity of the limited partnership, but hes decisiommaking powers, ar
therefore does not consolidate the limited partmprsOur maximum exposure to loss in this variahterest entity is $8.5 million and $1.
million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectivBlyring the third and fourth quarters of 2010, H®ested, in exchange for limit
partnership interests, $19.4 million in this linttgartnership that was formed for the purpose ofuaing, servicing, selling or otherwi
disposing of firstlien residential mortgage loans. The pool of magk loans was acquired by the partnership at afisent discount to th
loans’ unpaid principal balance.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company hadvaesiment in this limited partnership of $8.5 moifliand $18.7 milliol
respectively. For the years ended December 311 2adl 2010, the Company recognized income froninestment in limited partnership
$1.8 million and $0.5 million, respectively. Fdretyears ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the &gynrpceived distributions from |
investment in limited partnership of $11.8 milliand $1.2 million, respectively.

The balance sheet of the investment in limitedraghip at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectigeds follows (dollar amour
in thousands):

December 31,

Assets 2011 2010
Cash $ 1,15¢ $ 152
Mortgage loans held for sale (net) 6,91¢ 18,07:
Other assets 661 47¢
Total Assets $ 8,73: $ 18,70:

Liabilities & Partners’ Equity

Other liabilities $ 206 $ 37
Partners’ equity 8,52 18,66
Total Liabilities & Partners’ Equity $ 8,73: $ 18,70:

The statement of operations of the investmentmitdid partnership for the years ended Decembe2@ll] and 2010, respectively
as follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

Years ended December 31,

Statement of Operations 2011 2010
Interest income $ 1,267 $ 48¢
Realized gain 1,10 164
Total Income 2,37¢ 65
Other expenses (53€) (157)
Net Income $ 1,83t $ 49¢€

During the second quarter of 2011, RBCM invested $8illion in a limited liability company that wadsrmed for the purpose
investing in two tranches of securities. For tharyended December 31, 2011, the Company recoginizeche from the investment in limit
liability company of $0.3 million, which was accded for using the equity method of accounting. fheryear ended December 31, 2011
Company received distributions from the investmienthis limited liability company of $0.2 millionThe limited liability company wz
dissolved on December 30, 2011 and the two tranchesgcurities transferred to the Company at cagyialue as directly owned securi
accounted for as investment securities availabledte.
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6. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company enters into derivative instruments anage its interest rate risk exposure. These damvanstruments incluc
interest rate swaps, caps and futures. The Compeayyalso purchase or short TBAs and U.S. Treasoyrgies, purchase put or call opti
on U.S. Treasury futures or invest in other typlesortgage derivative securities.

The following table presents the fair value of dative instruments held in our Agency 10 portfotitat were not designated
hedging instruments and their location in the Comyp&a consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 20412010, respectively (dol
amounts in thousands):

Derivatives Not Designated December 31, December 31,
as Hedging Instruments Balance Sheet Location 2011 2010
TBA securities Derivative assets $ 207,89. $ —
Options on U.S. Treasury futures Derivative assets 327 —
U.S. Treasury futures Derivative liabilities 56€ —
Eurodollar futures Derivative liabilities 1,74¢ —

The tables below summarize the activity of derivatinstruments not designated as hedges for theeyeted December 31, 2(
(dollar amounts in thousands). There were no devivénstruments not designated as hedges foraine period in 2010.

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Notional Amount Notional Amount
as of Settlement, as of
Derivatives Not Designated December 31, Expiration December 31,
as Hedging Instruments 2010 Additions or Exercise 2011
TBA securities $ — % 1,017,000 $ (815,000 $ 202,00(
U.S. Treasury futures — 566,60( (659,40() (92,800
Short sales of Eurodollar futures — 1,938,001 (4,360,001 (2,422,000
Options on U.S. Treasury futures — 795,00( (595,50() 199,50(

The TBAs in our Agency IO portfolio are accounted &t fair value with both realized and unrealiggihs and losses includec
other income (expense) in our consolidated statésrafroperations. The use of TBAs exposes the Cosnfimarket value risk, as the mal
value of the securities that the Company is requicepurchase pursuant to a TBA transaction mayirdebelow the agreedpon purchas
price. Conversely, the market value of the seasithat the Company is required to sell pursuaat T®A transaction may increase above
agreed upon sale price. For the year ended Dece®ihe2011, we recorded net realized gains of $ZIBomand unrealized gains of $:
million. There were no realized or unrealized gaindosses from TBAs for the same period in 2010DAcember 31, 2011 our consolide
balance sheet includes TB#lated liabilities of $206.8 million included irapable for securities purchased. Open TBA purchasessale
involving the same counterparty, same underlyiniyeeble and the same settlement date are reflénteur consolidated financial statem
on a net basis.

The Eurodollar futures in our Agency 10 portfoliceaaccounted for at fair value with both realized anrealized gains and los
included in other income (expense) in our constdidastatements of operations. For the year endexkrbleer 31, 2011, we recorded
realized losses of $2.0 million and net unrealilx$es of $1.7 million in our Eurodollar futuresntracts. The Eurodollar futures consis
2,422 contracts with expiration dates ranging betwklarch 2012 and September 2014. There were tiag@ar unrealized gains or los
from Eurodollars for the same period in 2010.

The U.S. Treasury futures and options in our Ageliyortfolio are accounted for at fair value whibth realized and unrealiz
gains and losses included in other income (expeinselir consolidated statements of operations.tkeryear ended December 31, 2011
recorded net realized losses of $0.2 million anduneealized losses of $0.7 million. There wererealized or unrealized gains or losses 1
U.S. Treasury futures and options for the sameogden 2010.
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The following table presents the fair value of dafive instruments designated as hedging instrusnant their location in tl
Company’s consolidated balance sheets at Decemib@031 and 2010, respectively (dollar amounthigusands):

Derivatives Designated December 31, December 31,
as Hedging Instruments Balance Sheet Location 2011 2010
Interest Rate Swaps Derivative liabilities $ 304 $ 1,087

The following table presents the impact of the Camps derivative instruments on the Companyaccumulated oth
comprehensive income (loss) for the years ende@mber 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (dollar artsimthousands):

Years Ended December 31,

Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instruments 2011 2010
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) évivdtive instruments:

Balance at beginning of the period $ (2,087 $ (2,904
Unrealized gain on interest rate caps — 394
Unrealized gain on interest rate swaps 783 1,42:
Balance at end of the period $ (309 $ (1,087

The Company estimates that over the next 12 moathsioximately $0.3 million of the net unrealizeddes on the interest r
swaps will be reclassified from accumulated otl@nprehensive income (loss) into earnings.

The following table details the impact of the Comya interest rate swaps and interest rate caps iedlirdinterest expense for
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respgctilalar amounts in thousand:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010
Interest Rate Caps:
Interest expense-investment securities and loalukih securitization trusts $ — % 30¢
Interest expense-subordinated debentures — 92
Interest Rate Swaps:
Interest expense-investment securities 89:< 2,51t

The Companys interest rate swaps are designated as cash Bdgek against the benchmark interest rate riskciassd with it:
short term repurchase agreements. There weregis iccurred at the inception of our interest et@ps, under which the Company agre:
pay a fixed rate of interest and receive a variaitkrest rate based on one month LIBOR, on thnatamount of the interest rate swaps.
Company'’s interest rate swap notional amounts ased on an amortizing schedule fixed at the sttg df the transaction. The Company’
interest rate cap transactions are designated sis flw hedges against the benchmark interestrisiteassociated with the CDOs and
subordinated debentures. The interest rate capaciions were initiated with an upfront premiurattts being amortized over the life of
contract.

The Company documents its rigkanagement policies, including objectives and agiat, as they relate to its hedging activities
upon entering into hedging transactions, documethts relationship between the hedging instrument dhd hedged liabilit
contemporaneously. The Company assesses, boticettion of a hedge and on an on-going basis, wheath not the hedge ishighly
effective” when using the matched term basis.

The Company discontinues hedge accounting on gectise basis and recognizes changes in the fairevilarough earning
when: (i) it is determined that the derivativens longer effective in offsetting cash flows of ediged item (including forecasted transactic
(i) it is no longer probable that the forecastemhsaction will occur; or (iii) it is determinedathdesignating the derivative as a hedge
longer appropriate. The Company’s derivative instents are carried on the Companlgalance sheet at fair value, as assets, if fhieivalue
is positive, or as liabilities, if their fair value negative. For the Company’s derivative instrateghat are designated as “cash flow hedges,
changes in their fair value are recorded in accatadl other comprehensive income (loss), providatittie hedges are effective. A chanc
fair value for any ineffective amount of the Comyan derivative instruments would be recognized imiegs. The Company has
recognized any change in the value of its existegivative instruments designated as cash flow égdgrough earnings as a resul
ineffectiveness of any of its hedges.

F-20






The following table presents information about @@mpanys interest rate swaps as of December 31, 2011 @bd, 2espective
(dollar amounts in thousands):

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Notional Fixed Pay Notional Fixed Pay
Maturity (1) Amount Interest Rate Amount Interest Rate
Within 30 Days $ 14,93( 3.02% $ 24,08( 2.9%
Over 30 days to 3 months 26C 2.9¢ 2,11C 3.0¢
Over 3 months to 6 months 38C 2.9¢ 2,28( 3.0
Over 6 months to 12 months 81C 2.9: 5,60( 3.0
Over 12 months to 24 months 8,38( 2.9¢ 16,38( 3.01
Over 24 months to 36 months — 8,38( 2.9¢
Total $ 24,76( 2.9% $ 58,83( 3.0(%

(1) The Company enters into scheduled amortizitgrést rate swap transactions whereby the Compaywy a fixed rate of interest and
receives one month LIBOR.

Interest Rate Caps Interest rate caps were designated by the Compangsh flow hedges against interest rate risk &eocwitt
the Companys CDOs and the subordinated debentures. The intetescaps associated with the CDOs were amagtizimtractual schedul
determined at origination. The Company had $0 af@lGbmillion of notional interest rate caps outsliag as of December 31, 2011 and 2
respectively. These interest rate caps were edlito cap the interest rate on the CDOs at a fiaéel-when one month LIBOR exceec
predetermined rate. The interest rate caps expinedipril 25, 2011.

Interest Rate Swaps, Futures Contracts and TBABe- use of interest rate swaps “Swapgposes the Company to counterp
credit risks in the event of a default by a Swaprterparty. If a counterparty defaults under thgliapble Swap agreement, the Company
be unable to collect payments to which it is estitunder its Swap agreements, and may have difficdllecting the assets it pledgec
collateral against such Swaps. The Company cuyrdwats in place with all outstanding Swap countdiea bilateral margin agreeme
thereby requiring a party to post collateral to @@mpany for any valuation deficit. This arrangemis intended to limit the Comparsy’
exposure to losses in the event of a counterpafiyudt.

The Company is required to pledge assets underlatdval margin arrangement, including either cashAgency RMBS, &
collateral for its interest rate swaps, futurestm@mis and TBAs, whose collateral requirements wgrgounterparty and change over time b
on the market value, notional amount, and remaitengp of the agreement. In the event the Compsioypable to meet a margin call under
of its agreements, thereby causing an event ofutteda triggering an early termination event undee of its agreements, the counterpar
such agreement may have the option to terminatef @llich counterpartg’outstanding transactions with the Company. Inteag under thi
scenario, any close-out amount due to the countgrppon termination of the counterpasgytransactions would be immediately payable b
Company pursuant to the applicable agreement. Cdmepany believes it was in compliance with all nimmgquirements under its agreem:
as of December 31, 2011 and 2010. The Company$Bat million and $1.2 million of restricted casHated to margin posted for
agreements as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, tesbhec The restricted cash held by third parieicluded in receivables and other as
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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7. Financing Arrangements, Portfolio Investments

The Company has entered into repurchase agreeméhtthird party financial institutions to finanéts investment portfolio. Tt
repurchase agreements are shemta borrowings that bear interest rates typichiged on a spread to LIBOR, and are secured Igetheaitie
which they finance. At December 31, 2011, the Camyphad repurchase agreements with an outstandilagnde of $112.7 million anc
weighted average interest rate of 0.71%. As of bdxsgr 31, 2010, the Company had repurchase agreemitht an outstanding balance
$35.6 million and a weighted average interest o&t@.39%. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, secarjiledged by the Company as collal
for repurchase agreements had estimated fair valte®l29.9 million and $38.5 million, respectiveljll outstanding borrowings unc
our repurchase agreements mature within 30 dagsofADecember 31, 2011 and 2010, the average daysaturity for all repurcha
agreements is 19 days and 29 days, respectively.

The follow table summarizes outstanding repurchageement borrowings secured by portfolio investsi@s of December &
2011 and 2010, respectively (dollar amounts in saoals):

Repurchase Agreements by Counterparty

December 31, December 31,

Counterparty Name 2011 2010

Cantor Fitzgerald, L.P. $ 9,22t % 4,99(
Credit Suisse First Boston LLC 11,147 12,08(
Jefferies & Company, Inc. 18,38( 9,47¢
JPMorgan Chase & Co. 49,22¢ —
South Street Securities LLC 24,69¢ 9,08¢
Total Financing Arrangements, Portfolio Investments $ 112,67: $ 35,63

As of December 31, 2011, the outstanding balan@kempur repurchase agreements was funded at amaelvate of 84% th
implies an average haircut of 16%. The weightedagye “haircut’related to our repurchase agreement financingdo”gency 10s, CLOs ai
other Agency RMBS was approximately 25%, 35% and @&%4pectively, for a total weighted average “haitof 16%. The amount at ridor
Credit Suisse First Boston LLC, South Street SéiegriLLC, Jefferies & Company, Inc., Cantor Fitzgdy L.P., and JPMorgan Chase &
are $0.9 million, $1.9 million, $0.9 million, $4rRillion and $9.3 million, respectively.

In the event we are unable to obtain sufficientrsterm financing through repurchase agreements arwike, or our lenders st
to require additional collateral, we may have tpidate our investment securities at a disadvantagyéme, which could result in losses.
losses resulting from the disposition of our inwestit securities in this manner could have a matadieerse effect on our operating results
net profitability.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had $16.6amilh cash and $48.9 million in unencumbered itwest securities to me
additional haircut or market valuation requiremeimsluding $17.0 million of RMBS, of which $13.0iliion are Agency RMBS. The $1¢
million of cash and the $17.0 million in RMBS (whiccollectively, represents 30% of our financingaagements, portfolio investments)
liguid and could be monetized to pay down or cellalize the liability immediately. There is also atditional $16.5 million held in overnic
deposits in our Agency 1O portfolio included in treted cash that is available to meet margin cadist relates to our Agency 10 portfc
repurchase agreements.
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8. Collateralized Debt Obligations

The Company’s CDOs, which are recorded as liabditbn the Company’balance sheet, are secured by ARM loans pleds
collateral, which are recorded as assets of thegaosmn As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the CompandyCDOs outstanding of $19
million and $220.0 million, respectively. As of Dmnber 31, 2011 and 2010, the current weighted geeirgerest rate on these CDOs
0.68% and 0.65%, respectively. The CDOs are codired by ARM loans with a principal balance ofd82 million and $229.3 million
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Coynpetained the owner trust certificates, or realdnterest for three securitizations, ¢
as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, had a net ineastim the securitizations trusts of $7.6 milliarda58.9 million, respectively.

The CDO transactions included amortizing interatt cap contracts with an aggregate notional ammiu$® and $76.0 million as
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, whictewerorded as an asset of the Company. The intatestaps were carried at fair value
totaled $0 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010. Tteeeist rate caps reduced interest rate exposutieeoBDOs. The interest rate caps exf
on April 25, 2011.

9. Subordinated Debentures

The follow table summarizes outstanding repurchegeement borrowings secured by portfolio investsi@s of December &
2011 and 2010, respectively (dollar amounts in saoals):

December 31,
2011 2010
Subordinated debentures $ 45,000 $ 45,00(

On September 1, 2005 the Company closed a privatement of $20.0 million of trust preferred setiesi to Taberna Preferr
Funding Il, Ltd., a pooled investment vehicle. Weeurities were issued by NYM Preferred Trust il ane fully guaranteed by the Comp
with respect to distributions and amounts payabplendiquidation, redemption or repayment. Theseaisées had a fixed interest rate eque
8.35% up to and including July 30, 2010, at whidinpthe interest rate was converted to a floatatg equal to thremonth LIBOR plu
3.95% until maturity (4.38% at December 31, 201d 4r24% at December 31, 2010). The securities maatn October 30, 2035 and may
called at par by the Company any time after Octad@r 2010. The preferred stock of NYM Preferred strl has been classified
subordinated debentures in the liability sectiothef Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

On March 15, 2005 the Company closed a privateeptent of $25.0 million of trust preferred secusti® Taberna Preferr
Funding I, Ltd., a pooled investment vehicle. Tkeeuwities were issued by NYM Preferred Trust | ane fully guaranteed by the Comp.
with respect to distributions and amounts payablendiquidation, redemption or repayment. Theseustes have a floating interest rate et
to threemonth LIBOR plus 3.75%, resetting quarterly (4.38%®ecember 31, 2011 and 4.05% at December 31)20h6 securities matL
on March 15, 2035 and may be called at par by thagany any time after March 15, 2010. The prefestedk of NYM Preferred Trust | h
been classified as subordinated debentures inabidity section of the Company’s consolidated bakasheet.

As of March 5, 2012, the Company has not beeniadtifand is not aware, of any event of default urtte covenants for tl
subordinated debentures.

10. Convertible Preferred Debentures (Net)
The Company issued $20.0 million in Series A CurnivgaRedeemable Convertible Preferred Stock (trexigS A Preferred Stock”

that matured on December 31, 2010. The outstarstiages were redeemed by the Company at the $p6rQthare liquidation preference
accrued dividends on December 31, 2010.
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11. Discontinued Operation

In connection with the sale of our mortgage origjoraplatform assets during the quarter ended M&h2007, we classified ¢
mortgage lending segment as a discontinued oparafAis a result, we have reported revenues andneggerelated to the segment i
discontinued operation for all periods presenteth@maccompanying consolidated financial stateme@estain assets, such as the deferre
asset, and certain liabilities, such as subordéhdebentures and liabilities related to lease ifaslnot sold, are part of our ongoing operat
and accordingly, we have not included these itemgart of the discontinued operation. Assets aatdilities related to the discontint
operation are $4.0 million and $0.5 million, respesly, at December 31, 2011, and $4.0 million &6 million, respectively, at Decem
31, 2010, and are included in receivables and adlssets and accounts payable, accrued expensesthardiabilities in the consolidat
balance sheets.

Balance Sheet Dat:

The components of assets related to the discomtioperation as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, cégply, are as follows (doll
amounts in thousands):

December 31,

2011 2010
Accounts and accrued interest receivable $ 14 $ 18
Mortgage loans held for sale (net) 3,78( 3,80¢
Prepaid and other assets 24¢ 213
Total assets $ 4,04: % 4,03¢

The components of liabilities related to the digoored operation as of December 31, 2011 and 2@&Hpectively, are as folloy
(dollar amounts in thousands):

December 31,

2011 2010
Due to loan purchasers $ 34z % 34z
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 147 214
Total liabilities $ 48 $ 55€

Statements of Operations Da

The statements of operations of the discontinuestaijpn for the years ended December 31, 2011 8d0,Zespectively, are
follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

For the Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010
Revenues $ 20 % 1,40:
Expenses 14C 26¢
Income from discontinued operations — net of tax $ 63 $ 1,13¢
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12. Commitments and Contingencies

Loans Sold to Third Parties Fhe Company sold its discontinued mortgage lenbimginess in March 2007. In the normal cours
business, the Company is obligated to repurchemeslbased on violations of representations andawtes in the loan sale agreements.
Company did not repurchase any loans during thesyeaded December 31, 2011 and 2010. At Decemh&031, the Company had a rest
of approximately $0.3 million.

Outstanding Litigation The Company is at times subject to various legat@edings arising in the ordinary course of businAs
of December 31, 2011, the Company does not belieaeany of its current legal proceedings, indially or in the aggregate, will have
material adverse effect on its operations, findramadition or cash flows.

Leases -The Company leases its corporate office under a-¢don lease agreement expiring in 2013. This I&asecounted for i
an operating lease. Total property lease expense@ed to $0.2 million for each of the years enBedember 31, 2011 and 2010.

Letters of Credit- The Company maintains a letter of credit in the amt@f $0.2 million in lieu of a cash security dejidor its
current corporate headquarters, located at 52 \aiidé\wvenue in New York City, for its landlord, Vaerbilt Associates I, L.L.C,
beneficiary. This letter of credit is secured bgltdeposited in a bank account maintained at JRdho€Chase bank.

As of December 31, 2011, obligations under eaneelable operating leases that have an initial tf more than one year are
follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

Year Ending December 31, Total

2012 $ 19¢

2013 67
$ 2

13. Concentrations of Credit Risk

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were geograginicentrations of credit risk exceeding 5% of tibtal loan balances

follows:
December 31,
Mortgage loans held in securitization trusts and rel estate owned held in securitization trusts: 2011 2010
New York 37.5% 37.%%
Massachusetts 24.€% 25.(%
New Jerse 9.2% 8.7%
Florida 5.7% 5.€%
Connecticut 5.1% 4.7%
December 31,
CMBS investments: 2011 2010
Texas 14.5% —%
California 9.3% —%
New York 7.2% —%
Georgia 6.7% —%
Washington 6.3% —%
Florida 5.5% —%
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14. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company has established and documented predessietermining fair values. Fair value is baspdn quoted market pric
where available. If listed prices or quotes areav@ilable, then fair value is based upon intdyndéveloped models that primarily use inj
that are market-based or independently-sourcedehpdcameters, including interest rate yield curves

A financial instrumens categorization within the valuation hierarchyp&sed upon the lowest level of input that is sigaift to th
fair value measurement. The three levels of vaudtierarchy are defined as follows:

Level 1- inputs to the valuation methodology are quotedgsr(unadjusted) for identical assets or lialeiitin active markets.

Level 2- inputs to the valuation methodology include quagtedes for similar assets and liabilities in actimarkets, and inputs tt
are observable for the asset or liability, eitheeatly or indirectly, for substantially the fulttm of the financial instrument.

Level 3- inputs to the valuation methodology are unobdaesand significant to the fair value measurement.

The following describes the valuation methodologissd for the Companyfinancial instruments measured at fair valueyel as
the general classification of such instruments ypamg to the valuation hierarchy.

a. Investment Securities Available for Sale (RM- Fair value for the RMBS in our portfolio is basad quoted prices provid
by dealers who make markets in similar financiatimments. The dealers will incorporate common mapkicing method
including a spread measurement to the Treasuryecoininterest rate swap curve as well as underlghmyacteristics of ti
particular security including coupon, periodic difd caps, collateral type, rate reset period aedsening or age of t
security. If quoted prices for a security are reatsonably available from a dealer, the securityheilreclassified as a Level
security and, as a result, management will detegrttie fair value based on characteristics of tlar#tg that the Compat
receives from the issuer and based on availabl&kehamformation. Management reviews all prices ugedieterminin
valuation to ensure they represent current marketliions. This review includes surveying similaanket transaction
comparisons to interest pricing models as wellféariogs of like securities by dealers. The Compsiipvestment securiti
that are comprised of RMBS are valued based upadilyeobservable market parameters and are cledsifs Level 2 fa
values.

b. Investment Securities Available for Sale (CM- As the Companyg CMBS investments are comprised of securitiesvitch
there are not substantially similar securities trede frequently, the Company classifies thesargéxs as Level 3 fair value
Fair value of the Company’CMBS investments is based on an internal valnatiodel that considers expected cash f
from the underlying loans and yields required byketaparticipants.

C. Investment Securities Available for Sale (Cl- The fair value of the CLO notes, prior to DecemBg&r 2010, was based
managemeng valuation determined using a discounted futush ¢lws model that management believed would feel tog
market participants to value similar financial nusbents. At each of December 31, 2011 and Decei®be010, the fa
value of the CLO notes was based on quoted priegded by dealers who make markets in similarrfial instrument:
The CLO notes were previously classified as Levé&hiBvalues and were rdassified as Level 2 fair values in the fol
quarter of 2010.

d. Investment Securities Available for S- The fair value of other investment securities alzlé for sale, such as U.S. Trea:
securities, are based on quoted prices providedehjers who make markets in similar financial istents and are typica

classified as Level 2 fair values.

e. Derivative Instruments- The fair value of interest rate swaps, caps,omgti futures and TBAs are based on dealer quotes.
The Company’s derivatives are classified as Levaatd Level 2 fair values.
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The following table presents the Companyinancial instruments measured at fair value aecarring basis as of December
2011 and 2010, respectively, on the Company’s dafeded balance sheets (dollar amounts in thougands

Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
at December 31, 2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets carried at fair value:
Investment securities available for sale:
Agency RMBS $ — 132,457 $ — $ 132,457
CMBS — 41,18¢ 41,18¢
Non-Agency RMBS — 3,94% — 3,94t
CLO — 22,75¢ — 22,75¢
Derivative Assets — 208,21¢ — 208,21¢
Total $ — % 367,37 % 41,18 $ 408,56(
Liabilities carried at fair value:
Derivative liabilities:
Interest rate swaps $ — % 304 % — 3 304
U.S. Treasury futures 566 — — 566
Eurodollar futures 1,74¢ — —  $ 1,749
Total $ 231t $ 304 $ — % 2,619

Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
at December 31, 2010

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets carried at fair value:
Investment securities available for sale:
Agency RMBS $ — 3 47,52¢ $ — 3 47,52¢
Non-Agency RMBS — 8,98t — 8,98t
CLO — 29,52¢ — 29,52¢
Total $ — $ 86,04( $ — $ 86,04(
Liabilities carried at fair value:
Derivative liabilities (interest rate swaps) $ —  $ 1,087 $ — 3 1,087
Total $ — $ 1,087 $ — $ 1,08’

The following table details changes in valuationtfee Level 3 assets for the years ended Decentlhe2031 and 2010, respectiv
(amounts in thousands):

Investment securities available for sale:
Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010

Balance at beginning of period $ — $ 17,59¢
Total gains (realized/unrealized)

Included in earnings (1) — 2,10¢

Included in other comprehensive income/(loss) (1,036 9,821
Purchases 42,22 —
Transfers out of Level 3 (2) — (29,52¢)
Balance at the end of period $ 41,188 $ —

(1) - Amounts included in interest income.

(2) — The CLOs were refassified from Level 3 to Level 2 fair values dwgithe fourth quarter of 2010 due to managemergrof@ing tha
inputs and assumptions for these assets basedqumied prices provided by dealers who make maiketémilar investments becal
more observable
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Any changes to the valuation methodology are regelWwy management to ensure the changes are agteoplis markets a
products develop and the pricing for certain préslubecomes more transparent, the Company contitoesefine its valuatio
methodologies. The methods described above magupeoa fair value calculation that may not be iathe of net realizable value
reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, lghthe Company believes its valuation methods ppeapriate and consistent with other ma
participants, the use of different methodologieasassumptions, to determine the fair value of derfmancial instruments could result il
different estimate of fair value at the reportirgted The Company uses inputs that are currenf eaah reporting date, which may incli
periods of market dislocation, during which timécprtransparency may be reduced. This conditiamdcocause the Compars/financia
instruments to be reclassified from Level 2 to Ueen future periods.

The following table presents assets measured ravdhie on a nomecurring basis as of December 31, 2011 and 2@kpectively
on the consolidated balance sheets (dollar amanti®usands):

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Non-Recurring Bas
at December 31, 2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Mortgage loans held for investment $ — $ — $ 511¢ $ 5,11¢
Mortgage loans held for sale — included in discored operations — — 3,78C 3,78C
(net)
Mortgage loans held in securitization trusts — iirgghloans (net) — — 6,51¢ 6,51¢
Real estate owned held in securitization trusts — — 454 454
Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Non-Recurring Bas
at December 31, 2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Mortgage loans held for investment $ — $ — $ 7,46C $ 7,46(
Mortgage loans held for sale — included in discored operations — — 3,80¢ 3,80¢
(net)
Mortgage loans held in securitization trusts — imgzhloans (net) — — 6,57€ 6,57¢€
Real estate owned held in securitization trusts — — 740 740

The following table presents losses incurred faetsmeasured at fair value on a meodrring basis for the years ended Decel
31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, on the Comparyisalidated statements of operations (dollar ansoumthousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010
Mortgage loans held in securitization trusts — imgzhloans (net) $ 1,380 $ 1,56(
Real estate owned held in securitization trusts 87 192

Mortgage Loans Held for InvestmentThe Company mortgage loans held for investment are recordeaheortized cost le
specific loan loss reserves.

Mortgage Loans Held for Sale (net)The fair value of mortgage loans held for sale)(aet estimated by the Company based o
price that would be received if the loans were ssdvhole loans taking into consideration the aggped characteristics of the loans suc
but not limited to, collateral type, index, intereate, margin, length of fixed interest rate pdritife time cap, periodic cap, underwrit
standards, age and credit.

Mortgage Loans Held in Securitization Trusts — ling@ Loans (net) 4mpaired mortgage loans held in the securitizatiasts ar
recorded at amortized cost less specific loan tessrves. Impaired loan value is based on managesmestimate of the net realizable v:
taking into consideration local market conditiorfsttte distressed property, updated appraisal vabfigbe property and estimated expel
required to remediate the impaired loan.

Real Estate Owned Held in Securitization TrusRReal estate owned held in the securitization trastsrecorded at net realizs
value. Any subsequent adjustment will result in teduction in carrying value with the correspondemgount charged to earnings.
realizable value based on an estimate of dispagalg into consideration local market conditiongtué distressed property, updated appr
values of the property and estimated expensesrezitad sell the property.
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The following table presents the carrying value astimated fair value of the Compasyfinancial instruments at December
2011 and 2010, respectively, (dollar amounts insands):

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 16,58¢ $ 16,58¢ $ 19,37t $ 19,37t
Investment securities available for sale 200,34. 200,34: 86,04( 86,04(
Mortgage loans held in securitization trusts (net) 206,92( 182,97t 228,18! 206,56(
Derivative assets 208,21¢ 208,21¢ — —
Assets related to discontinued operatmartgage loans held for se
(net) 3,78( 3,78( 3,80¢ 3,80¢
Mortgage loans held for investment 5,11¢ 5,11¢ 7,46( 7,46(
Receivable for securities sold 1,13¢ 1,13 5,65: 5,65:
Financial Liabilities:
Financing arrangements, portfolio investments $ 112,67: $ 112,67 $ 35,63: % 35,63:
Collateralized debt obligations 199,76: 171,18 219,99¢ 185,60¢
Derivative liabilities 2,61¢ 2,61¢ 1,08 1,08
Payable for securities purchased 228,30( 228,30( — —
Subordinated debentures 45,00( 26,31¢ 45,00( 36,39¢

In addition to the methodology to determine the Yailue of the Companyg’financial assets and liabilities reported at Yailue on
recurring basis and naecurring basis, as previously described, the Willg methods and assumptions were used by the Qomipaarriving
at the fair value of the Company’s other finangiatruments in the following table:

a. Cash and cash equivalentdEstimated fair value approximates the carrying @alfisuch assets.

b.  Mortgage Loans Held in Securitization Trusts (reMlortgage loans held in the securitization trusesracorded at amortiz
cost. Fair value is estimated using pricing modeld taking into consideration the aggregated cleniatics of groups of loans such as, bu
limited to, collateral type, index, interest rateargin, length of fixedate period, life cap, periodic cap, underwritingnelards, age and cre
estimated using the estimated market prices follainypes of loans.

c. Receivable for securities soldEstimated fair value approximates the carrying ®alfisuch assets.

d. Financing arrangements, portfolio investment$he fair value of these financing arrangements @pprates cost as they .
short term in nature and mature in 30 days.

e. Collateralized debt obligations Fhe fair value of these CDOs is based on discoucdstl flows as well as market pricing
comparable obligations.

f. Payable for securities purchasedEstimated fair value approximates the carrying @afisuch liabilities.

g. Subordinated debentures Fhe fair value of these subordinated debenturebased on discounted cash flows u
management’s estimate for market yields.
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15. Income taxes

A reconciliation of the statutory income tax prawisto the effective income tax provision for theays ended December 31, 2

and 2010, respectively, are as follows (dollar ant®in thousands).

December 31,

2011 2010
Provision at statutory rate $ 1,857 (35.0% $ 2,38 (35.0%
Non-taxable REIT income (1,088 20.5% (813 11.9%
State and local tax provision 23¢ (4.5)% 414 (6.1)%
True-ups (1,810 34.1% — —%
Valuation allowance 1,23t (23.9% (2,983 29.2%
Total provision $ 432 8.292% $ — —%

The income tax provision for the year ended Decen®ie 2011 is comprised of the following componefdsllar amounts i

thousands):

Current income tax expense
Deferred income tax expense

Total provision

$ 43¢

$ 43:

The income tax provision for the year ended Decen®de 2010 is comprised of the following componefdsllar amounts

thousands):

Current income tax expense
Deferred income tax expense

Total provision
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The gross deferred tax asset at December 31, 80827i2 million. The major sources of temporaryedénces included in the
deferred tax assets and their deferred tax effeof ®ecember 31, 2011 are as follows (dollar an®imthousands):

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryover $ 27,05:
GAAP reserves 10t
Gross deferred tax asset 27,157
Valuation allowance (27,159
Net deferred tax asset $ —

At December 31, 2011, HC had approximately $59iomillof net operating loss carryforwards which mayused to offset futu
taxable income. The carryforwards will expire irRdahrough 2029. The Internal Revenue Code plagdain limitations on the annual amo
of net operating loss carryforwards that can bkzed if certain changes in the Compasigwnership occur. The Company determined d
2011 that it had undergone an ownership changenitte meaning of IRC section 382 that will limlitet net loss carryforwards to be use
offset future taxable income to $660,000 per y&ae Company has recorded a full valuation alloweaga&inst its deferred tax assets bec
at this time management does not believe the defeax assets will be realized.

The gross deferred tax asset at December 31, 202610 million. The major sources of temporaryedénces included in the
deferred tax assets and their deferred tax effeof ®ecember 31, 2010 are as follows (dollar an®imthousands):

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryover $ 25,66:
GAAP reserves 34z
Gross deferred tax asset 26,00
Valuation allowance (25,92)
Net deferred tax asset $ 83

The Company files income tax returns with the UeBeral government and various state and locaddictions. The Company is
longer subject to tax examinations by tax authesitior years prior to 2007. HC is presently undiemg@n IRS examination for the taxa
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2

During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2B&0Companys two TRSs recorded approximately $0.4 million &
respectively, of income tax expense for incomelattable to the subsidiaries. The Compangstimated taxable income differs from the fe«
statutory rate as a result of state and local tax@s-taxable REIT income and a valuation allowance

16. Segment Reporting

The Company manages a portfolio comprised of piignarortgage-related assets which operates asepwting segment.
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17. Capital Stock and Earnings per Share

The Company had 400,000,000 shares of common stacksalue $0.01 per share, authorized with 132@Band 9,425,442 sha
issued and outstanding as of December 31, 20112@6hd, respectively. As of December 31, 2011 and2€ie Company had 200,000,
shares of preferred stock, par value $0.01 perestarthorized, with 0 shares issued and outstandMghe common stock authorizec
December 31, 2011 and 2010, 1,154,992 shares 488,823 shares, respectively, were reserved foaise under the Compasy2010 Stoc
Incentive Plan. The Company issued 4,512,831 an@i7¥1shares of common stock during the years efmdmsmber 31, 2011 and 20
respectively. In addition, 0 and 829 shares of comistock were forfeited during the years ended Béee 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The following table presents cash dividends dedldrg the Company on its common stock with respeatach of the quarte
periods commencing January 1, 2010 and ended Dexe3ith2011.

Cash
Dividend
Period Declaration Date Record Date Payment Date Per Share

Fourth Quarter 2011 December 15, 2011 December 27, 2011 January 25, 2012  $ 0.35
Third Quarter 2011 September 20, 2011 September 30, 2011 October 25, 2011 0.25
Second Quarter 2011 May 31, 2011 June 10, 2011 June 27, 2011 0.22
First Quarter 2011 March 18, 2011 March 31, 2011 April 26, 2011 0.18
Fourth Quarter 2010 December 20, 2010 December 30, 2010 January 25, 2011 0.18
Third Quarter 2010 October 4, 2010 October 14, 2010 October 25, 2010 0.18
Second Quarter 2010 June 16, 2010 July 6, 2010 July 26, 2010 0.18
First Quarter 2010 March 16, 2010 April 1, 2010 April 26, 2010 0.25

The following table presents cash dividends dedldénethe Company on its Series A Preferred Stookfdanuary 1, 2010 throu

December 31, 2010. The outstanding shares ofSArkereferred Stock were redeemed by the Compaiyesember 31, 2010.

Cash
Dividend
Period Declaration Date Record Date Payment Date Per Share
Fourth Quarter 2010 December 20, 2010 December 30, 2010 December 31, 2010 $ 0.50
Third Quarter 2010 September 29, 2010 September 30, 2010 October 29, 2010 0.50
Second Quarter 2010 June 16, 2010 June 30, 2010 July 30, 2010 0.50
First Quarter 2010 March 16, 2010 March 31, 2010 April 30, 2010 0.63

During 2011, taxable dividends for our common stagte $1.00 per share. For tax reporting purpdbes2011 taxable dividen
were classified as $1.00 per share ordinary income.

During 2010, taxable dividends for our common steake $0.23 per share. For tax reporting purpabes2010 dividends we
classified as $0.23 per share ordinary income @n8il¥per share a return of capital.

On June 28, 2011, we entered into an underwritgrgement relating to the offer and sale of 1,500 $iares of our common st
at a public offering price of $7.50 per share, whéhares were issued and proceeds received ori JaB11. On July 14, 2011, we issuel
additional 225,000 shares of common stock to thdeomriter pursuant to their exercise of an oaiotment option. The proceeds from
shares issued pursuant to the oidotment option were received on July 14, 2011. Meived total net proceeds of $11.9 million frée
issuance of the 1,725,000 shares.

On December 1, 2011, we entered into an undengriigreement relating to the offer and sale of 2000 shares of our comm
stock at a public offering price of $6.90 per shavhich shares were issued and proceeds receivddeoember 6, 2011. On December
2011, we issued an additional 360,000 shares oframmstock to the underwriter pursuant to their eiser of an ovesllotment option. Th
proceeds from the shares issued pursuant to theatieement option were received on December 16, 2@&lreceived total net proceed:
$17.9 million from the issuance of the 2,760,008rsk.
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The Company calculates basic net income per sharbvirling net income for the period by weightaderage shares of comn
stock outstanding for that period. Diluted net imeoper share takes into account the effect ofiddunhstruments, such as convertible prefe
stock, stock options and unvested restricted diopeance stock, but uses the average share pridddgeriod in determining the numbe
incremental shares that are to be added to thehesigaverage number of shares outstanding.

The following table presents the computation ofibasd diluted net income per share for the periadgated (dollar amounts
thousands, except per share amounts):

For the Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010

Numerator :

Net income— Basic $ 4,77¢ $ 6,80¢
Net income from continuing operations 4,71z 5,67(
Net income from discontinued operations (net of tax 63 1,13¢

Effect of dilutive instruments:

Convertible preferred debentures — 2,27¢
Net income— Dilutive 4,77¢ 9,07¢

Net income from continuing operations 4,71 7,944

Net income from discontinued operations (net of tax $ 63 $ 1,13¢
Denominator:

Weighted average basic shares outstanding 10,49t 9,42

Effect of dilutive instruments:

Convertible preferred debentures — 2,50(
Weighted average dilutive shares outstanding 10,49 11,92:
EPS:

Basic EPS $ 0.4¢ $ 0.72
Basic EPS from continuing operations 0.4t 0.6(
Basic EPS from discontinued operations (net of tax) 0.01 0.12

Dilutive EPS $ 0.4€ $ 0.72
Dilutive EPS from continuing operations 0.4t 0.6(
Dilutive EPS from discontinued operations (neta)t 0.01 0.12
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18. Stock Incentive Plans

In May 2010, the Company’s stockholders approvesl @ompany’s 2010 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2018nB| with suct
stockholder action resulting in the terminationtltd Company’s 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (the “280”). The terms of the 2010 Plan
substantially the same as the 2005 Plan. Howewngropatstanding awards under the 2005 Plan willioomtin accordance with the terms of
2005 Plan and any award agreement executed in choamevith such outstanding awards. At December21l,1 and 2010, there are 14,
and 28,999 shares of restricted stock outstand@spectively, under the 2010 and 2005 Plan.

Pursuant to the 2010 Plan, eligible employeesceif§i and directors of the Company are offered th@odunity to acquire tt
Company's common stock through the award of reésttistock and other equity awards under the 2046. Flhe maximum number of she
that may be issued under the 2010 Plan is 1,190,066 Companyg directors have been issued 20,924 and 7,177sshader the 2010 Plan
of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2@ ompany recognized n@ash compensation expense of $0.1 million
$0.2 million, respectively. Dividends are paid dhrastricted stock issued, whether those shares hasted or not. In general, neeste!
restricted stock is forfeited upon the recipieteisnination of employment.

A summary of the activity of the Company's naested restricted stock for the years ended DecerBbe 2011 and 201
respectively, are presented below:

2011 2010
Weighted Weighted
Number of Average Per Number of Average Per
Non-vested Share Non-vested Share
Restricted Grant Date Restricted Grant Date
Shares Fair Value @ Shares Fair Value W
Non-vested shares at January 1 28,99¢ $ 5.4% 60,66 $ 5.2¢
Granted 14,08¢ 7.1C 4,00( 7.5C
Forfeited — — (829) 5.2¢
Vested (28,999 5.4: (34,837 5.41
Non-vested shares as of December 31 14,08 $ 7.1C 28,99¢ $ 5.4:
Weighted-average fair value of restricted stoanggd during the
period 14,08 $ 7.1C 4,000 $ 7.5C

(1) The grant date fair value of restricteccktawards is based on the closing market price@fXompany’s common stock at the grant
date.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company hadcagnized compensation expense of $0.1 million eeldab the norvestel
shares of restricted common stock. The unrecogrinethensation expense at December 31, 2011 is texpcbe recognized over a weigt
average period of 2.17 years. The total fair valfieestricted shares vested during each of thesyeaded December 31, 2011 and 2010
$0.2 million. The requisite service period is tweays.
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19. Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

The following table is a comparative breakdown of onaudited quarterly results for the immediatglyceding eight quarters
(dollar amounts in thousands, except per sharg:data

Three Months Ended

Mar. 31, Jun. 30, Sep. 30, Dec. 31,
2011 2011 2011 2011
Interest income $ 369, % 6,48. $ 7,431 $ 6,68¢
Interest expense 1,18¢ 1,181 1,20z 1,26¢
Net interest income 2,51( 5,301 6,22¢ 5,41¢
Other Income (Expense):
Provision for loan losses (639) (397) (435) (239)
Impairment loss on investment securities — — — (250
Income from investment in limited partnership aidited
liability company 784 49¢ 47¢ 40&
Realized gain (loss) on investment securities egldted hedge 2,191 3,28: 2,52¢ (2,260
Unrealized loss on investment securities and edlhedges (40) (695) (8,027) (895)
Total other income (expense) 2,30 2,69¢ (5,457 (3,239
General, administrative and other expenses 2,29: 3,45¢ 717 1,85¢
Termination of management contract — — — 2,19t
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxes 2,51¢ 4,54: 54 (1,879
Income tax expense — 363 56 14
Income (loss) from continuing operations 2,51¢ 4,18( 2 (1,887)
Income (loss) from discontinued operation - netaf (5) 9 19 40
Net income (loss 2,51« 4,18¢ 17 (2,847
Net income attributable to noncontrolling inter — 20 32 45
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhia $ 2512 $ 4,16¢ $ (15) $ (1,897)
Per share basic income (loss) $ 027 $ 04/ % — $ (0.1¢6)
Per share diluted income (loss) $ 027 $ 04/ % — $ (0.16)
Dividends declared per common share $ 0.1t $ 02z $ 02t % 0.3t
Weighted average shares outstanding-basic 9,43: 9,447 11,14¢ 11,91¢
Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted 9,43: 9,447 11,14¢ 11,91¢
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Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income

Other Income:
Provision for loan losses
Income from investment in limited partnership
Realized gain on investment securities and relaseiijes
Impairment loss on investment securities

Total other income
General, administrative and other expenses
Income from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operation - net of tax
Net income

Per share basic income

Per share diluted income

Dividends declared per common share
Weighted average shares outstanding-basic
Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted

Three Months Ended

Mar. 31, Jun. 30, Sep. 30, Dec. 31,
2010 2010 2010 2010
$ 6,221 $ 518t $ 453¢ $ 3,951
2,81: 2,49t 2,311 1,997
3,40¢ 2,69( 2,22¢ 1,96t
2 (600) (734 (894,
— — 15C 34¢€
807 1,291 1,86( 1,40¢
— — — (296,
80t 691 1,27¢ 56(
1,85¢ 2,107 2,22 1,76¢
2,351 1,274 1,27¢ 76(
311 26¢ 29¢ 25¢
$ 2,66¢ $ 154z $ 1577 $ 1,01¢
$ 0.2¢ $ 0.1€¢ $ 017 $ 0.11
$ 0.2¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 017 $ 0.11
$ 028 $ 0.1¢ $ — 3 0.3¢
9,41¢ 9,41¢ 9,42¢ 9,42¢
11,91¢ 11,91¢ 9,42¢ 9,42¢
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20. Related Party Transactions
Termination of Advisory Agreement

On January 18, 2008, the Company entered into ais@g agreement (the “Prior Advisory Agreementliith Harvest Capiti
Strategies LLC (“HCS”) formerly known as JMP Asset Management LLC), punsia which HCS was responsible for implementingl
managing the Company’s investments in certain esgaterelated and financial assets. The Company entared the Prior Advisor
Agreement concurrent and in connection with itygme placement of Series A Preferred Stock to JMBU Inc. and certain of its affiliat:
HCS is a whollyewned subsidiary of JIMP Group Inc. As of DecemB&r 2011, HCS and JMP Group Inc. collectively bamafy ownec
approximately 10.3% of the Compasycommon stock. In addition, until its redemptimm December 31, 2010, HCS and JMP Group
collectively beneficially owned 100% of the Companyperies A Preferred Stock. The Compangeries A Preferred Stock maturet
December 31, 2010, at which time it redeemed allathitstanding shares at the $20.00 per share éijoidpreference plus accrued dividenc
$0.5 million.

Pursuant to the Prior Advisory Agreement, HCS madagvestments made by HC and NYMF (other tharage®MBS that at
held in these entities for regulatory complianceppses) as well as any additional subsidiariesvtesé acquired or formed to hold investm:
made on the Comparg/behalf by HCS. The Company sometimes refersasetisubsidiaries in its periodic reports filed wite Securities ai
Exchange Commission as the “Managed Subsidiari€se Prior Advisory Agreement provided for the payin® HCS of a base advisory
that was equal to 1.50% per annum of the “equipjitall (as defined in the advisory agreement) of the Mat&)ébsidiaries; and an incent
fee upon the Managed Subsidiaries achieving ceitaiastment hurdles. HCS was also eligible to eamnincentive fee on the mana
assets. Pursuant to the Prior Advisory Agreeme@iS was entitled to an incentive fee equal to 25% e GAAP net income of the Mana¢
Subsidiaries attributable to the investments thatraanaged by HCS that exceed a hurdle rate eguhétgreater of (a) 8.00% and (b) 2.(
plus the ten year treasury rate for such fiscat.yBae incentive fee is payable by us to HCS irh¢asarterly in arreargrovided, howevethai
a portion of the incentive compensation may be jraishares of our common stock. The Prior AdvisAgreement was terminated effec
July 26, 2010 upon execution and effectivenessiaraended and restated advisory agreement amoi@pthpany, HC, NYMF and HCS (t
“HCS Advisory Agreement”).

Pursuant to the HCS Advisory Agreement, HCS pravidevestment advisory services to the Company amadaged on tt
Company’s behalf “new program assegsuired after the date of the HCS Advisory Agreetmd he terms for new program assets, inclu
the compensation payable thereunder to HCS by thrap@ny, was to be negotiated on a transactiotrdnsaction basis. For those 1
program assets identified as “Managed Ass#€S was (A) entitled to receive a quarterly basdsady fee (payable in arrears) in an ami
equal to the product of (i) orfeurth of the amortized cost of the Managed Assastsf the end of the quarter, and (i) 2%, and€B)ible tc
earn incentive compensation on the Managed Assetedch fiscal year during the term of the Agreetieran amount (not less than ze
equal to 35% of the GAAP net income attributabléhto Managed Assets for the full fiscal year (inihg paid interest and realized gains),
giving effect to all direct expenses related to Menaged Assets, including but not limited to, #maual consulting fee (described below)
base advisory fees, that exceeds a hurdle rat8%f Hased on the average equity of the Company tiedéa Managed Assets during t
particular year. For those new program assetsifihtis Scheduled Assets, HCS received compemsatioich may include base advisory
incentive compensation, agreed upon between thep&oynand HCS and set forth in a term sheet or adloeumentation related to 1
transaction. Under the terms of the HCS Advisogreement, HCS is eligible to earn incentive comp#as on those assets held by
Company as of the effective date of the HCS Adyigbgreement that are deemed to be managed assids tine Prior Advisory Agreeme
Incentive compensation for these “legacy assstsalculated in the manner prescribed in the Pxirisory Agreement. Lastly, during the te
of the HCS Advisory Agreement, the Company was ireguo pay HCS an annual consulting fee equalltodlion, subject to reduction unc
certain circumstances, payable on a quarterly basisrears, for consulting and support servicdge HCS Advisory Agreement had an ini
term that was to expire on June 30, 2012, subeeutomatic annual ongear renewals thereafter. Under the terms of thé& H@visory
Agreement, the Company has the right to terminateod renew the HCS Advisory Agreement, subjecteaain conditions and subjeci
paying a termination fee equal to the product of 1% and (B) the sum of (i) the average annua¢ lzatvisory fee earned by HCS during
24-month period preceding the effective terminatiate, and (ii) the annual consulting fee.

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, d4@t%d aggregate base advisory and consultingofeggproximately $1
million and $0.9 million, respectively, and an intige fee of approximately $1.7 and $2.0 millioaspectively. As of December 30, 2011
2010, approximately $34.1 million and $48.2 milliolespectively, of the Comparsyassets were managed pursuant to the HCS Ad
Agreement. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, themgaay had a management fee payable totaling $OUgmiand $0.7 million
respectively, included in accrued expenses and t#i#lities.
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On December 30, 2011, the Company and HCS agretafrtonate the HCS Advisory Agreement effective@ecember 31, 201
with HCS agreeing to waive the 18@y advance notice requirement provided in the A@@sory Agreement. In addition, the Company
HCS agreed that, in consideration of the termimatibthe HCS Advisory Agreement, the Company wél/go HCS a termination fee equa
$2,235,000 (the “Agreed Fee'hich fee is the sum of (a) the termination feevjted in the HCS Advisory Agreement and (b) $500,
which represents the fees that otherwise would baes payable through the end of the term of th& lAGvisory Agreement. The Agreed |
will be paid to HCS by the Company in three semamastallments with the first installment of $1,73%0 paid on December 30, 2011, anc
final two installments of $250,000 payable on Mag&h 2012 and on the date the transitional comsul§ervices referred to below
terminated by the Company.

In connection with the payment of the Agreed Fe€Sthas agreed to provide certain transitional dtinguservices at the reques
the Company until the earlier of (i) the day imneadly prior to the Company’s annual stockholdengeting in May or June 2012 or (ii
majority vote of the independent directors of thenfpany to terminate such transitional consultingvises. As part of the transitiot
consulting services to be provided by HCS, Jamé&swler, a portfolio manager for HCS and a managiingctor of JMP Group Inc. and 1
current Chairman of the Company’s Board of Direstdras agreed to continue to serve as a directbCaairman of the Compars/Board ¢
Directors until the earlier of (a) the Company’sl20annual stockholdersheeting, (b) his successor is duly qualified angdaated by th
Companys Board of Directors or (¢) he determines thatrb@gnation is legally or for regulatory reasonsisable or appropriate under
circumstances.

Pursuant to the terms of the HCS Advisory Agreemfaifowing the termination date of December 31120the Company w
continue to pay incentive compensation to HCS wébpect to all assets of the Company that werefadhe effective termination da
managed pursuant to the HCS Advisory Agreement‘(tieentive Tail Assets”until such time as such Incentive Tail Assets aspaked of b
the Company or mature. The Company expensed $20A®% 2011 relating to the termination of the HE&®/isory Agreement.

On April 5, 2011, RBCM entered into a managememeéagent with RiverBanc LLC (“RiverBanc”pursuant to which RiverBa
provides investment management services to RBCMDédember 31, 2011, HCS owned a 28% equity intémeRtverBanc and, according
may receive a portion of the fees paid to RiverBemdRBCM. Under the terms of RiverBascdperating agreement, we may acquire |
17.5% of the limited liability company interestsRiverBanc, upon satisfying certain funding thrddeoAs of December 31, 2011, we ow
none of the outstanding limited liability compamtdrests of RiverBanc. On January 4, 2012, we aedui.5% of the outstanding limi
liability company interests of RiverBanc. For treay ended December 31, 2011, RBCM paid approxim&gs,000 in fees to RiverBanc.

JMP and its affiliates have, at times, iowested with the Company and/or made debt or ggnitestments in investees tt
introduced to the Company.

Accounting Outsourcing Agreement

The Company entered into an outsourcing agreeméhtReal Estate Systems Implementation Group, LIRESIG”) effective
May 1, 2010, pursuant to which RESIG, among othargs, (a) performs day-tday accounting services for the Company and (l8céffe
October 4, 2010, provided a Chief Financial Offitiethe Company. During the years ended Decemb@031 and 2010, respectively, RE!
earned $0.6 million and $0.2 million in fees.

21. Subsequent Even

On March 9, 2012, we entered into a First Amendn{dre “Midway Amendment”}to Investment Management Agreement
amended, the “Midway Management Agreementith Midway pursuant to which we amended the manmevhich the incentive fee paya
to Midway under the Midway Management Agreementldba calculated and provide for the payment ofiggoompensation to Midwa
Specifically, the Midway Amendment (i) raises th@gh water markto 11%, (ii) reduces the incentive fee to 35% af ttollar amount
which adjusted net income (as defined in the Midieanagement Agreement) exceeds the hurdle raderg@uces the hurdle rate to an an
12.5% rate of return on invested capital, (iv) pdeg that the incentive fee will be calculated oroling 12-month basis, (v) amends
definition of adjusted net income, (vi) providegathupon mutual agreement of the parties, a podfogach incentive fee payable to Midy
under the Midway Management Agreement may be paghares of our common stock, and (vii) providedtie grant, on or about the dat:
the Midway Amendment, of 213,980 shares of regtdctock to Midway that will vest annually in otigrd increments beginning on Decerr
31, 2012. Pursuant to the Midway Amendment, whiebame effective as of January 1, 2012, the iniieh of the Midway Manageme
Agreement will now expire on December 31, 2013.
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Exhibits. The exhibits required by Item 601 of RegulatiorK &re listed below. Management contracts or comgtemng plans are filed
Exhibits 10.3, 10.7, 10.8, 10.10, 10.11 and 10.12.
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10.19 First Amendment to Investment ManagememeAment by and between New York Mortgage Trust,and The Midway
Group, L.P., dated March 9, 201:

21.1 List of Subsidiaries of the Registrant.*

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing (Grant Thornton LLP).*

311 Section 302 Certification of Chief Executive Office

31.2 Section 302 Certification of Chief Financial Office

32.1 Section 906 Certification of Chief Executive Offiand Chief Financial Officer.*

Exhibit Instance Document ***
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XBRL
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XBRL
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XBRL
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XBRL

* Filed herewith.

*x Furnished herewith. Such certification shalltrae deemed “filed’for the purposes of Section 18 of the Securitiesharge Act ¢

1934, as amended.

ok Submitted electronically herewith. Attached as Bith101 to this report are the following documefusmatted in XBRL (Extensib
Business Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated BzdaSheets at December 31, 2011 and 2010; (ii) didased Statements
Operations for the years ended December 31, 20d128mh0; (i) Consolidated Statements of Comprehenicome for the yea
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaded December 31, 2011 and 2010; and (vi) NatgSonsolidated Financ
Statements. Users of this data are advised pursodile 406T of Regulation B-that this interactive data file is deemed natdib
part of a registration statement or prospectupioposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the SecuritiesoAd933, is deemed not filed
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities and Exghdyct of 1934, and otherwise is not subject tbiliy under these sections.



Exhibit 10.18

FIRST AMENDMENT TO
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREMIENT (this “ Amendment”) is entered into as of March 9, 2(
(the “ Amendment Effective Date”) by and between The Midway Group, LP, a Delawlaréted partnership (‘Midway "), and New Yorl
Mortgage Trust, Inc., a Maryland corporatiorNYMT ”).

Witnesseth:

WHEREAS, Midway and NYMT entered into that cert&ivestment Management Agreement dated Februarg@lll (the “Agreement”),
pursuant to which Midway provides certain investimaanagement services to NYMT; and

WHEREAS Midway and NYMT desire to amend the Agreatres set forth in this Amendment.

NOW, THEREFORE, for, and in consideration of, thetnal covenants herein contained and other goodraluéble consideration, the reci
and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, plarties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amendment

11 NYMT and Midway agree that the Agresinis hereby amended by deleting Paragraph 8(ttjeoAgreement in its entire
and replacing with the following:

“(b) Incentive Fee

Midway will be entitled to a quarterly incentiveefé¢the “Incentive Fee”) that is calculated quarterly and payable
guarterly in arrears. The Incentive Fee (whichidbacalculated in the manner described belowadlustrated in
Exhibit C hereto) shall be subject to a high waterk equal to a 11% return on Invested Capital (thikgh Water
Mark "), and shall be payable with respect to such figecarter in an amount equal to the excess, if ahyi) 35%

of the dollar amount by which Adjusted Net Inconas @lefined below) attributable to the Separate Arstoon a
rolling 12-month basis and before the Incentive, Egeeeds an annual 12.5% rate of return on Inde3&pital (the “
Hurdle Rate "), over (ii) the sum of the Incentive Fees paidaccrued for each of the three immediately pregedin
fiscal quarters (or, in the case of the quarteiren&eptember 30, 2012, the sum of the Incenties lpaid or accrued
for the two immediately preceding quarters or hie tase of the quarter ending June 30, 2012, trenlive Fees paid
or accrued for the immediately preceding quartdie return rate for each rolling 12-month periotie(t"
Calculation Period ") shall be determined by dividing (A) the Adjustiiét Income for the Calculation Period by (B)
the weighted average of the Invested Capital heldhe Separate Account during the Calculation Re(as
calculated pursuant to Paragraph 4(b) of this Agesd); provided, however, that with respect to fingt three
guarterly periods commencing on January 1, 2012 {thitial Calculation Period "), Adjusted Net Income will be
calculated on the basis of each of the previousiypleted quarters on an annualized basis. Notwitihg anything
set forth herein, beginning with the fiscal quatteat commences on October 1, 2012, the Calcul&&nod shall be
the fiscal quarter for which the Incentive Fee acalated and the immediately preceding three lfigoarters. An
illustration of how the Incentive Fee is calculathgting each of the Initial Calculation Period ahé Calculation
Period is included on Exhibit C.




From time to time in the future, upon mutual agreatrof the parties hereto, a portion of each Irigerftee payable
to Midway hereunder may be paid in shares (thiecéntive Fee Shares) of NYMT's common stock, $0.01 par
value per share (the Common Stock”), with the balance paid in cash. The specifierterand conditions for any
issuance of Incentive Fee Shares shall be detedmamel approved by the parties prior to any suchaisse.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Incentive Fee Shesteall not be issued except in accordance withapfilicable
securities exchange rules and securities lawsu@iag prohibitions on insider trading).

“ Adjusted Net Income” is defined as net income (loss) calculated inbadance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States GAAP "), including any unrealized gains and losses, raffiging effect to all
expenses as set forth in Paragraphs (8)(c) and) (8g{ow.

All securities held in the Separate Account shall’blued in accordance with GAAP, and in a manpesistent with
the PPM for the Fund. As set forth in Paragrapkbj4 for the purposes of determining the Inves@zgital in the
Separate Account at any given time, the partieseaghat the Capital Commitment Schedule set foetteih shall
govern.

Unlike the Hurdle Rate, which is calculated on Bing twelve (12) month basis, the High Water Maskcalculated
on a calendar twelve (12) month basis, and shsditrevery twenty-four (24) months. The High Watearkiwill be a
static dollar figure that Midway will be required tecoup, to the extent there was a deficit inghier High Water
Mark calculation period before it can receive anelmtive Fee. For example, if in 2012, NYMT earnsetrn on
Invested Capital in the Separate Account of 9% ctvlis 2% short of the High Water Mark, and this 8eficit is

equivalent to a dollar amount of $2 million, Midweypuld have to earn net profit of $2 million to gdtove the High
Water Mark before it would be eligible again toe®® an Incentive Fee. This is independent of the RHigh Water
Mark, which will have to be reached in the follogiryear(s). An illustration of how the High Waterahk is

calculated is included on Exhibit B.”




1.2

NYMT and Midway hereby agree thatfibleowing paragraph shall become new Paragraphd(the Agreement:
“ (e) Equity Compensation

In addition to the fees and other payments sehforthe Agreement, NYMT agrees to issue to Midwayor about
March 9, 2012, 213,980 shares of restricted Com8tork (the “Restricted Shares’). The Restricted Shares may
not be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged, hygpated or otherwise disposed of and shall be sutijea risk of
forfeiture until the lapse of the Restricted Peridtie Restricted Period shall lapse and a portiothe@ Restricted
Shares shall become nonforfeitable and freely biedanly as follows: (i) one third (1/3) of the Restricted Shares
shall become nonforfeitable and transferable oneber 31, 2012, (ii) one third (1/8) of the Restricted Shares
shall become nonforfeitable and transferable onebdaer 31, 2013, and (iii) one third (18) of the Restricted
Shares shall become nonforfeitable and transfe@bBecember 31, 2014 (collectively, thRéstricted Period”).

In the event Midway terminates this Agreement foy aeason prior to the lapse of the Restrictedd@erihen the
Restricted Shares that are at that time subjecestrictions set forth herein shall be forfeitedNYMT without

payment of any consideration by NYMT, and neithadWhay nor any of its successors or assigns shaletfter
have any further rights or interests in such Retstti Shares. In the event NYMT terminates this Agrent for any
reason prior to the lapse of the Restricted Petlogh the Restricted Shares that are at that tirbst to restrictions
set forth herein shall become nonforfeitable arahdferable on the date the services provided hdezuare
terminated. The Common Stock issued as RestricteateS hereunder will have voting and dividend sgipon
issuance.”
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NYMT and Midway hereby agree thatwitspect to Paragraph 4(e) of the Agreement ¢imywords “Initial Term’as use

in the last sentence of that Paragraph shall mefavog2) year period beginning on January 1, 204@ ending on December 31. 2013.
Further, notwithstanding the provisions of Paragr@fa) of the Agreement, the Agreement shall camtiim full force and effect from Janu.
1, 2012, for a period of two (2) years. Thereafiteshall automatically renew for successive ableygar terms, unless terminated in accord
with the provisions set forth in Paragraph 7(ajhef Agreement.

14 NYMT and Midway hereby agree that IBRC attached hereto shall become new Exhibif e Agreement.
2. Miscellaneous

2.1 All terms and conditions of the Agreement not esphg modified by this Amendment shall remain inl fokce and effec
and, in the event of any inconsistencies betweenAmendment and the terms of the Agreement, thrageset forth in th
Amendment shall govern and control.

2.2 This Amendment may be executed in one aernounterparts, which shall be construed togeth@me document.

2.3 Captions used herein are for convenience only amahet to be utilized to ascribe any meaning toctetents thereof. Unle
defined differently herein or the context clearguires otherwise, all terms used in this Amendrsieatl have the meanir
ascribed to them under the Agreement.

2.4 Notwithstanding the Amendment Effective Date, thevjsions set forth in this Amendment shall takieeff as of January
2012.

25 This Amendment (i) shall be binding upon and shalle to the benefit of each of the parties andr ttespective successc

assigns, receivers and trustees; (ii) may be memtlifir amended only by a written agreement exedutezhch of the partie
and (iii) shall be governed by and construed iroett@nce with the laws of the State of New York.

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executedAlmgendment as of the date first written above.

THE MIDWAY GROUP, LP

By: /s/ Omar Qaise

Omar Qaiser
Chief Financial Officer

NEW YORK MORTGAGE TRUST, INC

By: /s/ Steven R. Mumm

Steven R. Mumma
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit C

Illustration of Incentive Fee Calculation

YTD (Annualized) Rolling
3/31/201: 6/30/201: 9/30/201: 12/31/201: 3/31/201: 6/30/201: 9/30/201: 12/31/201:
Net Income 4,000,000 1,400,000  1,700,00 50,00 3,000,000 1,750,001 750,00 500,00(

Capital (Weighted Average

Balance for calculation Perior 39,500,00 39,500,00 39,500,000 39,500,00 39,500,00 39,500,00 39,500,00 39,500,00

Return on Average Capital

(Quartly Annualized) 40.51% 27.3% 23.9% 18.1(% 15.5% 16.4¢% 14.0%%
Quarterly:

Hurdle Rate (Annualize12.5(% 28.01% 14.8%% 11.47% 5.6(% 3.07% 3.96% 1.55%
Incentive Fee

(Annualized) 35.0% 9.8(% 5.1%% 4.01% 1.96% 1.07% 1.3&% 0.5%
Incentive Fee Accrual 967,96¢ 1,025,933 1,188,90i 774,37" 424,37" 546,87! 214,37"
Incentive Fee Paid (967,969 (1,025,93) (1,188,90) (220,93 (366,40¢) (383,901
Net Owed 967,96¢ 57,96¢ 162,96¢ (414,53) 203,43¢ 180,46¢ (169,53)

15.1%

2.65%
0.94%
371,87

(383,901)
(12,037)



Name

List of Significant Subsidiaries

State of Incorporation

Exhibit 21.1

Names under which it does Business

Hypotheca Capital, LLC (formerly known as
The New York Mortgage Company, LLC)
New York Mortgage Trust 20(-1

New York Mortgage Trust 20(-2

New York Mortgage Trust 20(-3

New York Mortgage Funding, LL!

RB Commercial Mortgage LLC

NYMT -Midway LLC

New York

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

n/a

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our report dated March 12, 2012 reispect to the consolidated financial statemeisded in the Annual Report of Ni
York Mortgage Trust, Inc. on Form Xor the year ended December 31, 2011. We herebgent to the incorporation by reference of
report in New York Mortgage Trust Inc.’s Registoati Statements (Forms S-3 No. 333-162654 effectigeeihber 11, 2009 and No. 333-
150088 effective April 18, 2008) and Registratidat8ments (Forms S-8 No. 333-167609 effective Im&010 and No. 33337987 effectiv
October 13, 2006).

/s/ Grant Thornton LLP

New York, New York
March 12, 2012



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Steven R. Mumma, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on FormKLlibr the year ended December 31, 2011 of New \Wdditgage Trus
Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorgny untrue statement of a material fact or dmistate a materi
fact necessary to make the statements made, indfghe circumstances under which such statemgete made, not misleading with resj
to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present
all material respects the financial condition, fesof operations and cash flows of the registi@of, and for, the periods presented in
report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsible &stablishing and maintaining disclosure contiots
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}kmnd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchan
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures ttesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries,
made known to us by others within those entitiestipularly during the period in which this rep@tbeing prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataece with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slaisire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contral$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regm®ainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during tt
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahmeport) that has materia
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxhon our most recent evaluation of internal abmyvel
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditonsl ghe audit committee of the registrant's boardictors (or persons performing the equive
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controéifinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrant's ability to record, process, summasnd report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesamagement or other employees who have a significalet ir
the registrant's internal control over financigloging.

Date: March 12, 2012
/sl Steven R. Mumma
Steven R. Mumma
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Fredric S. Starker, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on FormKLlibr the year ended December 31, 2011 of New \Wdditgage Trus
Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorgny untrue statement of a material fact or dmigtate a materi
fact necessary to make the statements made, indfghe circumstances under which such statemeate made, not misleading with resj
to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial informatioincluded in this report, fairly present
all material respects the financial condition, fesof operations and cash flows of the registi@of, and for, the periods presented in
report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contiots
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}kmnd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchan
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures ttesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries,
made known to us by others within those entitiestiularly during the period in which this rep@tbeing prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reipgr or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assereegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataece with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slaisire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contral$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regm®ainternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during tt
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahmeport) that has materia
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant's internal control over finahcéporting; and

5. The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxhon our most recent evaluation of internal abmyvel
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditonsl ghe audit committee of the registrant's boardirctors (or persons performing the equive
functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controéofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrant's ability to record, process, summasad report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesamagement or other employees who have a significalet ir
the registrant's internal control over financigloging.

Date: March 12, 2012
/sl Fredric S. Starker
Fredric S. Starker
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of New York Mgage Trust, Inc., (the “Company”) on Form KCfor the year ended December
2011, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @msion on the date hereof (the “Reportf)e undersigned hereby certifies, pursuant 1
U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to section BdGarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the financtaldition and results of operations of
Company.

A signed original of this written statement reqditgy Section 906 has been provided to the Compadynédl be retained by the Company i
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commissiots staff upon request.

Date: March 12, 2012
/sl Steven R. Mumma
Steven R. Mumma
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 12, 2012
/sl Fredric S. Starker
Fredric S. Starker
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)




